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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)

X] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012

O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number 001-7120

HARTE-HANKS, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its arart

Delaware 74-1677284
(State or other jurisdiction « (I.R.S. Employel
incorporation or organizatiot Identification No.)
9601 McAllister Freeway, Suite 610, San Antonio, Tas 78216
(Address of principal executive office (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area eed210-829-9000

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(thefAct:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registert
Common Stocl New York Stock Exchang

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(gh@®ct:None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 40%edBéturities Act. YeEl  No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant €l filed all reports required to be filed by Secti8 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (orsiach shorter period that the registrant was reduodile such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the pastfgs. YedxI NoO

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act. YeEl  No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lsmstted electronically and posted on its corpovegdsite, if any, every Interactive D
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRile 405 of Regulation S-T (Section 232.405 &f thhapter) during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the regigtwas required to submit and post such filessBfle No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquiletrs pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (2% of this chapter) is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the beskgistrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or infoation statements incorporated by reference
in Part Ill of this Form 10-K or any amendmenthgstForm 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer poa-accelerated filer. See definitions of
“large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” atginall reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the E&clge Act

Large accelerated fileid Accelerated filer[x]

Non-accelerated fileid Smaller reporting companyd
(Do not check if a smaller reporting compa

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a shethpany (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act).siZe No

The aggregate market value of the voting and ndamga@ommon equity held by non-affiliates compulbsdreference to the closing price
($9.14) as of the last business day of the regit's most recently completed second fiscal quartare( B, 2012), was approximate



$437,258,000.

The number of shares outstanding of each of thistragt’s classes of common stock as of Januarg@13 was 62,395,489 shares of
common stock, all of one class.
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Documents incorporated by reference:

Portions of the Proxy Statement to be filed for @mmpany’s 2013 Annual Meeting of Stockholdersiacerporated by reference into
Part 11l of this Form 10-K.

THIS ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K IS BEING DISTRIBUTETO STOCKHOLDERS IN LIEU OF A SEPARATE ANNUAL

REPORT PURSUANT TO RULE 14a-3(b) OF THE ACT AND SHON 203.01 OF THE NEW YORK STOCK EXCHANGE LISTED
COMPANY MANUAL.
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PART |

ITEM1. BUSINESS

INTRODUCTION

Harte-Hanks, Inc. (Harte-Hanks) is a worldwide dirand targeted marketing company that providedicmalinnel direct and digital marketing
services and shopper advertising opportunitiesviida range of local, regional, national and inéional consumer and business-to-business
marketers. We manage our operations through twoatipg segments: Direct Marketing, which operath nationally and internationally,
and Shoppers, which operates in certain Califomaakets.

Virtually all for-profit organizations, as well asany non-profit organizations, rely on marketingyemerate revenues and publicity. Many
businesses have a chief-level executive resporfsiblaarketing who is charged with combining da¢ehnology, channels and resources to
demonstrate a return on marketing investment. R&ssled many businesses to use direct and targetdaeting, which offer accountability
and measurability of marketing programs, allowingtomer insight to be leveraged to create and eatelvalue. Direct Marketing, which
represented 76% of our total revenues in 2012|éader in the movement toward highly targeted tichinnel marketing. Our Shoppers
business applies geographic targeting principlessiging approximately 780 zones for local marketin

Harte-Hanks® is the successor to a newspaper lassgtarted by Houston Harte and Bernard Hanksxad @ the early 1920s. In 1972,
Harte-Hanks went public and was listed on the NewkYStock Exchange (NYSE). We became privatel@varaged buyout initiated by
management in 1984. In 1993, we again went palplitlisted our common stock on the NYSE.

Harte-Hanks provides public access to all repadled fvith the Securities and Exchange CommissideGsunder the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended (the 1934 Act). These doclameay be accessed free of charge on our webditgpaiwww.harte-hanks.com These
documents are provided as soon as practical &igrare filed with the SEC and may also be fourth@SEC’s website at
http://www.sec.gov Additionally, we have adopted and posted onveeinsite a code of ethics that applies to our ppialcéxecutive officer,
principal financial officer and principal accourdinfficer. Our website also includes our corpoggernance guidelines and the charters for
each of our audit, compensation, and nominatingcamngorate governance committees. We will prodgeinted copy of any of the
aforementioned documents to any requesting stodkhol

DIRECT MARKETING

General

Our Direct Marketing services offer a wide variefyintegrated, multichannel, data-driven solutifmstop brands around the globe. We help
our clients gain insight into their customers’ bébes from their data and use that insight to @eahovative multichannel marketing programs
to deliver a return on marketing investment. Wkele our clients’ success is determined not oiyiynbw good their tools are, but how well
we help them use the tools to gain insight andyaeatheir consumers. This results in a strongearduiring relationship between our clients
and their customers.

We offer a full complement of capabilities and nes@s to provide a broad range of marketing sesvaecel data management software, in
media from direct mail to email.

 Agency & Digital Services . The Agency Inside Harte-Hanks® and Mason Zimblar®full-service, customer engagement agencies
specializing in direct and digital communications lboth consumer and business-to-business makkéts strategy, creative and
implementation services, we help marketers withigéted industries understand, identify, and engaggpects and customers in their
channel of choice. Our digital solutions integratdine services within the marketing mix and imt#u website development and design,
digital strategy, social media marketing and maiigp, email marketing, ecommerce and interactivatieship management and a hos
other services that support our core businesses.
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» Database Marketing Solutions.We have successfully delivered marketing databalsgiens for over 35 years across various industrie
Our solutions are built around centralized marlgtiatabases with three core offerings: insightamalytics; customer data integration;
and marketing communications tools. Our solutiamesbde organizations to build and manage customanuamication strategies that drive
new customer acquisition and retention and maxirtieevalue of existing customer relationships. Tigioinsight, we help clients identify
models of their most profitable customer relatiopstand then apply these models to increase the wdlexisting customers while also
winning profitable new customers. Through custod®dn integration, data from multiple sources cotogsther to provide a single
customer view of client prospects and customerenThtilizing our Allink®suite of customer communication and sales optintizdbols,
we help clients apply their data and insights ®ehtire customer lifecycle, to help clients sustaid grow their business, gain deeper
customer insights, and continuously refine thestomer resource management strategies and tactics.

»  Trillium Software® Data Quality and Service Solutions. Our proprietary software has helped global custsmnmore effectively
analyze, enrich, cleanse and report on their ptpdinancial and customer data as part of mast&r el@nagement, data governance, Cl
data warehousing and integration initiatives. Whitiustry-leading Trillium Software System®, Glotalcator geocoding product, and
associated data governance services, businesscaseoptimize data-based business processes asddtens, realize efficiencies, and
enhance the accuracy of their master set of dapasvimg program results.

»  Business-to-Business Lead GenerationOur technology marketing solutions provide busgt-business lead generations through our
Cl Technology Database ® and Aberdeen Group ® .@drechnology Database tracks technology instaliat business demographics
and over 5 million key decision makers at more #h&nmillion business locations in 25 countrieiNiorth America, Latin America, Euro
and China. Our clients use the data to gain insigb their prospect’s and client’s technology Imgycycles. Our Aberdeen Group is a
provider of fact-based research to identify andcatiitechnology buyers across numerous industggrepduct categories. Leading
technology providers use Aberdeen’s proprietargaesh content for use in their demand creationnarog, online marketing campaigns
and Web-based sales and marketing tools.

« Direct Mail and Fulfillment. As a full-service direct marketing provider antemf the largest mailing partners of the Uniteat&t
Postal Service (USPS®), our operational mandate énsure creativity and quality, provide an untigrding of the options available in
technologies and segmentation strategies and tiapitmn economies of scale with our variety of exem options. Our services include
digital printing, print on demand, advanced malimjration, logistics and transportation optimipati tracking (including our proprietary
prEtrak ® solution) , commingling, shrink wrappiagd specialized mailings. We also maintain futfgéint centers throughout the United
States where we provide custom kitting servicdgt pn demand, product recalls and freight optirtigraallowing our customers to
distribute literature and other marketing materialéith facilities strategically placed nationwidee are among the largest solo mailers in
the country other than the U.S. government.

» Contact Centers. We operate teleservice workstations around thbegproviding advanced contact center solutionh ssc speech, ch
integrated voice response, email, social cloud madng and web self-service. We provide both imtmband outbound contact center
services and support many languages with our gicatdy placed global locations for both consumed &usiness-to-business markets.

Many of our client relationships start with an oiifg from the list above on an individual solutibasis to the client or a combination of our
offerings from across our portfolio of businessbtultichannel marketing is communicating througffetient marketing solutions or channels,
such as email, mobile devices, mail, radio, telemiscomputer, and newspaper, in an integrated forreach a consumer so it is easy for a
consumer to buy in whatever manner the consumersetso
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In 2012, 2011 and 2010, Harte-Hanks Direct Markgtliad revenues of $581.1 million, $614.3 milliond&601.3 million, respectively, which
accounted for approximately 76%, 76%, and 73% oftotal revenues, respectively.

Customers

Direct marketing services are marketed to spetificistries or markets with services and softwacelpcts tailored to each industry or market.
We believe that we are generally able to provideises to new industries and markets by modifying existing services and applications.
currently provide direct marketing services prirhatd the retail, high-tech/telecom, financial sees and pharmaceutical/healthcare vertical
markets, in addition to a range of selected mark&le largest Direct Marketing client (measuredeivenue) comprised 6% of total Direct
Marketing revenues in 2012 and 5% of our total nenes in 2012. The largest 25 clients in termswénue comprised 42% of total Direct
Marketing revenues in 2012 and 32% of our totaénexes in 2012.

Sales and Marketing

Our enterprise sales force is organized aroundivbererticals we service: retail, high-tech/telecdinancial services,
pharmaceutical/healthcare, and a wide range ofteglenarkets. The enterprise sales force seldgiaty of solutions and services to address
client’s targeted marketing needs. We also mairgalutionspecific sales forces and sales groups to seiinglividual products and solution:
Our sales forces, with industry-specific knowledge experience, emphasize the cross-selling df eafuge of direct marketing services and
are supported by employees in each sector asstgrsmcific clients. We rely on our enterprise antlition sellers to primarily sell our
products and services to new clients and task impi@yees supporting existing clients to expandadbient relationship through additional
solutions and products.

Direct Marketing Facilities
Direct marketing services are provided at the feifay facilities, all of which are leased excepb#iserwise noted:
National Offices

Austin, Texas

Baltimore, Marylanc
Billerica, Massachuset
Boston, Massachuse!
Cincinnati, Ohic

Deerfield Beach, Florid
East Bridgewater, Massachuse
Fort Worth, Texa:
Fullerton, Californie
Grand Prairie, Texe
Jacksonville, Florid:
Maitland, Florida
Langhorne, Pennsylvan
Linthicum Heights, Marylan
New York, New York
Ontario, Californie

San Diego, Californi
Shawnee, Kans:
Texarkana, Texs
Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvani
Yardley, Pennsylvani

International Offices

Boeblingen, German
Bristol, United Kingdorr
Frankfurt, German
Hasselt, Belgiun— owned site
Madrid, Spair

Manila, Philippines
Melbourne Australia

Sé&o Paulo, Braz

Sydney, Australii

Theale, UnitecKingdom
Uxbridge, United Kingdon
Versailles, Franc
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Competition

Our Direct Marketing business faces competitioalirof its offerings and within each of its verticaarkets. Direct marketing is a dynamic
business, subject to rapid technological changgh tirnover of client personnel who make buyingislens, client consolidations, changing
client needs and preferences, continual developoferdmpeting products and services and an evoleimgpetitive landscape. Our
competition comes from numerous local, national iatetnational direct marketing and advertising pamies, and client internal resources,
against whom we compete for individual projectdirerclient relationships and marketing expendgur€ompetitive factors in our industry
include the quality and scope of services, tech@ind strategic expertise, the perceived valudefervices provided, reputation and brand
recognition. We also compete against print andtedaic media and other forms of advertising forkeéing and advertising dollars in genel
Failure to continually improve our current processalvance and upgrade our technology applicataoristo develop new products and
services in a timely and cost-effective manner)adogsult in the loss of our clients or prospectilients to current or future competitors. In
addition, failure to gain market acceptance of peaducts and services could adversely affect oowvtyr. Although we believe that our
capabilities and breadth of services, combined withnational and worldwide production capabilitydustry focus and ability to offer a broad
range of integrated services, enable us to congfigetively, our business results may be adverisepacted by competition. Please refer to
Item 1A, “Risk Factors”, for additional informatiaegarding risks related to competition.

Seasonality

Our Direct Marketing revenues tend to be higheghafourth quarter than in other quarters duriggvan year. This increased revenue is a
result of overall increased marketing activity ptio and during the holiday season, primarily ediatio our retail vertical.

SHOPPERS
General

Harte-Hanks Shoppers is North America’s largestewaperator and distributor of shopper publicatjdrased on weekly circulation and
revenues. Shoppers are weekly advertising puliitsit 7 by 10 inches in size, distributed free tI8R$ saturation mail to households and
businesses in a particular geographic area. Shepffer advertisers a targeted, cost-effectivallacivertising system, with virtually 100%
penetration in its areas of distribution. Shopeesparticularly effective in large markets wiiglihmedia fragmentation in which major
metropolitan newspapers generally have low penetratOur Shoppers segment also provides onlineriiding and other services through out
website PennySaverUSA.co®, as well as business websites and search—engirketing. Our websites serve as advertising portal
bringing buyers and sellers together through olinerofferings, including local classifieds, busssdistings, coupons, special offers and
PowerSites®. PowerSites are templated web sitesufocustomers, optimized to help small and meesirad business owners establish a
presence and improve their lead generation thre@afiiracking. At December 31, 2012, we were lblig approximately 5,600 PowerSites
weekly.

On December 31, 2012, we sold the assets of ouid&l§hoppers operations, The Flyer®, for grossg@eds of $2.0 million, subject to
working capital adjustments. This transaction ltesuin an after-tax loss of $2.7 million. Aftdn¢ sale, Harte-Hanks Shoppers no longer has
any operations or circulation in Florida.

Now all of our Shopper operations are located iif@aia, and our California publications accouat &ll Shoppers circulation. As
December 31, 2012, Shoppers delivered approximatélynillion shopper packages in six major marlkeetsh week, covering Southern,
Central and Northern California.

As of December 31, 2012, Harte-Hanks Shoppers shudadi approximately 780 individual shopper editieash week, distributed to zones with
circulation of approximately 11,600 in each zofidis allows single-location, local advertisers adusate a single relevant geographic zone,
while enabling multiple-location advertisers tosate multiple zones. This unique distributionteys gives large and small advertisers alike ¢
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costeffective way to reach their target markets. Qamizg capabilities and production technologies hawvabled us to saturate and target ¢
in a number of ways, including geographic, demolgiggifestyle, behavioral and language, which veéidve allows our advertisers to
effectively target their customers. Distributiomm@ucts are zoned into smaller segments calledzenbs to allow further targeting, primarily
for larger accounts targeting specific demograpbicstore locations; at December 31, 2012 Hartekslaffered 2,025 subzones.

In 2012, 2011, and 2010, excluding the Florida Peop operations, Harte-Hanks Shoppers had revarfids86.6 million, $197.4 million, and
$219.4 million, respectively, accounting for apgmately 24%, 24%, and 27% of our total revenuespeetively.

Publications

The following table sets forth certain publicatioformation with respect to Shoppers:

December 31, 201,

Weekly

Market Publication Name Circulation Zones Suk-Zones

Greater Los Angele PennySaverUSA.co 3,104,08: 282 70%
Orange Count' PennySaverUSA.co 1,054,36. 92 27C
Inland Empire PennySaverUSA.co 1,484,72 122 27¢
San Diego Count PennySaverUSA.co 1,171,60: 98 247
Bay Area PennySaverUSA.co 1,394,63. 11C 338
Sacramento/Central Valley PennySaverUSA.co 898,90: 79 192
Total 9,108,301 783 2,02¢

Our shopper publications contain classified angldisadvertising and are delivered by saturatiofl. mihe typical shopper publication
contains approximately 32 pages and is 7 by 10esdhsize. Each edition, or zone, is targetedra@ natural neighborhood marketing
pattern. Shoppers also serve as a distributioitheetor national, regional and local advertisertdjzing “print and deliver” single-sheet inserts
designed and printed by us, four-color glossy #y@esigned by us or our customers and printediby plarty printers or preprinted customer
supplied inserts. During 2012, we distributed agpnately 3.9 billion inserted distribution pieceis addition, our shoppers also provide
advertising and other services online through oeipsite PennySaverUSA.copand our PowerSite product.

We have acquired, developed and applied innovégielenology and customized equipment in the puliinadf our shoppers, contributing to
our efficiency. A proprietary pagination systens lmade it possible for over two thousand zonedaoeditto be designed, built and output
direct-to-plate in a fully digital environment. famating the production process saves on laborspemt and overweight postage. This
software also allows for better ad tracking, imnagelichecks on individual zone and ad status, ané motime press starts with less
manpower.

Customers

Shoppers serves both business and individual aseestin a wide range of industries, including resthte, employment, automotive, retail,
grocery, education, telecommunications, finana@aViees, and a number of other industries. Thgektrclient (measured in revenue)
comprised 2% of Shoppers revenues in 2012 andHass1% of our total revenues in 2012. The togl@ts in terms of revenue comprised
22% of Shoppers revenues in 2012 and 5% of ourr@ianues in 2012.

Sales and Marketing
We employ more than 270 commissioned sales repaaaars who develop both targeted and saturatieeréiding programs, both in print and

online, for clients. The sales organization pregidervice to national, regional and local advemishrough its telemarketing departments anc
field sales representatives. Shoppers
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clients vary from individuals with a single itenrfeale to local neighborhood advertisers to largétistocation advertisers. The weekly
number of ads is primarily driven by residentiastmmers, whereas revenues are primarily drivemimllsand midsize businesses. We also
focus our marketing efforts on larger national acts by emphasizing our ability to deliver satwatadvertising in defined zones, or even
partial zones for inserts, in combination with adiééng in the shopper publication.

Additional focus is placed on particular industhegegories through the use of sales specialidtese sales specialists are primarily used to
target automotive, real estate and employment sidees.

We utilize proprietary sales and marketing systtarenter client orders directly from the field, tiastly checking space availability, ad costs
and other pertinent information. These systenisiefitly facilitate the placement of advertisingammultiple-zoned editions and include built-
in error-reducing safeguards that aid in minimizoogtly sales adjustments. In addition to allowaalyertising information to be entered for
immediate publication, these systems feed a relaticlient database, enabling sales personneldesaclient history by designated variable
facilitate the identification of similar potentielients and to assist with timely follow-up on eiig clients.

Shoppers Facilities

Our shoppers are produced at owned or leasedtieiin the markets they serve. At December 3122&e had four production facilities —
three in Southern California (Brea, Mira Loma andt&) and one in Northern California (Rancho Coajouin the third quarter of 2013 the
Northern California production facility will be cded, and production of the Northern California mailon will be shared among the thi
Southern California production facilities.

The Southern California production facilities afsmse our telemarketing sales groups and admitigrainctions. We also operate several
executive suite type offices in areas we serve.

For more information please refer to Item 2, “Pntigs.”
Competition

Our Shoppers business competes for advertisingeligs for readers, with other print and electcamiedia. Competition comes from local anc
regional newspapers, magazines, radio, broadestlite and cable television, other shopperswBbsites, social media, other
communications media and other printed advertigieglia that operate in our markets. The extentahgre of such competition are, in large
part, determined by the location and demograpHitiseomarkets targeted by a particular advertiserthe number of media alternatives in
those markets. Failure to continually improve current processes, advance and upgrade our tegynabplications, and develop new
products and services in a timely and cost-effeathanner, could result in the loss of our clieatsurrent or future competitors. In addition,
failure to gain market acceptance of new productsservices, and in geographic areas, could adyeaffect our growth. We believe that our
production systems and technology, which enable psiblish separate editions in narrowly targeteaes, our local ad content, and our
integrated online offering allow us to compete effifecly, particularly in large markets with high dia fragmentation. However, our business
results may be adversely impacted by competitPlease refer to Item 1A, “Risk Factors”, for adutil information regarding risks related to
competition.

Seasonality
Historically, the second and third quarters haventte highest revenue quarters for our Shoppesisdss. Revenues from the last two

publication dates in December and the first twthtee publication dates in January each year hage bffected by a slowdown in advertising
by businesses and individuals after the holidays.
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U.S. AND FOREIGN GOVERNMENT REGULATIONS

As a company with business activities around thddyave are subject to a variety of domestic aridrimational legal and regulatory
requirements that impact our business, includiogekample, regulations governing consumer praiaand unfair business practices,
contracts, ecommerce, intellectual property, lavat employment, securities, tax, and other lawsatreagenerally applicable to commercial
activities.

We are also subject to, or affected by, numeroumsadtic and foreign laws, regulations and industapdards that regulate direct marketing
activities, including those that address priva@tadsecurity and unsolicited marketing communicestioExamples of some of these laws and
regulations that may be applied to, or affect, lmusiness or the businesses of our clients incleddlowing:

Federal and state laws governing the use of tleeriat and regulating telemarketing, including th&.WControlling the Assault of
Non-Solicited Pornography and Marketing Act of 2@GAN-SPAM), which regulates commercial email and requirat commerci:
emails give recipients an opt-out method. The @mmaFighting Internet and Wireless Spam Act applg comparable manner for
our activities in Canada. Telemarketing activities regulated by, among other requirements, tderaéTrade Commission’s
Telemarketing Sales Rule (TSR), the Federal Comaations Commissios’ Telephone Consumer Protection Act (TCPA) andous
state do-not-call laws.

The U.S. Department of Commerce’s proposed Dyndri@acy Framework, the Federal Trade Commissiondédeting Consumer
Privacy in an Era of Rapid Change policy and theopean Commission’s proposed changes to the Eundgei@n’s Data Protection
framework, each of which seeks to address conspmeacy, data protection and technological advarer@siin relation to the
collection or use of personal information.

A significant number of states in the U.S. havespdsrersions of security breach notification lawisich generally require timely
notifications to affected persons in the eventaihdsecurity breaches or other unauthorized atoesstain types of protected
personal data.

The Fair Credit Reporting Act (FCRA), which goveramong other things, the sharing of consumer tépformation, access to
credit scores, and requirements for users of coasueport information.

The Financial Services Modernization Act of 1999Goamm-Leach-Bliley Act (GLB), which, among othings, regulates the use
for marketing purposes of non-public personal fmahinformation of consumers that is held by fipih institutions. Although Harte-
Hanks is not considered a financial institution nyaf our clients are subject to the GLB. The GdlBo includes rules relating to the
physical, administrative and technological protf non-public personal financial information.

The Health Insurance Portability and Accountabifist of 1996 (HIPAA), which regulates the use ofgmnal health information for
marketing purposes and requires reasonable safégdasigned to prevent intentional or unintentiarsa or disclosure of protected
health information.

The Fair and Accurate Credit Transactions Act &f2(FACT Act), which amended the FCRA and requiaesong other things,
consumer credit report notice requirements foritwesithat use consumer credit report informatimeannection with riskeased cred
pricing actions and also prohibits a businessregives consumer information from an affiliatenfrasing that information for
marketing purposes unless the consumer is firstiged a notice and an opportunity to direct thefess not to use the information
for such marketing purposes, subject to certairgtans.

10
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»  The European Union (EU) data protection laws, iditig the comprehensive EU Directive on Data Praiadl995), which imposes
a number of obligations with respect to use of peatdata, and includes a prohibition on the tmnsf personal information from the
EU to other countries that do not provide consumatts an “adequate” level of privacy or securibthelEU standard for adequacy is
generally stricter and more comprehensive thandhtite U.S. and most other countries.

There are additional consumer protection, privawy @ata security regulations in the U.S. and irotountries in which we or our clients do
business. These laws regulate the collection,diselosure and retention of personal data andmegyire consent from consumers and grant
consumers other rights, such as the ability to ssteeir personal data and to correct informatioiiné possession of data controllers. We anc
many of our clients also belong to trade assoaiatibat impose guidelines that regulate direct etarg activities, such as the Direct Marke
Association’s Commitment to Consumer Choice.

As a result of increasing public awareness andestén individual privacy rights, data protectiamformation security and environmental and
other concerns regarding marketing communicatifatieral, state and foreign governmental and ingustyanizations continue to consider
new legislative and regulatory proposals that wanldose additional restrictions on direct marketegvices and products. Examples include
data encryption standards, data breach notificaggnirements, consumer choice and consent réstrscand increased penalties against
offending parties, among others. In 2012, sewvaeahbers of the U.S. Congress (in coordination thiéhFederal Trade Commission and
consumer advocacy groups) initiated several ingsiregarding data brokerage, one of which wasteéudo us (among others). We anticipate
that additional inquiries will be made, and thatpgmsals will continue to be introduced in the fetlsome of which may be adopted.

In addition, our business may be affected by thasich of these restrictions on our clients and tingrketing activities. These additional
regulations could increase compliance requiremamtisrestrict or prevent the collection, managemeggregation, transfer, use or
dissemination of information or data that is cuthelegally available. Additional regulations malg@ restrict or prevent current practices
regarding unsolicited marketing communicationsr &@ample, many states have considered implemedtrgpt-mail legislation that could
impact our Direct Marketing and Shoppers busineasdshe businesses of our clients and customeraddition, continued public interest in
individual privacy rights and data security mayules the adoption of further voluntary industryidelines that could impact our direct
marketing activities and business practices.

We cannot predict the scope of any new legislatiegulations or industry guidelines or how courtsyrmterpret existing and new laws.
Additionally, enforcement priorities by governmdrdathorities may change and also impact our bssie&her directly or through requiring
our customers to alter their practices. Compliamitle regulations is costly and time-consumingusrand our clients, and we may encounter
difficulties, delays or significant expenses in geation with our compliance. We may also be exgdsesignificant penalties, liabilities,
reputational harm and loss of business in the emtiwe fail to comply with applicable regulationiBhere could be a material adverse impact
on our business due to the enactment or enforceofiéegislation or industry regulations, the issceuwof judicial or governmental
interpretations, enforcement priorities of governtakagencies or a change in customs arising frobligpconcern over consumer privacy and
data security issues.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

Our intellectual property assets include trademaridservice marks that identify our company andpooducts and services, software and
other technology that we develop, our proprietajections of data and intellectual property licetidrom third parties, such as prospect list
providers. We generally seek to protect our ipt#lial property through a combination of licenseeaments and trademark, service mark,
copyright,
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patent and trade secret laws, and domain namdragias and enforcement procedures. We also ertteconfidentiality agreements with
many of our employees, vendors and clients and teekkit access to and distribution of intelledtpeoperty and other proprietary
information. We pursue the protection of our tradéks and other intellectual property in the UniBtdtes and internationally.

Despite our efforts to protect our intellectual peaty, unauthorized parties may attempt to copgterwise obtain and use our proprietary
information and technology. Monitoring unauthorizese of our intellectual property is difficult, andauthorized use of our intellectual
property may occur. We cannot be certain that patentrademark registrations will be issued, reor we be certain that any issued patents ol
trademark registrations will give us adequate mtide from competing products. For example, issp@@nts may be circumvented or
challenged and declared invalid or unenforceabladdition, others may develop competing technelogr databases on their own. Moreover
there is no assurance that our confidentiality exguents with our employees or third parties wilsbéficient to protect our intellectual property
and proprietary information.

We may also be subject to infringement claims agjais by third parties and may incur substantiatxand devote significant management
resources in responding to such claims. We atigaibd under some agreements to indemnify ourtslias a result of claims that we infringe
on the proprietary rights of third parties. Theests and diversions could cause our business ferstifany party asserts an infringement
claim, we may need to obtain licenses to the dexpiritellectual property. We cannot assure yowedwer, that we will be able to obtain these
licenses on commercially reasonable terms or tleatvill be able to obtain any licenses at all. Taufe to obtain necessary licenses or other
rights may have an adverse affect on our abilitgrtavide our products and services.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2012, Harte-Hanks employed aqimately 6,140 full-time employees and 270 partegiemployees, of which
approximately 2,040 are based outside of the WSroximately 5,210 full-time and 70 part-time eioyes were in the Direct Marketing
segment and 910 full-time and 200 part-time empdey®ere in the Shoppers segment. A portion ofaarkforce is provided to us through
staffing companies. None of the workforce is repreed by labor unions. We consider our relatiitis our employees to be good.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statemen$

This report, including the Management'’s Discussiod Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©pkrations (MD&A), contains
“forward-looking statements” within the meaningtbé federal securities laws. All such statemergsgaialified by this cautionary note, which
is provided pursuant to the safe harbor provismfrSection 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 (1988) and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 (1934 Act). Forward-lookigtements may also be included in our other pdlilgs, press releases, our website and
oral and written presentations by management.e®tts other than historical facts are forward-legland may be identified by words such
as “may,” “will,” “expects,” “believes,” “anticipas,” “plans,” “estimates,” “seeks,” “could,” “intels,” or words of similar meaning. Examples
include statements regarding (1) our strategiedritidtives, (2) adjustments to our cost structane other actions designed to respond to
market conditions and improve our performance,taedanticipated effectiveness and expenses assdeidith these actions, (3) our financial
outlook for revenues, earnings per share, operatitmne, expense related to equity-based compensatpital resources and other financial
items, (4) expectations for our businesses anthiindustries in which we operate, including witgard to the performance trends in our
Shoppers business and the impact of economic é¢onsliin the United States and other markets weesemthe marketing expenditures and
activities of our Direct Marketing clients and ppests, (5) competitive factors, (6) acquisition aedelopment plans, (7) our stock repurchase
program, (8) expectations regarding legal procegdand other contingent liabilities, and (9) otstatements regarding future events,
conditions or outcomes.

” o, ” o« ” W ” o« " ow ” o« ” ow

12




Table of Contents

These forwardeoking statements are based on current informaérpectations and estimates and involve risksertainties, assumptions a
other factors that are difficult to predict andttbauld cause actual results to vary materiallyfrohat is expressed in or indicated by the
forward-looking statements. In that event, ouritess, financial condition, results of operationsiquidity could be materially adversely
affected, and investors in our securities coule jpart or all of their investments. Some of thésles, uncertainties, assumptions and other
factors can be found in our filings with the SEGluding the factors discussed below in this Itefn “Risk Factors”, and any updates thereto
in our Forms 10-Q. The forward-looking statemeéntsuded in this report and those included in atineo public filings, press releases, our
website and oral and written presentations by mamagt are made only as of the respective datesahend we undertake no obligation to
update publicly any forward-looking statement iis tteport or in other documents, our website of stiatements for any reason, even if new
information becomes available or other events ogtthre future.

In addition to the information set forth elsewhar¢his report, including in the MD&A section, tiiectors described below should be
considered carefully in making any investment denswith respect to our securities. The risks dbed below are not the only ones we face
or may face in the future. Additional risks and ertainties that are not presently anticipated at tie may currently believe are immaterial
could also impair our business operations and &izduperformance.

We face significant competition for individual pregts, entire client relationships and advertisinglirs in general.

Our Direct Marketing business faces significant petition in all of its offerings and within eachité vertical markets. Direct marketing is a
dynamic business, subject to rapid technologicahgle, high turnover of client personnel who makgrmidecisions, client consolidations,
changing client needs and preferences, continwadldpment of competing products and services anglatving competitive landscape. This
competition comes from numerous local, national iatetnational direct marketing and advertising pamies, and client internal resources,
against whom we compete for individual projectdirerclient relationships and marketing expendiusg clients and prospective clients. We
also compete against print and electronic mediactimel forms of advertising for marketing and atigérg dollars in general. In addition, our
ability to attract new clients and to retain exigtclients may, in some cases, be limited by digmlicies on or perceptions of conflicts of
interest. These policies can prevent us from perifg similar services for competing products ompanies. Our Shoppers business comj
for advertising, as well as for readers, with otbent and electronic media. Competition comes ftooal and regional newspapers, magazine
radio, broadcast, satellite and cable televisitimeioshoppers, the internet, other communicatioadianand other advertising printers that
operate in our markets. The extent and natureaf sompetition are, in large part, determinedhgylocation and demographics of the mar
targeted by a particular advertiser and the nuraberedia alternatives in those markets. Our faillarimprove our current processes or to
develop new products and services could resuliéridss of our clients to current or future compesi In addition, failure to gain market
acceptance of new products and services could selyeaffect our growth.

Current and future competitors may have significayngreater financial and other resources than we,dmd they may sell competing
products and services at lower prices or at lowesffi margins, resulting in pressures on our pricesd margins.

The sizes of our competitors vary widely acrosskaaand service segments. Therefore, some ofmupetitors may have significantly
greater financial, technical, marketing or othesorgces than we do in one or more of our markansegs, or overall. As a result, our
competitors may be in a position to respond moiekiyithan we can to new or emerging technologies éhanges in customer requirements,
or may devote greater resources than we can tetelopment, promotion, sale and support of praact services. Moreover, new
competitors or alliances among our competitors eragrge and potentially reduce our market sharente or margins. Some of our
competitors also may choose to sell products aices competitive to ours at lower prices by acogpiower margins and profitability, or mi
be able to sell products or services competitiveuis at lower prices given proprietary ownersHigata, technical superiority or economies of
scale. Price reductions or pricing pressure bycouamnpetitors could negatively impact our marging easults
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of operations, and could also harm our ability bta new customers on favorable terms. Competjtivcing pressures tend to increase in
difficult economic environments, such as the curemvironments in the United States and other emie®sy due to reduced marketing
expenditures of many of our clients and prospeutsthe resulting impact on the competitive busiressronment for marketing service
providers such as our company.

We must maintain technological competitiveness, tinnally improve our processes and develop and aatuce new products and services in
a timely and cost-effective manner.

We believe that our success depends on, amongtbihgs, maintaining technological competitivenessur Direct Marketing and Shoppers
products, processing functionality and softwardesys and services. Technology changes rapidiyttaré are continuous improvements in
computer hardware, network operating systems, progting tools, programming languages, operatingesyst database technology and the
use of the internet. Advances in information tetbgy may result in changing client preferencespimducts and product delivery formats in
our industry. We must continually improve our m@sses and provide new products and services imedytiand cost-effective manner though
development, license or acquisition to match ounpetitors’ technological developments and compepirtgluct/service offerings, and to
satisfy the increasingly sophisticated requiremehtaur clients. We may be unable to successidéyntify, develop and bring new and
enhanced services and products to market in aytiamel coskeffective manner, such services and products mapaoommercially successf
and services, products and technologies developethiers may render our services and products mopettive or obsolete.

Our success depends on our ability to consisteatiyl effectively deliver our products and servicesour clients.

Our success depends on our ability to effectively eonsistently staff and execute client engagesnaithin the agreed upon timeframe and
budget. Depending on the needs of our clientsPingrct Marketing engagements may require custatioizaintegration and coordination of a
number of complex product and service offerings exetution across many of our facilities worldwiddoreover, in some of our
engagements, we rely on subcontractors and otldrghrties to provide a portion of our overall\dees, and we cannot guarantee that these
third parties will effectively deliver their senés or that we will have adequate recourse agdinrsetthird parties in the event they fail to
effectively deliver their services. Other contingies and events outside of our control may alqmathour ability to provide our products and
services. Our failure to effectively and timelgf§t coordinate and execute our client engagenraatsadversely impact existing client
relationships, the amount or timing of paymentsfrmur clients, our reputation in the marketplace ability to secure additional business and
our resulting financial performance. In additiony contractual arrangements with our Direct Mangetlients and other customers may not
provide us with sufficient protections against ilaifor lost profits or other claims for damages.

If our new leaders are unsuccessful, or if we ldeey management and are unable to attract and rettie talent required for our busines
our operating results could suffer.

Our prospects depend in large part upon our alidigttract, train and retain experienced techniant services, sales, consulting, research
and development, marketing, administrative and mement personnel. While the demand for personrdg#pendent on employment levels,
competitive factors and general economic conditigoslified personnel historically have been inagrdemand. The loss or prolonged abst
of the services of these individuals could haveatenial adverse effect on our business, finan@altjpn or operating results. In addition, we
have recently replaced the leaders of our Direatkiting and Shoppers divisions, and reorganizecpearational structures. If our new
leaders fail to successfully adapt to their nevesand responsibilities in our reorganized busiresmd more generally if we are unable to
attract new leaders with the necessary skills thagea our business — our business and its openasuits may suffer.
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We have recently experienced, and may experienciéfuture, reduced demand for our products and\sees and increased bad debt
expense because of general economic conditions fithencial conditions and marketing budgets of ogtients and other factors that may
impact the industry verticals that we serve.

Economic downturns and turmoil severely affectrtfeketing services industry. Throughout the mesent recession, as in prior economic
downturns, our customers responded to weak econconiditions by reducing their marketing budgetsicltare generally discretionary in
nature and easier to reduce in the short-termdkizar expenses. Our customers may be slow toresteir marketing budgets to prior levels
during a recovery, and may respond similarly toeage economic conditions in the future. In additi@venues from our Shoppers business
are largely dependent on local advertising expeanektin the markets in which they operate. Sucleedjpures are substantially affected by the
strength of the local economies in those marketedDMarketing revenues are dependent on natioegipnal and international economies
business conditions. A lasting economic recessiamemic recovery in the U.S. or other marketstirch we operate (such as the recent
recession and recovery) could have material adweffgets on our business, financial position orrapeg results. Similarly, industry or
company-specific factors may negatively impactdients and prospective clients or their industraaxl in turn result in reduced demand for
our products and services, client insolvenciedectibn difficulties or bankruptcy preference aosaelated to payments received from our
clients. We may also experience reduced demanadesult of consolidation of clients and prospextilients in the industry verticals that we
serve. See “Management’s Discussion and Analyfdignancial Condition and Results of Operationsthis Form 10-K for additional
information about the adverse impact on our finalngérformance of the ongoing difficult economixieonment in the United States and othel
economies.

Our Shoppers business is geographically concentdad®d is greatly affected by the California economy

Our Shoppers business is concentrated exclusimeBalifornia. An economic downturn in Californisu¢h as the recent downturn), an anemi
recovery (such as the present recovery), or a ldisggster (such as a flood, hurricane, earthquekeher disaster or condition that disables our
facilities, immobilizes the USPS or causes a sigaift negative change in the economy of Califoonithe individual markets we serve) could
have a material adverse effect on our businesadial position or operating results.

Our business plan requires us to effectively maname costs. If we do not achieve our cost managetnarjectives, our financial results
could be adversely affected.

Our business plan and expectations for the futegeire that we effectively manage our cost strggtincluding our operating expenses and
capital expenditures across our operations. Texttent that we do not effectively manage our casis financial results may be adversely
affected in any economic climate and even moreusimg a prolonged recession, such as the recenbetc downturn in the United States ¢
elsewhere.

Privacy, information security and other direct magking regulatory requirements may prevent or impaiur ability to offer our products an
services

We are subject to and affected by numerous lawsilagons and industry standards that regulatetimarketing activities, including those t
address privacy, data protection, information secand marketing communications. Please refénéosection above entitled “U.S. and
Foreign Government Regulations” for additional imfi@tion regarding some of these regulations.

As a result of increasing public awareness andestén privacy rights, data protection and accie$srmation security, environmental
protection and other concerns, national and locgéghments and industry organizations regularlys@er and adopt new laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines that restrict or regutatirketing communications, services and produgsamples include data encryption
standards, data breach notification requiremeatgstration/licensing requirements (often with jeesnsumer choice, notice and consent
restrictions and penalties for infractions, amotigeos. We anticipate that additional restrictians regulations will continue to be proposed
and adopted in the future.
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In addition, our business may be affected by thasich of these restrictions and regulations on bents and their marketing activities. Curr
and future restrictions and regulations could iaseecompliance requirements and costs, and restqicevent the collection, management,
aggregation, transfer, use or dissemination ofrmédion, or change the requirements therefore $o exjuire other changes to our business o
that of our clients. Additional restrictions arejulations may limit or prohibit current practigegarding marketing communications. For
example, many states and countries have considepedmenting do not contact legislation that caupact our Direct Marketing and
Shoppers businesses and the businesses of ous @imhcustomers. In addition, continued publierigst in privacy rights, data protection anc
access, and information security may result inatth@ption of further industry guidelines that coimfigbact our direct marketing activities and
business practices.

We cannot predict the scope of any new laws, ruéggjlation or industry guidelines or how court@gencies may interpret current ones.
Additionally, enforcement priorities by governmdraathorities will change over time, which may inspaur business. Understanding the
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines applicablkepecific client multichannel engagements andssmany jurisdictions poses a significant
challenge, as such laws, rules, regulations angejoes are often inconsistent or conflicting, anel sometimes at odds with client objectives.
Our failure to properly comply with these regulgtoequirements and client needs may materiallyahersely affect our business. General
compliance with privacy, data protection and infatimn security obligations is costly and time-cangwg, and we may encounter difficulties,
delays or significant expenses in connection withampliance. We may be exposed to significamafties, liabilities, reputational harm &
loss of business in the event that we fail to cgmpVe could suffer a material adverse impact anbusiness due to the enactment or
enforcement of legislation or industry regulatiotin® issuance of judicial or governmental intertiens, changed enforcement priorities of
governmental agencies or a change in behaviongrfsbm public concern over privacy, data protetémd information security issues.

We could fail to adequately protect our intelleciyaroperty rights and may face claims for intellectl property infringement.

Our ability to compete effectively depends in gartthe protection of our technology, products, sexwand brands through intellectual
property right protections, including patents, aoglyts, database rights, trade secrets, tradenaadslomain name registrations and
enforcement procedures. The extent to which sigthsrcan be protected and enforced varies inriffigiurisdictions. Litigation involving
patents and other intellectual property rightsthesome far more common and expensive in recens yaad we face the risk of additional
litigation relating to our use or future use ofeliidctual property rights of third parties. Thipdsty infringement claims and any related litiga
against us could subject us to liability for danmggnificantly increase our costs, restrict wsrfrusing and providing our technologies,
products or services or operating our businessrgiyeor require changes to be made to our teagies, products and services. Please refer
to the section above entitled “Intellectual Prop&ights” for additional information regarding auatellectual property and associated risks.

Consumer perceptions regarding the privacy and sdétguof their data may prevent or impair our abilitto offer our products and services.

Various federal, state, foreign and industry rejoifes give consumers varying degrees of contrébdsw certain data regarding them is
collected, used and shared for marketing purpoedue to privacy, security or other concerngjsuamers exercise their ability to prevent or
limit such data collection, use or sharing, it nrapair our ability to provide direct marketing toose consumers and limit our clients’
requirements for our services. Additionally, pdyaand security concerns may limit consumers’ mghiess to voluntarily provide data to our
customers or marketing companies. Some of ouicgsrdepend on voluntarily provided data and maiyrpaired without such data.
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Our reputation and business results may be adverselpacted if we, or subcontractors upon whom wéyrelo not effectively protect
sensitive personal information of our clients andioclients’ customers.

Current privacy and data security laws and industaydards impact the manner in which we captuedle, analyze and disseminate custc
and prospect data as part of our client engagemémisiany instances, client contracts also manpliatacy and security practices. If we fail to
effectively protect and control sensitive persandrmation (such as personal health informatiatia security numbers or credit card
numbers) of our clients and their customers orgeots in accordance with these requirements, weintay significant expense, suffer
reputational harm and loss of business, and, itaicecases, be subjected to regulatory or govertahsanctions or litigation. These risks may
be increased due to our reliance on subcontraatatother third parties in providing a portion of @verall services in certain engagements.
We cannot guarantee that these third parties ¥@tgvely protect and handle sensitive personfdrimation or other confidential information,
or that we will have adequate recourse againsetttesd parties in that event.

We may not be able to adequately protect our infation systems.

Our ability to protect our information systems aghidamage from a data loss, security breach, heman malfeasance, computer virus, fire,
power loss, telecommunications failure or otheaslier is critical to our future success. Some eféhsystems may be outsourced to third-part
providers from time to time. Any damage to our imfation systems that causes interruptions in oaraions or a loss of data could affect out
ability to meet our clients’ requirements, whichultbhave a material adverse effect on our busirfess)cial position or operating results.
While we take precautions to protect our informatystems, such measures may not be effectivepdsting measures may become
inadequate because of changes in future conditidittough we maintain insurance which may respncover some types of damages
incurred by breaches of (or problems with) our infation systems, such insurance is limited and msipe, and may not respond or be
sufficient to prevent such damage from materiadlynhing our business.

Breaches of security, or the perception that ecomaeeis not secure, could severely harm our businass reputation.

Business-to-business and business-to-consumerad@ctommerce requires the secure transmissiaomidential information over public
networks. Some of our products and services aresaed through the internet. Security breachesrinaxtion with the delivery of our
products and services, or well-publicized seclWigaches that may affect us or our industry, ssattegabase intrusion, could be severely
detrimental to our business, operating resultsfemashcial condition. We cannot be certain thataathbes in criminal capabilities, new
discoveries in the field of cryptography or othewdlopments will not compromise or breach the tetdgy protecting the information systems
that access our products, services and propridetgbase information.

Data suppliers could withdraw data that we rely on fouoproducts and services.

We purchase or license much of the data we ugeere could be a material adverse impact on owdDilarketing business if owners of the
data we use were to withdraw or cease to allowsactethe data or materially restrict the authariases of their data. Data providers could
withdraw their data if there is a competitive reasm do so, if there is pressure from the conswoarmunity or if additional legislation is
passed restricting the use of the data. We algaup®n data from other external sources to maindair proprietary and non-proprietary
databases, including data received from custonmetvarious government and public record sourcesslibstantial number of data providers
or other key data sources were to withdraw or ictgtreir data, if we were to lose access to dagtd government regulation, or if the
collection of data becomes uneconomical, our ghiditprovide products and services to our clientdd be materially adversely affected,
which could result in decreased revenues, net iecana earnings per share.

We must successfully evaluate acquisition targetsl antegrate acquisitions.
We frequently evaluate acquisition opportunitiegexpand our product and service offerings and ggadc locations, including potential
international acquisitions. Acquisition activitiessen if not consummated, require substantial arsoof management time and can distract

from normal operations. In addition, we may
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be unable to achieve the profitability goals, sgmes and other objectives initially sought in asifions, and any acquired assets, data or
businesses may not be successfully integratecbuntoperations. Acquisitions may result in the @nment of relationships with employees
and customers. Moreover, although we review amdyaa assets or companies we acquire, such redsnwsubject to uncertainties and may
not reveal all potential risks, and we may incuanticipated liabilities and expenses as a resuluofacquisition activities. The failure to
identify appropriate candidates, to negotiate falate terms, or to successfully integrate futureugsitjons into existing operations could result
in not achieving planned revenue growth and coelgatively impact our net income and earnings paresh

We are vulnerable to increases in paper prices.

Newsprint prices are subject to fluctuations. Wantain, on average, less than 75 days of papentovy for our Shoppers business and dt
purchase our paper pursuant to long-term paperaxiat Because we have a limited ability to protegselves from increases in the price of
paper or to pass increased costs along to ourtglidrese increases could materially affect theliesf our operations. Likewise, increased
paper costs could also cause our Direct Marketirsgorners to reduce spending on other marketingranog; or to shift to media which are |
profitable for us, in each case potentially mathriaffecting our revenues and profits.

We are vulnerable to increases in postal rates aliskuptions in postal services.

Our Shoppers and Direct Marketing services depeniti® USPS and other commercial delivery servigetketiver products. Our Shoppers are
delivered by saturation mail, and postage is thgelst expense in our Shoppers business. Standsrage rates have increased in recent year
(most recently in April 2011, January 2012 and 3dan2013) and may continue to do so at frequentapdedictable intervals. Shoppers’
postage rates increased by less than 1.0% asltokthe April 2011 rate increase, increased bgragimately 2.1% as a result of the

January 2012 rate increase, and will increase pyoagmately 2.8% as a result of the January 20i8ircrease. The January 2013 postags
increase, and any additional future changes inagestates will affect Shoppers’ distribution cogeastage rates also influence the demand fc
our Direct Marketing services even though the obshailings is typically borne by our clients arsdniot directly reflected in our revenues or
expenses. Accordingly, future postal increasedissuptions in the operations of the USPS may lzavadverse impact on us.

The USPS has had significant financial and opematiohallenges recently. In reaction, the USPSnagosed many changes in its services,
such as delivery frequency and facility accessceR#ly, the USPS announced it would end househalldaty on Saturdays starting in

August 2013. At this point we do not believe th@@unced or proposed changes will have a matengdét on our business. Additional
changes, individually or in combination with otmearket factors, could materially and negativelyeeffour costs and ability to meet our clients
expectations.

Our financial results could be negatively impactegt impairments of goodwill or other intangible agsewith indefinite useful lives .

In the second quarter of 2012 we recorded an immit charge of $165.3 million related to goodwildeother intangible assets in our
Shoppers business as a result of continuing reveéaclines, the poor economic conditions in the gaoigies in which we operated, and
management’s evaluation of the business. Exclutfiad-lorida Shoppers operations (which were sbtieend of 2012 and are included in
discontinued operations), the total impairment ghaelated to our Shoppers business was $156.@milAs of December 31, 2012, the net
book value of our goodwill and other intangiblepressented approximately $414.0 million out of aiat assets of $706.2 million. We
continue to test goodwill and other intangible &ésséth indefinite useful lives for impairment aSMovember 30 of each year and on an
interim date should factors or indicators becomeaagnt that would require an interim test. A dowanvrevision in the fair value of either of
our reporting units or any of the other intangia$sets could result in additional impairments amatcash charges. Any such impairment
charges could have a significant negative effeabwmreported net income.

18




Table of Contents
Our indebtedness may adversely impact our abild@yreact to changes in our business or changes ing®l economic conditions.

The amount of our indebtedness and the terms wmdieh we have borrowed money under our credit itéesl or other agreements could have
important consequences for our business. Ouratsl@nants require that we maintain certain findmigasures and ratios. As a result of tl
covenants and ratios, we may be limited in the maimwhich we can conduct our business, and we lpeaynable to engage in favorable
business activities or finance future operationsagpital needs. A failure to comply with thesenieBons or to maintain the financial measures
and ratios contained in the debt agreements cealdlfo an event of default that could result imeeeleration of outstanding indebtedness. In
addition, the amount and terms of our indebtednesi:

« limit our flexibility in planning for, or reactingp, changes in our business and the industriesiohwmve operate, including limiting
our ability to invest in our strategic initiativeend, consequently, place us at a competitive dasdge;

e reduce the availability of our cash flows that wbatherwise be available to fund working capitapital expenditures, acquisitions
and other general corporate purposes; and

« resultin higher interest expense in the evenhofadases in interest rates, as discussed below tUntkrest rate increases could affect
our results of operations, cash flows and finangdsition.”

We may incur additional indebtedness in the fuaurd, if new debt is added to our current debt Ewéle above risks could be increased.
Interestrate increases could affect our results of operat# cash flows and financial position.

Interest rate movements in Europe and the UnitateSttan affect the amount of interest we payeélat our debt and the amount we earn on
cash equivalents. Our primary interest rate exposUto interest rate fluctuations in Europe, #ipmdly Eurodollar rates, due to their impact
interest related to our credit facilities. As at@@mber 31, 2012, we had $110.3 million of debstamding, all of which bore variable interest
rates. Our results of operations, cash flows amahtial position could be materially adverselyeatéd by significant increases in interest
rates. We also have exposure to interest rateuitions in the United States, specifically moneyrket, commercial paper and overnight time
deposit rates, as these affect our earnings orssxash. Even with the offsetting increase iningson excess cash in the event of an interes
rate increase, we cannot be assured that futieeesttrate increases will not have a material agvienpact on our business, financial position
or operating results.

Our international operations subject us to riskssaiated with operations outside the U.S.

Harte-Hanks Direct Marketing conducts businessidetsf the United States. During 2012, approxinyai®.3% of Harte-Hanks Direct
Marketing’s revenues and 11.6% of Harte-Hanks t@@atnues were derived from operations outsid&Jtiieed States, primarily Europe, Asia
and South America. We may expand our internatiopafations in the future as part of our growthtstyy. Accordingly, our future operating
results could be negatively affected by a varidtfaotors, some of which are beyond our contrad|uding:

»  social, economic and political instability;

» changes in U.S. and foreign governmental legalirements or policies resulting in burdensome gowesnt controls, tariffs,
restrictions, embargoes or export license requirgsye

* inflation;

« the potential for nationalization of enterprises;

» less favorable labor laws that may increase empémgroosts and decrease workforce flexibility;

. potentially adverse tax treatment;

» less favorable foreign intellectual property lawattwould make it more difficult to protect ouretiectual properties from
appropriation by competitors;

e more onerous or differing data privacy and secugtjuirements or other marketing regulations;

» longer payment cycles for sales in foreign coustrand

» the costs and difficulties of managing internatiaszerations.
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In addition, exchange rate movements may have padtron our future costs or on future cash flowsifforeign investments. We have not
entered into any foreign currency forward exchacmy@racts or other derivative instruments to hetigeeffects of adverse fluctuations in
foreign currency exchange rates. The various tisksare inherent in doing business in the UnBtates are also generally applicable to doing
business outside of the United States, and mayx&ggerated by the difficulty of doing business imerous sovereign jurisdictions due to
differences in culture, laws and regulations.

We must maintain effective internal controls.

In designing and evaluating our internal contralerdinancial reporting, we recognize that anyliné control or procedure, no matter how
well designed and operated, can provide only resslerassurance of achieving desired control objestand that no system of internal cont
can be designed to provide absolute assurancéeatigéness. If we fail to maintain a system déefive internal controls, it could have a
material adverse effect on our business, finammaltion or operating results. Additionally, adsepublicity related to a failure in our internal
controls over financial reporting could have a rizgaimpact on our reputation and business.

Fluctuation in our revenue and operating results drother factors may impact the volatility of ourcgtk price.

The price at which our common stock has trade@demt years has fluctuated greatly and has deddiig@ificantly. Our common stock price
may continue to be volatile due to a number ofdexincluding the following (some of which are bagour control):

» the impact and duration of the ongoing economicrdaw, overall strength of the United States aitioeconomies and general
market volatility;

e variations in our operating results from periogh&siod and variations between our actual operatsglts and the expectations of
securities analysts, investors and the financiairoonity;

e unanticipated developments with client engagemantiient demand, such as variations in the simdgbt, or progress toward the
completion of engagements, variability in the mademand for our services, client consolidations @re unanticipated termination
several major client engagements;

» announcements of developments affecting our buséses

» competition and the operating results of our coritqrat and

»  other factors discussed elsewhere in this Item“RAsk Factors”.

As a result of these and other factors, investomur common stock may not be able to resell ttegres at or above their original purchase
price.

War or terrorism could affect our business.

War and/or terrorism or the threat of war and/omtésm involving the United States could havegn#icant impact on our business, financial
position or operating results. War or the thrdavar could substantially affect the levels of adiggng expenditures by clients in each of our
businesses, whether due to economic declinesjoradb security risks or other factors. In adgltieach of our businesses could be affected
by operation disruptions and a shortage of supplieklabor related to such a war or threat of war.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our headquarters are located in San Antonio, Teabswe occupy approximately 8,000 square feetaddd office space at that location. Oul
business is conducted in facilities worldwide camitey aggregate space of approximately 2.8 milsgnare feet. Approximately 2.6 million
square feet are held under leases, which exptfatas through 2020. The balance of our propeui®=d in our Brea, California Shoppers
operations and Hasselt, Belgium Direct Marketingraions, are owned.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Information regarding legal proceedings is setfantNote JCommitments and Contingenciedf the “Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements” and is incorporated herein by reference

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable
PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOC KHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Common Stock
Our common stock is listed on the NYSE (symbol: HH®e reported high and low quarterly sales praceges for 2012 and 2011 were as
follows:

2012 2011

High Low High Low
First Quarter 10.2¢ 8.3( 13.74 11.77
Second Quarte 9.2t 8.0t 12.22 7.5¢
Third Quartel 9.81 6.1€ 8.9t 7.0C
Fourth Quarte 7.0z 5.14 9.94 7.74

We paid a quarterly dividend of 8.5 cents per sirmeach of the first three quarters of 2012 anadl dividends of 8.5 cents per share in the
fourth quarter of 2012. The second dividend paithe fourth quarter of 2012 was a one-time acagtar of the regular quarterly dividend we
would have ordinarily paid in the first quarter2if13. As a result, we do not anticipate payingvaldnd in the first quarter of 2013. We
currently plan to pay a quarterly dividend of 8ehits per share in each of the second, third amthfouarters of 2013, although any actual
dividend declaration can be made only upon approfvalr Board of Directors, based on its businadginent.

In 2011, quarterly dividends were paid at the dit®.0 cents per share.
As of January 31, 2013, there are approximatelg@Holders of record.

21




Table of Contents
Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The following table contains information about puirchases of equity securities during the fourtartgr of 2012:

Total Number Maximum
of Shares Dollar
Total Average Purchased Amount that
Number of Price as Part of May Yet Be
Shares Paid per a Publicly Spent Under
Period Purchased(2) Share Announced Plan(1) the Plan
October 1- 31, 2012 94,06: $ 6.9¢€ 90,00C $ 7,334,60.
November 1 30, 2012 0 $ 0 0 $ 7,334,60.
December 1 — 31, 2012 297,37¢ $ 5.84 297,37t % 5,597,03!
Total 391,44 $ 6.11 387,37t

(1) During the fourth quarter of 2012, we purchased, 383 shares of our common stock through our stepkinchase program that was
publicly announced in August 2012. Under this paog, from which shares can be purchased in the o@ket, our Board of Directors has
authorized us to spend up to $10.0 million to repase shares of our outstanding common stock.f Recember 31, 2012, we have
repurchased 700,284 shares and spent $4.6 milfidarthis authorization. Through December 31, 20@2had repurchased a total of
65,602,625 shares at an average price of $18.58haee under this program and previously annoupoegrams.

(2) Total number of shares purchased includes shémsy, purchased as part of our publicly annourstedk repurchase program, plus sh
withheld to pay applicable withholding taxes and éxercise price related to stock options, andeshaithheld to pay applicable withholding
taxes related to the vesting of nonvested shatgsuant to the Harte-Hanks, Inc. 2005 Omnibus IticerPlan.

Comparison of Stockholder Returns

The material under this heading is not “solicitingaterial,” is not deemed “filed” with the SEC, aii&lnot to be incorporated by reference into
any filing under the 1933 Act or the 1934 Act, mketmade before or after the date hereof and ireetipe of any general incorporation
language in such filing.

The following graph compares the cumulative togalim of our common stock during the period Decen3fie 2007 to December 31, 2012
with the Standard & Poor’s 500 Stock Index (S&P Hflex) and with our peer group.

Our peer group includes Acxiom Corporation, Alliaridata Systems Corporation, Cenveo, Inc., Condelid&raphics, Inc., Convergys Corp.,

Dun & Bradstreet Corporation, Equifax, Inc., Gartrliac., Informatica Corp., Interpublic Group of @panies, Inc., Meredith Corp., Sapient
Corp., Sykes Enterprises, Inc., Techtarget, Inala¥sis Communications, Inc., and ValueClick, Inc.

The S&P Index includes 500 United States compani#®e industrial, transportation, utilities anddncial sectors and is weighted by market
capitalization. The peer groups are also weightetharket capitalization.

The graph depicts the results of investing $108uincommon stock, the S&P 500 Index and the pemrgy at closing prices on December 31,
2007 and assumes the reinvestment of dividends.
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Comparison of Cumulative Five Year Total Return
$150
$100
550
$‘l} T T T T
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
—4—Haria-Hanks, Ing, —8—Z4F 500 Indsx —&—Peaer Group |
Base
Period Years Ending
Dec-07 Dec-08 Dec-09 Dec-10 Dec-11 Dec-12
Harte-Hanks, Inc. 10C 37.1: 66.4( 80.57 59.3¢ 40.9¢
S&P 500 Indey 10C 63.0( 79.67 91.6¢ 93.61 108.5¢
Peer Grouj 10C 61.3¢4 88.17 113.1° 112.0¢ 132.7¢
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth our summary histatiinancial information for the periods ended asdof the dates indicated. You should reac
the following historical financial information algrwith “Management’s Discussion and Analysis ofdficial Condition and Results of
Operations” contained in this Form 10-K. The fisgzar financial information included in the talelow for the years ended December 31,
2012, 2011, and 2010 is derived from audited firelrstatements contained in this Form 10-K. Infation for the years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008 was derived from previously filed AalnReports on Form 10-K. All financial informatipresented below excludes amounts
related to our Florida Shoppers operations, whiehevgold on December 31, 2012.

In thousands, except per share amount 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Statement of Comprehensive Income Data Reve $ 767,70¢ $ 811,63t $ 820,72( % 817,100 $ 1,021,59
Operating expenst

Labor, production and distributic 615,52° 649,34( 641,66: 635,06° 789,72

Advertising, selling, general and administrat 64,76" 65,60 64,07¢ 58,81 76,71

Impairment of goodwil 156,93t 0 0 0 0

Shoppers legal settleme 0 (1,260 0 6,95( 0

Depreciation and software amortizati 20,17¢ 19,62: 21,44 26,20: 31,47¢

Intangible amortization 24E 22¢ 29C 71€ 1,90
Total operating expenses 857,64¢ 733,53 727,47 727,74¢ 899,81
Operating income (loss) (89,940 78,09¢ 93,24¢ 89,35¢ 121,78(
Interest expense, n 3,48: 2,93¢ 2,62¢ 7,96¢ 13,82¢
Income (loss) from continuing operatic $ (73,109) $ 45877 $ 55,19 $ 50,96: $ 64,27¢
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations per

common shar—diluted $ (1.1¢) $ 0.7z $ 08¢ $ 08C $ 1.0C
Weighted-average common and common equivalent

shares outstandi—diluted 62,88’ 63,55 64,13¢ 63,88¢ 64,10:

Segment Dat

Revenue!

Direct Marketing $ 581,09. $ 614,27( $ 601,28. $ 585,98( $ 732,741

Shoppers 186,61¢ 197,36¢ 219,43 231,11¢ 288,85(

Total revenues $ 767,70¢ $ 811,63t $ 820,72( $ 817,100 $ 1,021,59

Operating income (los:

Direct Marketing $ 75,39¢ $ 83,49( $ 86,74t $ 95,81: $ 103,12:
Shopper: (152,610 5,83¢ 17,79¢ 5,571 30,347
General corporate (12,72§) (11,237 (11,297 (12,02§) (11,68¢)
Total operating income (loss) $ (89,940 $ 78,09¢ $ 93,24¢ $ 89,35! $ 121,78
Other Date
Cash dividends per she $ 04: $ 03z $ 03C $ 03C $ 0.3(
Capital expenditure $ 13,85¢ $ 20,97C $ 17,20. $ 8,82t $ 19,50¢
Balance sheet data (at end of peri
Current assel $ 225,500 $ 271,63t $ 264,95¢ $ 253,17 $ 235,30°
Property, plant and equipment, | 61,97: 68,89: 69,27¢ 74,26( 91,42¢
Goodwill and other intangibles, n 413,97: 571,15! 571,38 558,40¢ 559,11¢
Total asset 706,21: 916,32! 909,80« 889,68 889,74
Total debi 110,25( 179,43t 193,00( 239,68t 270,62
Total stockholder equity $ 328,16: $ 446,35' $ 437,820 $ 401,64: $ 356,37:
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Cautionary Note About Forward-Looking Statements

This report, including this Management’s Discussaod Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©gpkrations (MD&A), contains
“forward-looking statementsiithin the meaning of the federal securities latssuch statements are qualified by the cautiomaote include:
under Item 1A above, which is provided pursuarnhtsafe harbor provisions of Section 27A of th@3L8ct and Section 21E of the 1934 A
Actual results may vary materially from what is eegsed in or indicated by the forward-looking statats.

Overview

The following MD&A section is intended to help theader understand the results of operations aaddial condition of Harte-Hanks, Inc.
(Harte-Hanks). This section is provided as a suppit to, and should be read in conjunction with,fmancial statements and the
accompanying notes to the financial statements.

HarteHanks is a worldwide direct and targeted marketiognpany that provides multichannel direct and dlgitarketing services and shop
advertising opportunities to a wide range of locagjional, national and international consumer launginess-tdsusiness marketers. We man
our operations through two operating segmentseddiMarketing and Shoppers.

Our Direct Marketing services offer a wide variefyintegrated, multichannel, data-driven solutifmstop brands around the globe. We help
our clients gain insight into their customers’ bébes from their data and use that insight to @réahovative multichannel marketing programs
to deliver a return on marketing investment. Wkele our clients’ success is determined not oiyiynbw good their tools are, but how well
we help them use the tools to gain insight andyaeatheir consumers. This results in a strongearduiring relationship between our clients
and their customers.

We offer a full complement of capabilities and nes@s to provide a broad range of marketing sesvaecel data management software, in
media from direct mail to email, including:

e agency and digital services;

» database marketing solutions;

e data quality software and services with Trilliunfi@are;

*  business-to-business lead generation;

o direct mail and fulfillment; and

e contact centers.

In 2012, our Direct Marketing segment had reverofe&581.1 million, which represented 76% of ouataevenues.

Harte-Hanks Shoppers is North America’s largestewaperator and distributor of shopper publicatjdrased on weekly circulation and
revenues. Shoppers are weekly advertising pulditsit7 by 10 inches in size, distributed free bgn8ard Mail to households and businesses
in a particular geographic area. Through print digital offerings, Shoppers is a trusted localrsedor saving customers money and helping
businesses grow. Shoppers offer advertisers arggloigally targeted, cost-effective local adventissystem, with virtually 100% penetration
in their area of distribution. Shoppers are pattidy effective in large markets with high mediagmentation in which major metropolitan
newspapers generally have low penetration. Oupfdrs segment also provides online advertisingodimer services through our website,
PennySaverUSA.co®, as well as business websites and search—enginieting. Our websites are online advertisingadsytringing

buyers and sellers together through our onlinerioifis, such as local classifieds, business listingapons, special offers and PowerSites.
PowerSites are templated websites for our custqroptenized to help small and medium-sized busimeasers establish a web presence and
improve their lead generation. At December 31,120de were publishing approximately 5,600 PowegSiteekly.
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On December 31, 2012 we sold the assets of ouidBl&hoppers operations, The Flyef@r, gross proceeds of $2.0 million, subject to wagl
capital adjustments. This transaction resulteghimftertax loss of $2.7 million. Because the Florida Syerp represent a distinct business
with operations and cash flows that can clearlgisénguished, both operationally and for finangiatposes, from the rest of Harte-
Hanks, Inc., the results of the Florida Shoppeesaiions are reported as discontinued operatiaralifperiods presented. Results of the
remaining Harte-Hanks, Inc. business segmentsea@ted as continuing operations.

After this sale, Harte-Hanks Shoppers no longeramgsoperations or circulation in the state of idar All of our Shopper operations are now
located in California, and our California publicats now account for all of Shoppers weekly cirgalat As of December 31, 2012, Shoppers
delivered approximately 9.1 million shopper paclsamesix major markets each week, covering Southeemtral and Northern California.

In 2012, our Shoppers segment, excluding the FdBldoppers, had revenues of $186.6 million, whegesented 24% of our total revenues.
We derive revenues from the sale of direct markesgrvices and shopper advertising services.

As a worldwide business, Direct Marketing is aféetby general national and international economitlzusiness conditions. Marketing
budgets are often more discretionary in nature,aaadeasier to reduce in the short-term than @kgenses in response to weak economic
conditions. Direct Marketing revenues are alse@#d by the economic fundamentals of each indtsatywe serve, various market factors,
including the demand for services by our clients] the financial condition of and budgets availablspecific clients, among other factors.
We remain committed to making the investments resgggo execute our multichannel strategy while atentinuing to adjust our cost
structure to reduce costs in the parts of the legsithat are not growing as fast. We believe thesens will improve our profitability in future
periods.

Prior to the sale of our Florida Shoppers in 2@i2,Shoppers business operated in regional marketsth California and Florida and was
greatly affected by the strength of the state acdlleconomies. Revenues from our Shoppers bssimer® largely dependent on local
advertising expenditures in the areas of Califoamd Florida in which we operated. During 2012, poor economic conditions that we have
experienced since the second half of 2007 in Qaliéoand Florida continued. These conditions virsitaally created by weakness in the real
estate and associated financing markets and hagadspnd persist across virtually all categorigs.a result of managemestevaluation of th
Shoppers business, we recorded a $165.3 milliomimment loss in the second quarter of 2012 reladeshoppers’ goodwill and other
intangible assets. Excluding the Florida Shoppperations, the total impairment charge relatealitcShoppers business was $156.9 million.
We see some improvement in the California econdmywe expect to have further challenges beforgpetiormance improves. In response,
during 2012, we continued our efforts to reduceeases in the Shoppers business, primarily througéinizational restructuring, and the
discontinuance of a number of unprofitable digitétiatives, including SaverTime and mobile appge also made plans to close our
production facility in Northern California in 2013Ne continue to invest in online offerings, partarly our PowerSites, where we are seeing
good revenue growth and are adding capabilitiespitmvide value for our readers and advertiserd,iamther profitable digital initiatives. We
believe the steps we are taking to improve oveféitiency, combined with our continued investmentsligital initiatives, will improve our
Shoppers performance in the long term.

Our principal operating expense items are labostgge and transportation.
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Results of Continuing Operations

As discussed in Note Bjscontinued Operationswe sold the assets of our Florida Shoppers dpesabn December 31, 2012. Therefore, the
operating results of our Florida Shoppers, inclgdime loss on the sale, are being reported asrtisced operations in the Consolidated
Financial Statements, and are excluded from managesrdiscussion and analysis of financial condiamd results of operations below.

Operating results from continuing operations, direarketing and California shoppers, were as fodlow

In thousands excep

per share amounts 2012 % Change 2011 % Change 2010

Revenue: $ 767,70¢ 54 3% 811,63t 1.1 0% 820,72(
Operating expenses 857,64 16.€ 733,53 0.8 727,47
Operating income (loss) $ (89,94() 215 % 78,09¢ -16.z $ 93,24¢
Income (loss) from continuing operations ~ $ (73,109 -259.. $ 45,87: -16.¢  $ 55,19¢
Diluted EPS from continuing operations $ (1.16) -261.1 $ 0.72 -16.2 $ 0.8€

Year ended December 31, 2012 vs. Year ended Decesthib2011

Revenue

Consolidated revenues decreased $43.9 million767 ¥ million, in 2012 compared to 2011. Our olleesults reflect decreased revenues of
$33.2 million, or 5.4%, from our Direct Marketinggment and decreased revenues of $10.7 millios.486, from our Shoppers segment.
Direct Marketing results reflect the impact of egk, long standing retail customer which changedniarketing strategy to emphasize broad
at the expense of direct mail. Direct Marketingenenced decreased revenues from all of our adstigvith the hightech vertical representir
the largest dollar decrease. Shoppersenue performance reflects the continued imgreattthe difficult economic environment in Califoarig
having on our Shoppers business. The decreasgénues was the result of decreased sales inish@bmarkets, including declines from
most revenue categories. Revenues from in-bookréiding decreased at a higher rate than revemassdistribution products. Shoppers
revenues increased from the automotive, consunegrdépg and communications sectors, and decreasettire services and real estate
sectors.

Operating Expenses

Overall operating expenses were $857.6 milliondh2 compared to $733.5 million in 2011. This $124illion increase was a result of the
impairment charge of $156.9 million discussed abd¥ecluding this impairment charge, operating egas decreased $32.8 million, or 4.5%,
compared to 2011. This $32.8 million decreasepierating expenses was driven by decreased opertpenses in Direct Marketing of $25.1
million, or 4.7%, and decreased operating expea&89.2 million, or 4.8%, in Shoppers , partialffset by an increase in general corporate
expense of $1.5 million, or 13.3%. The decread@iraict Marketing was primarily due to decreasetbourced costs resulting from decreased
outsourced volumes, decreased mail supply chats cesulting from decreased volumes, and reductiohsadcount, temporary labor,
incentive compensation and commissions, all asatref revenue performance. The decrease at $hepgas due to decreased severance
costs, decreased stock-based compensation, lowelpzosts due to lower ad sales and headcounictamhs, decreases in newsprint and job
paper expenses due to declines in volumes, ded&askdebt expense and decreased facility leasnegp The overall decrease at Shoppers
was partially offset by costs accrued for the clesaf the Northern California production facilitggal accrual reductions in 2011, an increase
in offload printing costs due to an increase intbetavolumes, an increase in postage costs dine tdanuary 2012 postage rate increase, an
increase in outsourced costs due to increasedwatmbvolumes, and the write-off of software redatie various digital initiatives. The
increase in general corporate expense was atthileuta increased pension expense resulting fromgusilower discount rate to calculate the
projected pension benefit obligation.
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Income/Earnings Per Share from Continuing Operai

We recorded a loss from continuing operations & $million, and diluted loss per share from couitigy operations of $1.16, in 2012.
Excluding the impairment loss, income from conthquoperations and diluted earnings per share framirtuing operations for 2012 would
have been $39.0 million and $0.62, respectivellgesE results, excluding the impairment loss, comfIamcome from continuing operation:
$45.9 million, and diluted earnings per share fiamtinuing operations of $0.72 in 2011. The desen income from continuing operations,
excluding the impairment loss, is primarily a regfldecreased operating income from both Directkdting and Shoppers, a gain on the sale
of land in 2011, changes in net foreign currenaypsaction gains and losses, and an increase inajjeoneporate expense.

Year ended December 31, 2011 vs. Year ended Decedhb2010

Revenue

Consolidated revenues decreased $9.1 million, 14 $3million, in 2011 compared to 2010. Our oviersults reflect increased revenues of
$13.0 million, or 2.2%, from our Direct Marketinggment and decreased revenues of $22.1 milliobQ A6, from our Shoppers segment.
The Direct Marketing results were affected by gdamone-time, voluntary recall project performedddong-time pharmaceutical customer
during the second half of 2010. Excluding the ltssfuiom this project, total Direct Marketing rewess increased $29.1 million, or 5.0% in
2011 compared to 2010. Direct Marketing experidrinereased revenues from our select, retail arahfiial verticals, which were partially
offset by decreased revenues from our healthcatdigin-tech vertical. The August 2010 acquisitidérinformation Arts also contributed to
the 2011 revenue growth. Shoppers revenue perfaren@flects the continued impact that the difiedonomic environment in California is
having on our Shoppers business. The decreasgénues was the result of decreased sales inish@dbmarkets, including declines in most
revenue categories.

Operating Expenses

Overall operating expenses increased 0.8%, to $#88lion, in 2011 compared to 2010. The ovenadirease in operating expenses was di
by increased operating expenses in Direct Markedfrfifl 6.2 million, or 3.2%. The Direct Marketimcrease was primarily due to increased
headcount to support revenues and improve our dsg¢afervice capabilities, higher mail supply cleaists on higher transportation volumes,
increased travel and increased employee recruifiiige acquisition of Information Arts also contried to the increase in Direct Marketing
operating expenses. Shoppers operating expense=aded $10.1 million, or 5.0%, due to lower vdegiayroll costs, decreased postage due
to lower distribution volumes and the eliminatidrtfee second day edition, decreased outsourced oodbwer volumes, decreased lease
expense due to facility consolidations, and a $iilBon reduction of a legal accrual. The ovedgicrease at Shoppers was partially offset by
$4.1 million of charges recognized in the firstfladl2011 related to our efforts to reduce expermsése Shoppers business. Of these charges
$3.9 million related to the retirement of the Pdesit of our Shoppers business and severance dwgatizount reductions. The remaining
charges related to facilities and other miscellasatems. The decrease at Shoppers was alsollyasffaet by an increase in newsprint
expense due to higher paper rates. Excludingetfirement, severance and other charges, and takdegrual reduction, Shoppers operating
expenses decreased $12.9 million, or 6.4%.

Income/Earnings Per Share from Continuing Operai

Income from continuing operations decreased 16t8%45.9 million, and diluted earnings per shacenfitontinuing operations decreased
16.3%, to $0.72 per share, in 2011 compared to.20b@se decreases were the result of decreaseatiogencome from both Shoppers and
Direct Marketing, higher interest expense, andghdui effective tax rate in 2011 compared to 20I0ese decreases were partially offset by a
$2.3 million gain on the sale of land adjacentuo $hopper’s Brea facility, and a $1.3 million charin net foreign currency transaction gains
and losses.
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Direct Marketing

Direct Marketing operating results were as follows:

In thousands 2012 % Change 2011 % Change 2010

Revenue: $ 581,09: 54 $ 614,27( 22 % 601,28:
Operating expenses 505,69: -4.7 530,78( 3.2 514,53¢
Operating income $ 75,39¢ 97 $ 83,49( -38 $ 86, 74¢

Year ended December 31, 2012 vs. Year ended Decedhb2011

Revenue

Direct Marketing revenues decreased $33.2 millasrg.4%, in 2012 compared to 2011. These reseflsat the impact of a large, long
standing retail customer which changed its margettnategy to emphasize broadcast at the experdieeof mail. Despite the shift in strategy
and reduced direct mail volumes, this company ramane of our largest customers. Reduced revdrashis customer represented a little
less than half of the overall decline in Direct Keting revenues. Revenues from our retail vertiealined 1% compared to the prior year as
increased spending by other existing retail custsrmemewhat offset the reduced spending by thi®mes. Revenues from our
pharmaceutical vertical decreased 16% compare@18,Zeflecting the effect of volume reductionsnfrone long standing customer beginning
in the second quarter of 2012, and the loss ofremdbng standing customer in the third quarte2@f2. Our high-tech vertical declined 9%,
representing the largest dollar decrease from tioe ypear. Our select vertical declined 4% and financial vertical declined 3%.

Future revenue performance will depend on, amohgrdactors, the overall strength of the natiomal enternational economies and how
successful we are at maintaining and growing bgsiméth existing clients, acquiring new clients ameeting client demands. We believe t

in the long-term, an increasing portion of ovenadirketing and advertising expenditures will be nibfrem other advertising media to the
targeted media space, and that our business wiliflieas a result. Targeted media advertisingltesan be more effectively tracked, enabling
measurement of the return on marketing investment.

Postage costs of mailings in our Direct Marketingibess are borne by our clients and are not tiireeftected in our revenues or expenses.
Operating Expenses

Operating expenses decreased $25.1 million, or 4iW2©012 compared to 2011. Labor costs decrediggdmillion, or 2.5%, primarily due to
reductions in headcount and temporary labor, deeckacentive compensation and decreased comnsssibbias a result of revenue
performance. Production and distribution costgeksed $19.5 million, or 10.2%, due to decreasézbarwced costs resulting from decreased
outsourced volumes, decreased mail supply chaits cesulting from decreased volumes, and decrdaasd costs due to costs recognized in
2011 to terminate a lease. General and administrakpense increased $0.9 million, or 2.0%, dimanily to an increase in legal fees,
increased royalties and increased employee trawktraining, partially offset by decreased promotixpense and facilities costs. Deprecie
and software amortization expense increased $0li®mior 3.1%, due to increased capital expenditin 2011. Intangible asset amortization
was up slightly.

Direct Marketing’s largest cost components are labotsourced costs and mail supply chain costehBf these costs is somewhat variable
and tends to fluctuate with revenues and the derfaralr direct marketing services. Mail supphaohrates have increased over the last few
years due to demand and supply issues within #msportation industry. Future changes in mail Bupipain rates will continue to impa

Direct Marketing’s total production costs and taipkrating expenses, and may have an impact orefdamand for our supply chain
management.
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Year ended December 31, 2011 vs. Year ended Decedb2010

Revenue

Direct Marketing revenues increased $13.0 millmn2.2%, in 2011 compared to 2010. These reswdte &ffected by a large, one-time,
voluntary recall project performed for a long-tiplearmaceutical customer during the second halb&b2 Excluding the results from this
project, total Direct Marketing revenues increa$2€.1 million, or 5.0%, in 2011 compared to 20Revenues from our select vertical
increased 17%, representing the largest dollaeass from the prior year. Our retail vertical @aged 9% and our financial vertical increased
4%. Revenues from our pharmaceutical verticalided! 18% due to the recall project discussed abmwe our hightech vertical declined 7%
Revenues from our vertical markets are impactedingng other things, the economic fundamentalaci éndustry, various market factors,
including the demand for services by our clients] the financial condition of and budgets availablspecific clients. The August 2010
acquisition of Information Arts also contributedth® 2010 revenue growth.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses increased $16.2 million, or 3i2%011 compared to 2010. Labor costs incre&8e8 million, or 3.5%, due to increased
headcounts to support revenues and improve oubaksteservice capabilities. Production and didtidwcosts increased $6.4 million, or 3.4
due to higher mail supply chain costs on highargpartation volumes. General and administratiyease increased $2.2 million, or 4.8%,
due primarily to an increase in travel and emplaseuiting. Depreciation and software amortizatixpense decreased $1.6 million, or 9.
due to decreased capital expenditures over théelasgears. Intangible asset amortization was dé@i million, or 20.9%, due to certain
intangible assets becoming fully amortized.

Shoppers

Shoppers operating results were as follows:

In thousands 2012 % Change 2011 % Change 2010

Revenue: $ 186,61¢ 54 $ 197,36t -10.1 % 219,43
Operating expenses 339,22¢ 77.1 191,52 -5.C 201,64
Operating income (loss) $ (152,61 -2,713.¢  $ 5,83¢ 672 $ 17,79¢

Year ended December 31, 2012 vs. Year ended Decedhb2011

Revenue

Shoppers revenues decreased $10.7 million, or 52812 compared to 2011. These results reflectontinued impact that the difficult
economic environment in California is having on &toppers business. The decrease in revenuefi@vessult of decreased sales in
established markets, including declines from megénue categories. Revenues from in-book advegtisécreased at a higher rate than
revenues from distribution products. Shoppersnags increased from the automotive, consumer spgradtid communications sectors.
Revenues from the services and real estate sefgorsased.

At December 31, 2012, our Shoppers circulationlted@pproximately 9.1 million addresses in Caliieach week. While we have not m
any significant changes to our circulation in thstIseveral years, we continue to evaluate alluptwculation performance and may make
circulation reductions in the future as part of efforts to address the difficult economic condigan California.

Future revenue performance will depend on, amohgrdactors, the overall strength of the Califore@nomy, as well as how successful we
are at maintaining and growing business with existlients, and acquiring new clients.
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Operating Expenses

Shoppers operating expenses were $339.2 milli@12, compared to $191.5 million in 2011. This B¥4million year over year increase v
primarily a result of the $156.9 million impairmdass recorded in the second quarter of 2012, sas1d6ed above. This increase was also
impacted by $1.3 million of costs recognized infinerth quarter of 2012 relating to the closure@of production facility in Northern

California. Excluding the impairment loss andiliacclosure costs, operating expenses decreas@d$nillion, or 5.5%, compared to 2011.
Total labor costs decreased $10.1 million, or 15.d@& to decreased severance costs (partiallytdffseeverance costs related to the facility
closure), decreased stock-based compensationpad payroll costs from lower ad sales, headcoeditictions and pay rate reductions. Tota
production costs were up $1.6 million, or 1.4%, tuan increase in offload printing costs due tan@nease in heatset volumes, an increase ir
postage costs resulting from the January 2012 gestie increase, and an increase in outsourcési das to increased outsourced volumes,
partially offset by decreases in newsprint andgaper expenses due to declines in volumes, andraate in facility lease expense. Total
general and administrative costs decreased $0l@mibr 6.0%, due to a decrease in bad debt expémser credit card processing fees and
lower costs associated with digital products, pilytioffset by a portion of the closing costs diseed above and legal accrual reductions in
2011. Depreciation and software amortization egpencreased $0.1 million, or 2.0%, due to writifigsoftware related to various digital
initiatives in the second quarter of 2012.

Shoppers’ largest cost components are postage, ahd paper. Shoppers’ labor costs are partiahiable and tend to fluctuate with the
number of zones, circulation, volumes and reven&andard postage rates have increased in reearg,ymost recently in April 2011,
January 2012 and January 2013. Shoppers’ positemincreased by less than 1.0% as a result @fghie2011 rate increase, increased by
approximately 2.1% as a result of the January 2a8fincrease, and will increase by approximatedy2as a result of the January 2013 rate
increase. The January 2013 postage rate incr@adeny additional future changes in postage wileaffect Shoppers’ distribution costs.
The U. S. Postal Service has also proposed vacioaisges in its services to address its financidbpmaance, such as delivery frequency and
facility access. Recently, the USPS announceaitldvend household delivery on Saturdays startinuigust 2013. At this point we do not
believe the announced and proposed changes wil fiawaterial impact on our Shoppers business. plavprices increased steadily over
last two years before leveling off in the secontl 682012. Newsprint prices are expected to amrgito remain at the current rates throughou
2013. Any future changes in newsprint prices afilect Shoppers’ production costs. Shoppers NontiCalifornia production facility will be
closed in the third quarter of 2013. This facilitpsure will reduce Shoppers overall operatingsos2013, including reductions in most
significant expense lines.

Year ended December 31, 2011 vs. Year ended Dece3tib2010

Revenue

Shoppers revenues decreased $22.1 million, or 10rl2011 compared to 2010. These results reflectontinued impact that the difficult
economic environment in California is having on &oppers business. The decrease in revenuefevessult of decreased sales in
established markets, including declines in mostmere categories. At December 31, 2011, our Shemieulation reached approximately 9.1
million addresses in California each week.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses decreased $10.1 million, or 502011 compared to 2010. During the first fdl2011, we incurred $4.1 million of
charges through our efforts to reduce expensdwishoppers business, primarily through organimatioestructuring and headcount
reductions. Of these charges, $3.9 million relatetthe retirement of the President of our Shoppasiness and severance due to headcount
reductions. The remaining charges related toifesland other miscellaneous items. Total lalosts decreased $3.0 million, or 4.5%, due to
lower variable payroll costs from lower ad salesadicount reductions and lower incentive compensatitxcluding the severance and
retirement charges described above, total labds decreased $6.9 million, or 10.3%. Total promurctosts decreased $4.9 million, or 4.3%,
due primarily to decreased postage costs as & idsubecline in distribution volumes and the éfiation of the second day edition in Soutr
California, decreased outsourced costs resultimm filecreased outsourced volumes, and decreasedebgasnse due to facility consolidations
and eliminations. These decreases were partifilgtdy an increase in newsprint expense duegloenipaper rates. Total general and
administrative costs decreased $2.0
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million, or 12.6%, due primarily to a $1.3 millioeduction of a legal accrual. Depreciation andveafe amortization expense decreased $0.2
million, or 4.9%, due to decreased capital expemés in the last few years. Excluding the retiretnseverance and other charges, and the
legal accrual reduction, Shoppers operating expgetsereased $12.9 million, or 6.4%.

General Corporate Expense

Year ended December 31, 2012 vs. Year ended Decesthib2011

General corporate expense increased $1.5 millioh3@3%, in 2012 compared to 2011. This increaas attributable to increased pension
expense resulting from an increase in the projepéesion benefit obligation due to a lower discaaite.

Year ended December 31, 2011 vs. Year ended Decedib2010

General corporate expense decreased $0.1 millidh686, in 2011 compared to 2010. This decreasetimaresult of lower incentive
compensation due to overall financial results.

Interest Expense

Year ended December 31, 2012 vs. Year ended Decedhb2011

Interest expense increased $0.4 million, or 12i29%2012 compared to 2011, due to a higher inteegstspread as a result of the 2011 Term
Loan Facility, which replaced the 2006 Term Loagiltg in August 2011. This increase was partialffset by lower average debt balances it
2012 due to the maturity and $60.0 million paydfftee 2008 Term Loan in March of 2012.

Year ended December 31, 2011 vs. Year ended Decedhb2010

Interest expense increased $0.4 million, or 12i8%011 compared to 2010, due to a higher inteegstspread and an increased debt balance
as a result of the 2011 Term Loan Facility, whieplaced the 2006 Term Loan Facility in August 2011.

Our debt at December 31, 2012 and 2011 is desciibdte DLong-Term Debin the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
Interest Income

Year ended December 31, 2012 vs. Year ended Decedhb2011

Interest income decreased $0.2 million, or 63.5%0h2 compared to 2011 due to lower average badegue lower returns on invested cash
and cash equivalents in 2012.

Year ended December 31, 2011 vs. Year ended Dece3tib2010

Interest income increased slightly in 2011 comp&oe2010 due to higher returns on invested casthcasld equivalents in 2011.
Other Income and Expense

Year ended December 31, 2012 vs. Year ended Decesthib2011

Other expense, net, was $2.9 million in 2012, 4 $illion change from other income, net of $1.5limi in 2011. This change was primarily
due to a $2.3 million gain on the sale of land eglje to our Shopper’s Brea facility, and a $2.diarilchange in net foreign currency
transaction gains and losses.

Year ended December 31, 2011 vs. Year ended Decedhb2010

Other income, net, was $1.5 million in 2011, a $8iion change from other net expense of $2.1lionlin 2010. This change was primarily
due to a $2.3 million gain on the sale of land eglje to our Shopper’s Brea facility, and a $1.3iarilchange in net foreign currency
transaction gains and losses.
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Income Taxes

Year ended December 31, 2012 vs. Year ended Decedhb2011

Our income tax benefit of $23.2 million for 201Zuéed in an effective income tax rate of 24.1%e Thcome tax benefit for 2012 reflects the
$156.9 million impairment charge that resulted $44.8 million tax benefit in the second quarteR012. In addition, the value of the net
operating loss related to the Florida Shoppersaijmers at the beginning of 2012 is now attributeddntinuing operations. Excluding the
impairment charges and the deduction related t&kivéda net operating loss, 2012 tax expense wbald been $23.0 million with an
effective tax rate of 37.9%. This compares torenoine tax expense of $30.8 million and an effedtixerate 40.2% for 2011.

Year ended December 31, 2011 vs. Year ended Decedhb2010

Income taxes decreased $2.5 million in 2011 contpr010 due to lower pretax income levels, pytfset by a higher effective tax rate.
The effective income tax rate for 2011 was 40.2%gared to 37.6% in 2010. The increase in the &ffetax rate is primarily due to a
reduction to our uncertain tax liabilities relatedstate income taxes in 2010.

Economic Climate and Impact on our Financial Staterants

The economic climate in California and Florida lzadegative impact on our Shoppers’ operations astl fiows for the year ended
December 31, 2012, and our financial position atébaber 31, 2012. This impact is reflected in dnaricial results, including the $165.3
million impairment charge related to goodwill artier intangible assets recorded in the secondeuafi?012. Excluding the Florida
Shoppers operations, which were sold at the e2®®d? and are reported as discontinued operatibagptal impairment charge related to our
Shoppers business was $156.9 million. We canregtigirthe duration of the current difficult econarenvironment in California, or the timii
or magnitude of any subsequent improvement. Iettenomic climate and markets we serve fail to oapr(or deteriorate), we may record
additional charges, including charges related $trueturing costs and the impairment of goodwilhes intangibles and long-lived assets, and
our operations, cash flows and financial positicayrhe materially and adversely affected.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Sources and Uses of Cash

As of December 31, 2012, cash and cash equivaheres $49.6 million, decreasing $37.1 million froash and cash equivalents at
December 31, 2011. This net decrease was a @sudt cash provided by operating activities of 874@illion, offset by net cash used in
investing activities of $13.8 million and net casted in financing activities of $99.8 million.

Operating Activities

Net cash provided by operating activities in 20185W76.3 million, compared to $60.7 million in 20IMhe $15.6 million yei-over-year
increase was attributable to the changes withirkingrcapital assets and liabilities.

In 2012, our principal working capital changes, evhdirectly affected net cash provided by operafictyvities, were as follows:

» Adecrease in accounts receivable attributable®llection of the December 31, 2011 receivables eléas higher revenues in the
fourth quarter of 2011 compared to the fourth qeravt 2012. Days sales outstanding were approeinéé days at December 31,
2012, which decreased from 66 days at Decembet(B1l,;

e Adecrease in inventory due to purchasing and hgldigher levels of newsprint inventory in prioripés in advance of increases in
newsprint prices;
* Anincrease in prepaid expenses and other curssetsadue to timing of payments;
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* A decrease in accounts payable due to lower overadluction and distribution expense in the fouyptlarter of 2011 than in the fou
quarter of 2012;

* Adecrease in accrued payroll and related expehseso the payment of 2011 incentive compensatiohi@ver accrued incentive
compensation at December 31, 2012 than at Dece®ib@011;

* Anincrease in deferred revenue and customer adsgashee to timing of receipts;

 Anincrease in customer postage and program depdisit to the timing of a new customer rebate progeand

e Adecrease in income taxes payable due to overpayoi@stimated taxes payments in 2012. The oyenpat was the result of the
loss on the sale of Florida Shoppers operatiottsea¢nd of 2012.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities was $13.8anilin 2012, compared to $17.6 million in 2011heT$3.7 million decrease is primarily t
result of a $7.1 million decrease in capital spegdh 2012 compared to 2011, partially offset by4d3illion received in connection with the
sale of land in 2011.

Financing Activities

Net cash used in financing activities was $99.8ionilin 2012 compared to $42.2 million in 2011. eT$67.7 million increase is attributable
$55.6 million in higher net debt repayments in 2€izh in 2011 due to the fiyeear $122.5 million term loan facility obtainedAngust 2011.
The additional dividend in the fourth quarter ofl2@also contributed to this increase. This inceaas partially offset by a $4.0 million
decrease in treasury stock purchases in 2012 ceapar2011.

Credit Facilities

On March 7, 2008, we entered into a four-year $h@ilon term loan facility (2008 Term Loan Faciljtyith Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as
Administrative Agent. The 2008 Term Loan Facilitured on March 7, 2012, at which time we paidrémeaining outstanding principal of
$60.0 million using cash on hand.

On August 12, 2010, we entered into a new three-$@@ million revolving credit facility, which inades a $25 million accordion feature, a
$25 million letter of credit sub-facility and a $4llion swing line loan sub-facility (2010 RevohgrCredit Facility), with Bank of America,
N.A., as Administrative Agent. The 2010 Revolvi@igedit Facility permits us to request up to a $2kion increase in the total amount of t
facility. The 2010 Revolving Credit Facility maés on August 12, 2013. For each borrowing unde810 Revolving Credit Facility, we ¢
generally choose to have the interest rate fortibatowing calculated on either (i) the LIBOR ré&&s defined in the 2010 Revolving Credit
Facility) for the applicable interest period, puspread which is determined based on our totalet®ttoEBITDA ratio (as defined in the 20
Revolving Credit Facility) then in effect, whichnges from 2.25% to 3.00% per annum; or (i) thénbgj of (a) the Federal Funds Rate plus
0.50%, (b) the Agent’s prime rate, and (c) the LB€ate plus 1.00%, plus a spread which is detemir@sed on our total net debtE®ITDA
ratio then in effect, which ranges from 1.25% @026 per annum. There is a facility fee that weadse required to pay under the 2010
Revolving Credit Facility. The facility fee ratarrges from 0.40% to 0.45% per annum, dependingiptotal net debt-to-EBITDA ratio then
in effect. In addition, there is a letter of citeftie with respect to outstanding letters of credihat fee is calculated by applying a rate etual
the spread applicable to LIBOR based loans plusraihg fee of 0.125% per annum to the average daitirawn amount of the outstanding
letters of credit. We may elect to prepay any amt®drawn on the 2010 Revolving Credit Facilityaay time. At December 31, 2012, we did
not have any outstanding amounts drawn againS2@L0® Revolving Credit Facility. At December 31,120we had letters of credit totaling
$9.5 million issued under the 2010 Revolving Cré&ditility, decreasing the amount available for baing to $60.5 million.

On August 16, 2011, we entered into a five-year2@ illion term loan facility (2011 Term Loan Fhigi) with Bank of America, N.A., as
Administrative Agent. The 2011 Term Loan Facilitatures on August 16, 2016. For each borrowingeutite 2011 Term Loan Facility, we
can generally choose to have the interest rate
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for that borrowing calculated based on eitherh@ LIBOR rate (as defined in the 2011 Term Loarnilfegcfor the applicable interest period,
plus a spread (ranging from 2.00% to 2.75% per amrased on our total net funded debt-to-EBITDAorés defined in the 2011 Term Loan
Facility) then in effect; or (ii) the highest of) (@ne Agent’s prime rate, (b) the BBA daily floaginate LIBOR, as determined by Agent for such
date, plus 1.00%, and (c) the Federal Funds Rate}b0%, plus a spread (ranging from 1.00% to%.pBr annum) based on our total net
funded debt-td=BITDA ratio then in effect. We may elect to prgghe 2011 Term Loan Facility at any time withouturring any prepayme
penalties. At December 31, 2012, we had $110.Bomibutstanding under the 2011 Term Loan Facility.

Under all of our credit facilities we are requitedmaintain an interest coverage ratio of not thas 2.75 to 1 and a total debt-to-EBITDA ratio
of not more than 3.0 to 1. The credit facilitiésoacontain customary covenants restricting our@ndsubsidiaries’ ability to:

» authorize distributions, dividends, stock redenmiand repurchases if a payment event of defasllobeurred and is continuing;

e enter into certain merger or liquidation transatsio

e grantliens;

*  enter into certain sale and leaseback transactions;

* have foreign subsidiaries account for more than 20%e consolidated revenue, assets or EBITDA aftétHanks and its
subsidiaries, in the aggregate;

* enter into certain transactions with affiliatesgan

» allow the total indebtedness of Harte-Hanks’ subsigls to exceed $20.0 million.

The credit facilities each also include customaryenants regarding reporting obligations, delivefrpotices regarding certain events,
maintaining our corporate existence, payment afgakbns, maintenance of our properties and insgdhereon at customary levels with
financially sound and reputable insurance compani@éntaining books and records and compliance aptlicable laws. The credit facilities
each also provide for customary events of defagluding nonpayment of principal or interest, bleatrepresentations and warranties,
violations of covenants, failure to pay certainestimdebtedness, bankruptcy and material judgneerddiabilities, certain violations of
environmental laws or ERISA or the occurrence ohange of control. Our material domestic subsig$aihave guaranteed the performance o
Harte-Hanks under our credit facilities. As of Betber 31, 2012, we were in compliance with alhef tovenants of our credit facilities.

Contractual Obligations

Contractual obligations at December 31, 2012 afelbsvs:

In thousands, Total 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Thereafter
Debt $ 110,25( $ 12,25 $ 15,31¢ $ 18,37t $ 64,31 $ 0% 0
Interest on dek(1) 7,00¢ 2,36¢ 2,08t 1,69¢ 852 0 0
Operating lease 49,27: 15,68¢ 12,76: 7,88¢ 5,51( 3,93i 3,491
Capital lease 671 36¢ 212 73 1€ 1 0
Deferred compensation liabili 2,83( 702 702 352 0 0 1,074
Unfunded pension plan benefit

payments 28,21 1,43 1,431 1,42t 1,41¢ 1,44¢ 21,05:
Other long-term obligations 194 122 55 17 0 0 0

Total contractual cash obligations $ 198,43 $ 32,93¢ $ 32,56( $ 29,82t $ 72,10¢ $ 5381 $ 25,61¢

(1) Future interest amounts were estimated using tleem@ber 31, 2012 effective rate on our outstandety df 2.21%.

At December 31, 2012, we had total letters of ¢nedihe amount of $9.9 million. No amounts weravdn against these letters of credit at
December 31, 2012. These letters of credit remewally and exist to support insurance progranetirej to workers’ compensation,
automobile and general liability. We had no otbiétbalance sheet arrangements at December 31, 2012
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Dividends

We paid a quarterly dividend of 8.5 cents per simeach of the first three quarters of 2012 anadl dividends of 8.5 cents per share in the
fourth quarter of 2012. The second dividend paithe fourth quarter of 2012 was a one-time acagtar of the regular quarterly dividend we
would have paid in the first quarter of 2013. Agsult, we do not anticipate paying a dividenthia first quarter of 2013. We currently plan
to pay a quarterly dividend of 8.5 cents per slaeach of the second, third and fourth quarterd0df3, although any actual dividend
declaration can be made only upon approval of mar® of Directors, based on its business judgm#re.have paid consecutive quarterly
dividends since the first quarter of 1995.

Share Repurchase

During 2012, we repurchased 0.7 million sharesuwfammmon stock for $4.4 million under our stocRurchase program that was publicly
announced in August 2012. Under this program aar8 of Directors has authorized us to spend §1@0 million to repurchase shares of
our outstanding common stock. At December 31, 2@&2had authorization to spend $5.6 million tourepase additional shares under this
program. From 1997 through December 2012, we kapported our stockholders by spending more thaiillion to repurchase 65.6
million shares under this program and previouskycamced programs.

Outlook

We consider such factors as total cash and cashadets, current assets, current liabilities, tdibt, revenues, operating income, cash flows
from operations, investing activities and financawgivities when assessing our liquidity. Our mmnsources of liquidity have been cash and
cash equivalents on hand and cash generated freratopy activities. Our management of cash isgihesi to optimize returns on cash
balances and to ensure that it is readily availadblaeet our operating, investing and financingunegments as they arise. Capital resources a
also available from and provided through our 20&9dkving Credit Facility, subject to the terms amwhditions of that facility.

The amount of cash on hand and borrowings availadidier our 2010 Revolving Credit Facility are imfhced by a number of factors, includ
fluctuations in our operating results, revenue ghpwaccounts receivable collections, working cdgitenges, capital expenditures, tax
payments, share repurchases, pension plan comrbugcquisitions and dividends.

As of December 31, 2012, we had $60.5 million afsed borrowing capacity under our 2010 Revolvingd@rFacility (which matures on
August 12, 2013) and a cash balance of $49.6 millBased on our current operational plans, wesbelthat our cash on hand, cash provided
by operating activities, and availability under #@10 Revolving Credit Facility will be sufficieta fund operations, anticipated capital
expenditures, payments of principal and interesbumborrowings, dividends on our common stock pausion contributions for the next 12
months. Nevertheless, we cannot predict the impactur business performance of the economic céirimathe U.S. and other economies in
which we operate. A lasting economic recessiahénUnited States and other economies could havaterial adverse effect on our business,
financial position or operating results.

Our 2010 Revolving Credit Facility matures in AugR613. We believe that we will be able to obtaireplacement revolver facility in a
similar amount and with similar terms. Howeveltthiére are disruptions in the credit markets, we treynable to obtain a replacement fac
on acceptable terms or at all. In that event, ddjpg on our ability to generate sufficient cagsiwfifrom operations, our overall liquidity and
ability to make payments on our indebtedness uadeR011 Term Loan Facility (which matures in Aug2816) may be adversely impacted,
and we may be required to seek one or more alteesasuch as refinancing or restructuring our btdeéness, selling material assets or
operations, or seeking to raise debt or equitytaapiWe cannot assure you that any of these actionld be affected on a timely basis or on
satisfactory terms, if at all. In addition, ouiisting debt agreements contain restrictive coventirat may prohibit us from adopting one or
more of these alternatives.
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Critical Accounting Policies

Critical accounting policies are defined as thde,tin our judgment, are most important to thenagal of our company’s financial condition
and results of operations and which require comptesubjective judgments or estimates. The ate#sie believe involve the most signific
management estimates and assumptions are detalt®d. Actual results could differ materially frofmase estimates under different
assumptions and conditions. Historically, actualtes have not differed significantly from our esdites.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when all of the followingemia are satisfied: (i) persuasive evidence ddiraangement exists; (ii) the price is fixed or
determinable; (iii) collectability is reasonablysased; and (iv) the service has been performetdeoptoduct has been delivered.

Payments received in advance of the performansereices or delivery of the product are recordededsrred revenue until such time as the
services are performed or the product is delivered.

Our accounting policy for revenue recognition hasmpact on our reported results and relies oragedstimates that require judgments on th
part of management. The portion of our revenueith@ost subject to estimates and judgments isme® recognized using the proportional
performance method, as discussed below.

Direct Marketing revenue is derived from a variefyservices and products, and may be billed atligates, monthly rates or a fixed price.
For all sales, we require either a purchase oedstatement of work signed by the client, a writtentract, or some other form of written
authorization from the client.

Revenue from agency and creative services, analyérvices and market research is typically bileded on time and materials or at a fixed
price. If billed at a fixed price, revenue is rgned on a proportional performance basis asé¢hgces specified in the arrangement are
performed. In most cases, proportional performastased on the ratio of direct costs incurretbtal estimated costs where the costs
incurred, primarily labor hours and outsourced e represent a reasonable surrogate for outpasunes or contract performance. For fi
fee market research revenue streams, revenueogriged in proportion to the value of service pdad based on output criteria.

Revenue from email marketing, social media marketind other digital solutions is recognized asabek is performed. Revenue from these
services is typically based on a fixed price oe gitzen to the client.

Revenue associated with new marketing databasashisideferred until complete or until client adegge. Upon completion or acceptance,
revenue and direct build costs are then recogrozedthe term of the related arrangement as theécesrare provided. Revenue from databas
and website hosting services is recognized ratady the contractual hosting period. Pricing fatathase builds are typically based on a fixec
price and hosting fees are typically based onedfgrice per month or per contract.

Revenue from technology database subscriptionasedon a fixed price and is recognized ratably theeterm of the subscription. Revenue
from stand-alone technology data sales is recodratéhe time of delivery.

Revenue from services such as data processingingripersonalization of communication pieces usasgr and inkjet printing, targeted mail,
and transportation logistics is recognized as thekus performed. Revenue from these servicegiisally based on a fixed price or rate given
to the client. Postage costs of mailings in ovectimail business are borne by our clients anaharelirectly reflected in our revenues or
expenses.

Revenue related to fulfilment and contact centexduding inbound and outbound calling and emaihagement, is also typically based on a
fixed price per transaction or service providecgv&ue from these services is recognized as thiesar activity is performed.
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Revenue from software arrangements involving migtgdements is allocated to each element baseldeoveindor-specific objective evidence
of fair values of the respective elements. Fotveafe sales with multiple elements (for exampldtveare licenses with undelivered post-
contract customer support or “PCS”), we allocateneie to each component of the arrangement usingetfidual value method based on the
fair value of the undelivered elements. This mea@siefer revenue from the software sale equdldddir value of the undelivered elements.
The fair value of PCS is based upon separate shlesiewals to other clients. The fair value af/&®s, such as training and consulting, is
based upon separate sales of these services toctdmgs.

The revenue allocated to PCS is recognized ratal®y the term of the support period. Revenue atkxt to professional services is recogn
as the services are performed. The revenue adiddatsoftware products, including time-based saftwicenses, is recognized, if collection is
probable, upon execution of a licensing agreemeditshipment of the software or ratably over thetef the license, depending on the
structure and terms of the arrangement. If thenking agreement is for a term of one year ordadsincludes PCS, we recognize the software
and the PCS revenue ratably over the term of temdie.

For certain non-software arrangements, we enterdontracts that include delivery of a combinatdriwo or more of our service offerings.
Such arrangements are divided into separate uinitsoounting, provided that the delivered elemégrités stand-alone value and objective and
reliable evidence of the fair value of the undeaiadceelement(s) exist(s).

When we are able to unbundle the arrangement @garate units of accounting, revenue from eachiceeiy recognized separately, and in
accordance with our revenue recognition policyfach element. If we are unable to unbundle ttengament into separate units of
accounting, we apply one of the revenue recognijtmities to the entire arrangement. This mightastghe timing of revenue recognition, but
would not change the total revenue recognized tteerarrangement.

Shopper services are considered rendered, andvbaue recognized, when all printing, sorting, limigeand ancillary services have been
provided and the mailing material has been recelyethe USPS.

Taxes collected from customers and remitted to gowental authorities are not reflected in our rexenor expenses.
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We maintain our allowance for doubtful accounta dlance adequate to reduce accounts receivathie tamount of cash expected to be
realized upon collection. The methodology usedei@rmine the minimum allowance balance is baseslioprior collection experience and is
generally related to the accounts receivable balamgarious aging categories. The balance isiafigenced by specific clients’ financial
strength and circumstance. Accounts that are mi@ted to be uncollectible are written off in theipd in which they are determined to be
uncollectible. Periodic changes to the allowaraiatce are recorded as increases or decreases delbaexpense, which is included in the
“Advertising, selling, general and administratiigie of our Consolidated Statements of Comprehensicome (Loss). We recorded bad deb
expense of $1.1 million, $1.4 million and $1.6 il for the years ended December 31, 2012, 20128h@, respectively. At December 31,
2012 and 2011, our allowance for doubtful accowrgs $3.4 million and $3.2 million, respectively.hil¢ we believe our reserve estimate to
be appropriate, we may find it necessary to adhesallowance for doubtful accounts if future bathidexpense exceeds the estimated reserve
Given the significance of accounts receivable edbnsolidated financial statements, the deterimoimaif net realizable values is considered tc
be a critical accounting estimate.

Reserve for Healthcare, Workers’ Compensation, Autmobile and General Liability
We are self-insured for our workers’ compensatartpmobile, general liability and a portion of tnealthcare insurance. We make various
subjective judgments about a number of factorseteminining our reserve for healthcare, workers’ pensation, automobile and general

liability insurance, and the related expense. Our
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deductible for individual healthcare claims is $thilion. Our deductible for workers’ compensatisr$0.5 million. We have a $0.3 million
deductible for automobile and general liabilityioia. Our insurance administrator provides us wgtimated loss reserves, based upon its
experience dealing with similar types of claimsyasl as amounts paid to date against these claivis.apply actuarial factors to both
insurance estimated loss reserves and to paid £k then determine reserve levels, taking intowa these calculations. At December 31,
2012 and 2011, our reserve for healthcare, worleensipensation, automobile and general liability %&%.4 million and $12.1 million,
respectively. If ultimate losses were 10% highantour estimate at December 31, 2012, net incooutdabe impacted by approximately $0.7
million, net of taxes. The amount that earningsildde impacted is dependent on the claim yeamandeductible levels for that plan year.
Periodic changes to the reserve for workers’ corsgon, automobile and general liability are reeords increases or decreases to insurance
expense, which is included in the “Advertising liggl general and administrative” line of our Colidated Statements of Comprehensive
Income (Loss). Periodic changes to the reservadalthcare are recorded as increases or deciteaseployee benefits expense, which is
included in the “Labor” line of our Consolidatecaf&ments of Comprehensive Income (Loss).

Goodwill

Goodwill is recorded to the extent that the purehaisce of an acquisition exceeds the fair valuthefidentifiable net assets acquired. We
assess the impairment of our goodwill by deterngriive fair value of each of our reporting units andhparing the fair value to the carrying
value for each reporting unit. Determining faituearequires the exercise of significant judgmeimsiuding judgments about appropriate
discount rates, the amount and timing of expeatéré cash flows, and perpetual growth rates. ‘e lidentified our reporting units as Dir
Marketing and Shoppers. At December 31, 2012 &id 2the net book value of our goodwill was alleckto our reporting units as follows:

December 31

In thousands 2012 2011

Direct Marketing $ 398,16: $ 398,16
Shoppers 10,55 167,48
Total goodwill $ 408,71' $ 565,65

As a result of continuing revenue declines in Sleegpand in conjunction with management’s evalumadibthe business, the Company
determined that a triggering event had occurredtaatan interim step-one impairment test of Shoggmodwill was warranted in connection
with the preparation of its second quarter 201arfirial statements. The fair value of the Shoppeitswas estimated using a discounted cash
flow model and a cash flow multiple model, whichreseonsistent with those used in our most recemb@rnmpairment testing as of
November 30, 2011. The discounted cash flow ast #aw multiple models utilize projected financrakults based on historical performa
and management’s estimate of future performanemgrconsideration to existing and anticipated cetitipe and economic conditions. The
fair value of our Shoppers unit was estimated téebe than its related carrying value. Managerdetdrmined that the goodwill balance with
respect to this reporting unit was impaired ang-$teo testing was deemed necessary.

Step-two of the goodwill test consists of perforgnnhypothetical purchase price allocation, und@ckvthe estimated fair value of the
reporting unit is allocated to its tangible andaimgible assets based on their estimated fair vali#gs any residual amount being assigned to
goodwill. During the stepwo analysis, book value was estimated to approtdrfear value for all working capital items, as Wed a number ¢
insignificant assets and liabilities. Owned resihée and buildings were valued using the marketagzh and comparable property values.
Other significant property, plant and equipmennigevere valued using the cost approach and tremdotgls to estimate the cost of
reproduction and then adjusting for the diminutidivalue from physical deterioration and obsoleseen

The models used to value the total Shoppers usitep-one relied heavily on management’s assungtidhese assumptions, which are
significant to the calculated fair values, are deed Level 3 inputs under the
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fair value hierarchy established by FASB ASC 82¢hay are unobservable. The assumptions in@tepnclude discount rate, revenue gra
rates, tax rates and operating margins. The digqaite represents the expected return on capgitbedShoppers unit. The discount rate was
determined using a target structure of 30% debt7@8d equity. We used the interest rate of a 30-gesernment security to determine the
risk-free rate in our weighted average cost oftedpalculation. Projected growth rates and teahgrowth rates are primarily driven by
management’s best estimate of future performanemggconsideration to historical performance aridng and anticipated economic and
competitive conditions. Assumed tax rates reprasemagement’s best estimates of blended fededadtate income tax rates. Operating
margin assumptions are primarily driven by manageiméest estimate of future performance, givingsideration to historical performance
and existing and anticipated economic and competdonditions.

The impairment analysis indicated that $156.9 millof goodwill was impaired and an impairment clean@s recorded in the Consolidated
Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) in tberskquarter of 2012. The Company had not preljjaesorded any goodwill
impairments. Therefore the amount of impairmeat®rded in the second quarter of 2012 represehtedumulative amount of goodwill
impairment charges through June 30, 2012.

We performed our annual goodwill impairment tesfimgboth the Direct Marketing and Shoppers segmaatof November 30, 2012.
Consistent with prior periods, fair value was detieied using a discounted cash flow model, a cash fhultiple model, and with considerati
of our overall market capitalization. Based onrisults of our November 30, 2012 impairment tegésdid not record any additional
impairment losses in 2012 related to goodwill. #hknot record an impairment loss related to gotidw2011 or 2010.

The Company continues to monitor potential trigggmevents, including changes in the business dhinmaivhich it operates, attrition of key
personnel, the current volatility in the capitalrieds, the Company’s market capitalization compaodits book value, the Company’s recent
operating performance, and the Company'’s finarpmajections. The occurrence of one or more triggeevents could require additional
impairment testing, which could result in additibimpairment charges.

A summary of the critical assumptions utilized éor impairment testing in 2012 are outlined beltVe believe this information, coupled with
our sensitivity analysis, provide relevant inforinatto understand our goodwill impairment testimgl @valuate our goodwill balances.

For the annual goodwill impairment tests perforrmef012, we did not significantly change the mettlody used in 2011 to determine the
value of our reporting units. We made change®ttam assumptions utilized in the models for 26atpared with the prior year due to the
U.S. and global economic environments, which affidictct Marketing, and the economic environment€atifornia and Florida, which affect
Shoppers.

Sensitivity Analysis

The following is a sensitivity analysis on the inapaf changes in certain assumptions to our overaitlusion concerning impairment of our
goodwill balances.

The estimated fair value of our Direct Marketingaging unit was significantly above its carryinglwe.

In order to analyze the sensitivity of our assuprmion the results of our Shoppers impairment asss#, we determined the impact that a
hypothetical 15% reduction in fair value would hareour conclusions. In the case of our Shopmerting unit, a 15% decline in fair value
would not result in the reporting unit’s carryinglwe to be in excess of its fair value.

The determination of the recoverability of goodwdhuires significant judgment and estimates raggrfiliture cash flows and fair values.
These estimates are subject to change and couill irgnmpairment losses being recognized in thearel If different reporting units or
different valuation methodologies had been usedijrttpairment test results could have differed.
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Stock-based Compensation

Stock-based compensation cost is measured atdné dpite based on the fair value of the award sineciognized as expense over the requisit
service period. Determining the fair value of glaased awards requires judgment, including in scasesestimating expected term, volat
and dividend yield. In addition, judgment is regdiin estimating the amount of stock-based awtdratsare expected to be forfeited. If actual
results differ significantly from some of theseimsites, stock-based compensation expense andsultsref operations could be materially
impacted. For the years ended December 31, 2@14, &nd 2010, we recorded total stock-based comafiensexpense of $3.4 million, $5.0
million and $3.9 million, respectively.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

As discussed in Note A of the Notes to Consolid&@ancial Statements, certain new financial actiagrmpronouncements have been issued
which either have already been reflected in th@mpanying consolidated financial statements, drlweitome effective for our financial
statements at various dates in the future. Thetamits of these new accounting pronouncements halvand are not expected to have a
material effect on our consolidated financial staats.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

Market risk includes the risk of loss arising fragiverse changes in market rates and prices. Véenfacket risks related to interest rate
variations and to foreign exchange rate variatidfisam time to time, we may utilize derivative firal instruments to manage our exposure t
such risks.

We are exposed to market risk for changes in intestes related to our credit facilities. Oumégs are affected by changes in short-term
interest rates as a result of our credit facilitighich bear interest at variable rates based &0OR rates (effective 30 day LIBOR rate of 0.2
at December 31, 2012). The five-year 2011 TermrmUeacility has a maturity date of August 16, 2086.December 31, 2011, our debt
balance related to the 2011 Term Loan Facility $680.3 million. The three-year $70 million 2010v@kring Credit Facility has a maturity
date of August 12, 2013. At December 31, 2011didenot have any debt outstanding under the 2012@IRieg Credit Facility.

Assuming the actual level of borrowings through®@t2, and assuming a one percentage point charige average interest rates, we estimat
that our net income for 2012 would have changedgproximately $0.8 million. Due to our overall dédvel and cash balance at

December 31, 2012, anticipated cash flows from atpmrs, and the various financial alternatives latég to us should there be an adverse
change in interest rates, we do not believe thatwreently have significant exposure to marketgiaksociated with changing interest rates. A
this time we are entered into any interest ratepsevaother derivative instruments to hedge theot$fef adverse fluctuations in interest rates.

Our earnings are also affected by fluctuation®neifjn currency exchange rates as a result of perrations in foreign countries. Our primary
exchange rate exposure is to the Euro, British gdaterling, Australian dollar, Philippine peso @&mzilian real. We monitor these risks
throughout the normal course of business. The nityajof the transactions of our U.S. and foreigreigtions are denominated in the respective
local currencies. Changes in exchange rates delatthese types of transactions are reflectedérapplicable line items making up operating
income in our Consolidated Statements of Comprehemscome (Loss). Due to the current level ofrapiens conducted in foreign
currencies, we do not believe that the impactudttiations in foreign currency exchange rates esdlypes of transactions is significant to
overall annual earnings. A smaller portion of transactions are denominated in currencies otlaer thhe respective local currencies. For
example, inter-company transactions that are eggectbe settled in the near-term are denominated i
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U.S. dollars. Since the accounting records offorgign operations are kept in the respective loaalency, any transactions denominated in
other currencies are accounted for in the respetdisal currency at the time of the transactiomy £oreign currency gain or loss from these
transactions, whether realized or unrealized, tesulan adjustment to income, which is recordetDither, net”in our Consolidated Stateme
of Comprehensive Income (Loss). Transactions sgdhese amounted to $1.6 million in pre-tax cuygransaction losses in 2012. At this
time we are not entered into any foreign currermcywérd exchange contracts or other derivative imsénts to hedge the effects of adverse
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.

We do not enter into derivative instruments for anypose other than cash flow hedging. We do netsate using derivative instruments.
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The Financial Statements required to be presemddrdtem 8 are presented in the Consolidated EiabStatements and the notes thereto
beginning at page F-1 of this Form 10-K (Finan8&dtements).

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As of the end of the period covered by this repamtevaluation was carried out under the superviaia with the participation of our
management, including our Chief Executive Officghjef Financial Officer and Chief Accounting Officef the effectiveness of the design
and operation of our disclosure controls and procesi(as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the 198% At should be noted that, because of
inherent limitations, our disclosure controls amdgedures, however well designed and operatedpicaride only reasonable, and not absolute
assurance that the objectives of the disclosurg@srand procedures are met. Based upon that@vah, the Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Financial Officer and Chief Accounting Officer cdnded that the design and operation of these discdocontrols and procedures were
effective, at the “reasonable assurance” levetngure information required to be disclosed bynubé reports that we file or submit under the
1934 Act is recorded, processed, summarized amattegbwithin the time periods specified in the St@s and forms.

As of the end of the period covered by this repamtevaluation was carried out under the superviaia with the participation of our
management, including our Chief Executive Offic@njef Financial Officer and Chief Accounting Offic®f our internal control over financi
reporting to determine whether any changes occutueithg the fourth quarter of 2012 that have mathriaffected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, our internal control over fingaareporting. Based on that evaluation, thereewar changes in our internal control over
financial reporting or in other factors that havaterially affected or are reasonably likely to miaéy affect our internal control over financial
reporting. We may make changes in our internalrebprocesses from time to time in the future hidsld also be noted that, because of
inherent limitations, internal control over finaatreporting may not prevent or detect misstatemetd controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions or in the dedreeropliance with the policies or procedures.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over FinalriReporting and the Report of Independent Regidt®ublic Accounting Firm on the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Internal i©bftver Financial Reporting are set forth in then€olidated Financial Statements
beginning on page F-1.
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
None.
PART llI

Some of the information required by Items 10 thfodg of this Part lll is incorporated by refererficam our definitive proxy statement to be
filed for our 2013 annual meeting of stockhold@813 Proxy Statement), as indicated below. OuBZbxy Statement will be filed with the
SEC not later than 120 days after December 31,.28E2ause the 2013 Proxy Statement has not yatfbedized and filed, there may be
certain discrepancies between the currently amtiegbsection headings specified below and the $ieetion headings contained in the 2013
Proxy Statement.

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE
Directors and Executive Officers

The information required by this item regarding directors and executive officers will be set fartrour 2013 Proxy Statement under the
caption “Directors and Executive Officers”, whigtformation is incorporated herein by reference.

Section 16(a) Compliance

The information to appear in our 2013 Proxy Statenu@der the caption “General Information - Sectiéfa) Beneficial Ownership Reporting
Compliance” is incorporated herein by reference.

Code of Ethics and Other Governance Information

The information required by this item regarding Sw@plemental Code of Ethics for our Senior Finaln©ifficers (Code of Ethics), audit
committee financial experts, audit committee merslaerd procedures for stockholder recommendationsmwinees to our Board of Directors
will be set forth in our 2013 Proxy Statement untther caption “Corporate Governance”, which inforimais incorporated herein by reference.

Our Code of Ethics may be found on our websitenaiv.harte-hanks.cotoy clicking on the link “About Us” and then the lifiCorporate
Governance,” and a copy of our Code of Ethicsge alvailable in print, without charge, upon writtequest to Harte-Hanks, Inc., Attn:
Corporate Secretary, 9601 McAllister Freeway, S6it@, San Antonio, Texas 78216. In accordance thihrules of the NYSE and the SEC,
we currently intend to disclose any future amendsiemour Code of Ethics, or waivers from our Cofi&thics for our Chief Executive
Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Controller, lppsting such information on our websitengw.harte-hanks.comwithin the time period
required by applicable SEC and NYSE rules.

Management Certifications

In accordance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2082 SEC rules thereunder, our Chief Executive Offaoed Chief Financial Officer have
signed certifications under Sarbanes-Oxley Se@&{iy which have been filed as exhibits to this F&O¥K. In addition, our Chief Executive
Officer submitted his most recent annual certifamato the NYSE under Section 303A.12(a) of the MYBting standards on June 19, 2012.
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this item regarding toenpensation of our “named executive officers” dirdctors and other required
information will be set forth in our 2013 Proxy &aent under the captions “Executive Compensatiang’“Director Compensation,” which
information is incorporated herein by referenceadnordance with the rules of the SEC, informat®he contained in the 2013 Proxy
Statement under the caption “Compensation ComniRegmort” is not deemed to be “filed” with the SECsabject to the liabilities of the 1934
Act.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Beneficial Ownership Tables

The information required by this item regardinguség ownership of certain beneficial owners, magragnt and directors will be set forth in
our 2013 Proxy Statement under the caption “Sec@ivnership of Management and Principal Stockhaldevhich information is
incorporated herein by reference.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The information required by this item regardingwées authorized for issuance under equity corsptian plans will be set forth in our 2013
Proxy Statement under the caption “Executive Corapton - Equity Compensation Plan Information aat¥End 2012,” which information is
incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

Transactions with Related Persons

The information required by this item regardinghgactions with related persons, including our pedi@nd procedures for the review, approve
or ratification of related person transactions Hratrequired to be disclosed under the SEC’s andsregulations, will be set forth in our 2013
Proxy Statement under the caption “Corporate Gauere - Certain Relationships and Related Transestivhich information is incorporate
herein by reference.

Director Independence

The information required by this item regardingedior independence will be set forth in our 201&P1Statement under the caption
“Corporate Governance—Independence of Directorgjttwvinformation is incorporated herein by refer@nc

ITEM 14, PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item regarding #uelit committee’s pre-approval policies and praced and the disclosures of fees billed by
our principal independent auditor will be set fartrour 2013 Proxy Statement under the captidadit Committee and Independent Registe
Public Accounting Firm,” which information is inquorated herein by reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15.

15(a)(1)

15(a)(2)

15(a)(3)

EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Financial Statements

The financial statements filed as part of this repad referenced in Item 8 are presented in thesGlalated Financial
Statements and the notes thereto beginning atfpdgef this Form 10-K (Financial Statements).

Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules for which provision is made in thelgable rules and regulations of the SEC have loseitted as the
schedules are not required under the related ot&ins, are not applicable, or the information ieegithereby is set forth in
the Consolidated Financial Statements or notegther

Exhibits

The Exhibit Index following the Notes to ConsoliddtFinancial Statements in this Form 10-K listsdkkibits that are filed
or furnished, as applicable, as part of this FoakK1
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Harte-Hamkc. has duly caused this

report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigtteereunto duly authorized.

HARTE-HANKS, INC.

By: /s/ Larry Franklin

Larry Franklin
President and Chief Executive Offic

Date: March 13, 201

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélptihe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe dates indicated.

/sl Larry Franklin

/s/ Douglas Shepal

Larry Franklin
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Offi
Date: March 13, 201:

/sl Jessica Hul

Douglas Shepar

Executive Vice President ai
Chief Financial Office
Date: March 13, 201«

/sl Christopher M. Hart

Jessica Huf

Vice President, Finance a
Chief Accounting Office
Date: March 13, 201:

/s/ Houston H. Hart

Christopher M. Harte, Directc
Date: March 13, 201

/sl Judy C. Odor

Houston H. Harte, Vice Chairm:
Date: March 13, 201«

/s/ David L. Copelan

Judy C. Odom, Directc
Date: March 13, 201

/sl Karen A. Puckel

David L. Copeland, Directc
Date: March 13, 201

/s/ William F. Farley

William F. Farley, Directo
Date: March 13, 201

Karen A. Puckett, Directc
Date: March 13, 201
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Harte-Hanks, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Index to Consolidated Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfimgn on the Consolidated Financial Statements atefrial Control Over Financial
Reporting

Managemer's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Repaoy

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31,&012011

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Incomss{Lfor each of the years in the tl-year period ended December 31, 2!

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for eacheoyéars in the thr-year period ended December 31, 2

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity foh @ the years in the thr-year period endeDecember 31, 201

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem

All schedules for which provision is made in theligable rules and regulations of the SEC have loseitted as the schedules are not require
under the related instructions, are not applicaini¢he information required thereby is set forthihe consolidated financial statements or note

thereto.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accourféinm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Harte-Hanks, Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Harte-Hanks, Inc. and subsidiaries@mpany) as of December 31, 2012
and 2011, and the related consolidated stateméntsmprehensive income (loss), changes in equitgt,cash flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2012. Wehalge audited the Company’s internal control ovearicial reporting as of December 31,
2012, based on criteria established in Internalt@br- Integrated Framework, issued by the CommnaitieSponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. The Company’s managemensporsible for these consolidated financial statesydar maintaining effective

internal control over financial reporting, and farassessment of the effectiveness of internakabaver financial reporting, included in the
accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Cootrer Financial Reporting. Our responsibility ésexpress an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements and an opiniotherCompany’s internal control over financial rap@ based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstials of the Public Company Accounting OversighamioUnited States). Those standard:
require that we plan and perform the audits toiobtasonable assurance about whether the finastei@ments are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal cordvelr financial reporting was maintained in all erél respects. Our audits of the
consolidated financial statements included exarginim a test basis, evidence supporting the amaunatslisclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principlebars significant estimates made by managementewaadating the overall financial
statement presentation. Our audit of internal @dmtver financial reporting included obtaining amderstanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a naltereakness exists, and testing and evaluatiegidsign and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. Qditsaaiso included performing such other procedasewe considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audits provideaaonable basis for our opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonableaassuregarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statetsiéor external purposes in accordance with gelyesatepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (&ajmeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleettiansactions and dispositions of the assetseofdmpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatgeaparation of financial statements in accor@anith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureh®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabsurance regarding prevention or timely detecfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzanweterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteerferred to above present fairly, in all materégpects, the financial position of Harte-
Hanks, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 312 208 2011, and the results of their operationstlagid cash flows for each of the years in
the three-year period ended December 31, 2013rifoomity with U.S. generally accepted accountinipgiples. Also in our opinion, Harte-
Hanks, Inc. maintained, in all material respedfgative internal control over financial reportiag of December 31, 2012, based on criteria
established in Internal Control — Integrated Frameyissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Orgdinza of the Treadway Commission.

/s/ KPMG LLP
San Antonio, Texas

March 13, 2013
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Management’s Report on Internal Control Over FiariReporting

We are responsible for the preparation and integfithe consolidated financial statements appgarirour Annual Report. The consolidated
financial statements were prepared in conformithwl.S. generally accepted accounting principlesiaolude amounts based on
management’s estimates and judgments. All otin@ntial information in this report has been presgiin a basis consistent with the
information included in the consolidated finanatdtements.

We are also responsible for establishing and miaingradequate internal control over financial rejpg. We maintain a system of internal
control that is designed to provide reasonablerasse as to the fair and reliable preparation ardgmtation of the consolidated financial
statements, as well as to safeguard assets froothoraed use or disposition.

Our control environment is the foundation for oystem of internal control over financial reportinky.sets the tone of our organization and
includes factors such as integrity and ethical @sluOur internal control over financial reportisgupported by formal policies and procedure:
that are reviewed, modified and improved as changesr in business conditions and operations.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, whis composed solely of outside directors, meet®gieally with members of
management, the internal auditors and the indeperadelitors to review and discuss internal contowisr financial reporting and accounting
and financial reporting matters. Our independegtstered public accounting firm and internal aoditreport to the Audit Committee and
accordingly have full and free access to the AGdinmittee at any time.

We conducted an evaluation of the effectivenesmiointernal control over financial reporting basedcriteria established internal Control
— Integrated Frameworlssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiditie Treadway Commission. This evaluation ideld review
of the documentation of controls, evaluation ofdlesign effectiveness of controls, testing of therating effectiveness of controls and a
conclusion on this evaluation. Based on our evadnawe concluded that our internal control ovieafcial reporting was effective as of
December 31, 2012.

KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accagnfirm, has issued a report on the effectivenésseoCompany’s internal control over
financial reporting, which is included on pages &r2l F-3 of this Form 10-K.

March 13, 201

/sl Larry Franklin
Larry Franklin
President and Chief Executive Offic

/s/ Douglas Shepal
Douglas Shepar

Executive Vice President ai
Chief Financial Office

/sl Jessica Huf

Jessica Huf

Vice President, Finance a
Chief Accounting Office
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HarteHanks, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Balahe=S

December 31

In thousands, except per share and share amour 2012 2011
ASSETS
Current assetl
Cash and cash equivalel $ 49,64¢ $ 86,77¢
Accounts receivabl@ess allowance for doubtful accounts of $3,40Datember 31, 2012 and
$3,230 at December 31, 201 141,34 154,33.
Inventory 5,06 5,68(
Prepaid expenst 9,17¢ 8,781
Current deferred income tax as 8,181 9,59(
Prepaid income ta 4,491 0
Other current assets 7,58¢ 6,47¢
Total current assets 225,50( 271,63
Total assets of discontinued operati 0 16,18¢
Property, plant and equipme
Land 2,29¢ 2,28¢
Buildings and improvemen 33,76" 34,22:
Software 92,97 94,75¢
Equipment and furnitur 158,63 157,40:
Software development and equipment installationzagress 5,45¢ 3,17(
Gross property, plant and equipment 293,13¢ 291,83t
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (231,16) (222,941
Net property, plant and equipment 61,97: 68,89:
Goodwill 408,71! 565,65:
Other intangible assefess accumulated amortization of $9,541 at Decer8be2012 and $9,296 at
December 31, 201: 5,25¢ 5,50¢
Other assets 4,76 4,64(
Total assets $ 706,21 $ 932,51.
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current liabilities
Current maturities of lor-term deb: $ 12,25( % 69,18¢
Accounts payabl 42,18: 45,58¢
Accrued payroll and related expen: 16,77" 21,94:
Deferred revenue and customer advai 36,92 36,57¢
Income taxes payab 1,51¢ 4,59¢
Customer postage and program depc 19,89: 15,75¢
Other current liabilities 10,64¢ 10,00¢
Total current liabilities 140,19 203,65
Total liabilities of discontinued operatio 0 1,441
Long-term debt 98,00( 110,25(
Other long-term liabilitiegincluding deferred income taxes of $53,935 at bewer 31, 2012 and
$92,448 at December 31, 201 139,85: 170,81
Total liabilities 378,04 486,15!
Stockholder equity
Common stock, $1 par value, 250,000,000 share®anthl. 118,737,456 shares issued at
December 31, 2012 and 118,487,455 shares issuecatmber 31, 201 118,73 118,48
Additional paic-in capital 341,58t 341,14¢
Retained earning 1,165,95: 1,276,26
Less treasury stock, 56,348,026 shares at cost@rbber 31, 2012 and 55,668,137 shares at cost at
December 31, 201 (1,248,37) (1,244,22)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (49,739 (45,329)
Total stockholders’ equity 328,16 446,35!
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 706,21 $ 932,511

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetke8tents.
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HarteHanks, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Statesr@n€omprehensive Income (L0osS)

Year Ended December 31

In thousands, except per share amount 2012 2011 2010
Operating revenue $ 767,70¢ $ 811,63t $ 820,72(
Operating expense
Labor 332,78 348,63 342,43«
Production and distributio 282,74: 300,70 299,22¢
Advertising, selling, general and administrat 64,76: 64,34 64,07¢
Impairment of goodwil 156,93t 0 0
Depreciation and software amortizati 20,17¢ 19,62: 21,44
Intangible asset amortization 24E 22¢ 29C
Total operating expenses 857,64¢ 733,53 727,47:
Operating income (loss) (89,940 78,09¢ 93,24¢
Other expenses (incom
Interest expens 3,57¢ 3,18¢ 2,82¢
Interest income (92) (249 (200
Other, net 2,861 (1,50¢) 2,13¢
6,34¢ 1,43( 4,76(
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxes (96,28¢) 76,66¢ 88,48¢
Income tax expense (benefit) (23,187) 30,79 33,29:
Income (loss) from continuing operations (73,10¢) 45,87 55,19
Loss from discontinued operations, net of inconxes (7,539 (1,679 (1,590
Loss on sale, net of income taxes (2,71€) 0 0
Total discontinued operations (10,249 (1,679 (1,590
Net income (loss $ (83,359 $ 44,19¢ $ 53,60«
Basic earnings (loss) per common sk
Continuing operation $ (1.1¢) $ 0.7 $ 0.87
Discontinued operations $ (0.179) $ (0.09) $ (0.09)
Basic earnings (loss) per common share $ (1.37) $ 0.7C $ 0.84
Weighted-average common shares outstanding 62,88 63,17: 63,61¢
Diluted earnings (loss) per common sh
Continuing operation $ (1.1¢) $ 07z $ 0.8¢
Discontinued operations $ (0.17) $ (0.02) $ (0.02)
Diluted earnings (loss) per common share $ (1.37) $ 0.7C $ 0.84
Weighted-average common and common equivalent sloatstanding 62,88’ 63,55: 64,13¢
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of
Adjustment to pension liabilit $ (5,726 $ (10,309 $ (1,576
Foreign currency translation adjustments 1,31¢ (1,339 (13€)
Total other comprehensive loss, net of tax (4,41)) (11,647 (1,712
Comprehensive income (loss) $ (87,764 $ 32,557 $ 51,89:

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetke8tents.
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HarteHanks, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Statesrfitash Flows

Year Ended December 31

In thousands 2012 2011 2010
Cash Flows from Operating Activiti¢
Net income (loss $ (83,359 $ 44,19t $ 53,60«
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to restcprovided by operating
activities:
Loss from discontinued operatio 12,51« 2,69¢ 2,15¢
Loss on sale of discontinued operati 4,86: 0 0
Impairment of goodwil 156,93t 0 0
Depreciation and software amortizati 20,17¢ 19,62: 21,44
Intangible asset amortizatic 24t 22¢ 29C
Stoclk-based compensatic 3,41 4,98¢ 3,901
Excess tax benefits from stc-based compensatic (57 (215) 0
Net pension cost (paymen 15¢ (17%) (1,532
Deferred income taxe (43,519 10,381 7,36¢
Other, ne 36 (2,162 18¢€
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, natqtiisitions
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 12,98¢ (5,259 (9,319
Decrease (increase) in inventt 613 23¢ (1,719
Increase in prepaid expenses and other currens: (1,510 (197) (382
(Decrease) increase in accounts pay (3,407 (9,357%) 12,16:
(Decrease) increase in other accrued expensestiaediabilities (8,00¢) (2,10%) 6,49¢
Other, net (248) (1,182 232
Net cash provided by continuing operations 71,84 61,707 94,91(
Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued opanati 4.47¢ (1,042) 95¢
Net cash provided by operating activities 76,32 60,66¢ 95,86¢
Cash Flows from Investing Activitie
Acquisitions, net of cash acquir 0 0 (12,909
Purchases of property, plant and equipn (13,85¢) (20,970 (17,207
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and eqeip 98 3,48: 84
Net cash flows from investing activities within disitinued operations (86) (64) (125)
Net cash used in investing activities (13,844 (17,557 (30,146
Cash Flows from Financing Activitie
Borrowings 0 122,50( 0
Repayment of borrowing (69,18¢) (136,067 (46,68¢)
Debt financing cost (0)] (811) (497)
Issuance of common sto 66( 713 75
Excess tax benefits from stc-based compensatic 57 21t 0
Purchase of treasury sto (4,402 (8,369 0
Dividends paid (26,967) (20,370) (19,14)
Net cash used in financing activities (99,83¢) (42,179 (66,245
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casba&ts 22t (1549 (80)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis (37,130 782 (602)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 86,77¢ 85,99¢ 86,59¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 49,64¢ $ 86,77¢ $ 85,99¢

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financete8tents.
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HarteHanks, Inc. and Subsidiaries Consolidated Statesr@nthanges in Equity

Accumulated

Additional Other Total
Common Paid-in Retained Treasury Comprehensive  Stockholder¢

In thousands, except per share amount Stock Capital Earnings Stock Income (Loss) Equity
Balance at December 31, 20 $ 118,24 $ 33361 $ 121797 $ (1,236,21) $ (31,970 $ 401,64.
Exercise of stock options and release of

nonvested share 53 22 0 (129 0 (49)
Net tax effect of stock options exercised i

release of nonvested sha 0 (58¢) 0 0 0 (58¢)
Stoclk-based compensatic 0 3,90 0 0 0 3,901
Dividends paid ($0.30 per shai 0 0 (29,14 0] 0 (29,147
Treasury stock issue 0 (15¢) 0 317 0 15¢
Net income 0 0 53,60: 0] 0 53,60
Other comprehensive loss 0 0 0 0 (1,712 (1,712
Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 118,29¢ $ 336,79' $ 1,252,431 $ (1,236,02) $ (33,687 $ 437,82
Exercise of stock options and release of

nonvested share 191 522 0 (199 0 52C
Net tax effect of stock options exercised i

release of nonvested sha 0 (95¢9) 0 0 0 (959
Stocl-based compensatic 0 4,98¢ 0 0 0 4,98¢
Dividends paid ($0.32 per shal 0 0 (20,370) 0] 0 (20,370)
Treasury stock issue 0 (197) 0 35¢€ 0 15¢
Purchase of treasury sto 0 0 0 (8,367) 0 (8,367)
Net income 0 0 44,19¢ 0 0 44,19¢
Other comprehensive loss 0 0 0 0 (11,647 (11,647)
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 11848 $ 341,14¢ $ 1,276,260 $ (1,244,22) $ (45,327) $ 446,35!
Exercise of stock options and release of

nonvested share 25C 41C 0 (20%) 0 45¢
Net tax effect of stock options exercised

release of nonvested sha 0 (3,082 0 0 0 (3,082
Stoclk-based compensatic 0 3,41 0 0 0 3,41
Dividends paid ($0.43 per shai 0 0 (26,967) 0 0 (26,967
Treasury stock issue 0 (303) 0 454 0 151
Purchase of treasury sto 0 0 0 (4,402 0 (4,402
Net loss 0 0 (83,357 0] 0 (83,359
Other comprehensive loss 0 0 0 0 (4,410 (4,419
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 118,73 $ 34158 $ 1,16595 $ (1,248,37) $ (49,739 $ 328,16:

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financetke8tents.

F-7




Table of Contents
Harte-Hanks, Inc. and Subsidiaries Notes to Consalated Financial Statements

Note A — Significant Accounting Policies

Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemgmsent the financial position and the resultspafrations and cash flows of Harte-
Hanks, Inc. and its subsidiaries. All intercompacgounts and transactions have been eliminateonisolidation.

As used in this report, the terms “Harte-Hanks,&;W'us,” or “our” may refer to Harte-Hanks, onerapre of its consolidated subsidiaries, or
all of them taken as a whole.

Discontinued Operations

As discussed in Note Bjiscontinued Operationswe sold the assets of our Florida Shoppers dpesabn December 31, 2012. The operating
results and related balances of our Florida Shapjeeluding the loss on the sale, are being repaas discontinued operations in the
Consolidated Financial Statements. Unless otherstated, amounts related to the Florida Shoppersations are excluded from the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for all yearsqmted.

Reclassification of Prior Year Amounts

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassiieddmparative purposes. In the Consolidated Bal@heets, amounts related to postage
advances from our Direct Marketing customers weeipusly included in the line item “Other currdiabilities”. These postage advances are
now being disclosed as a separate line item titlecstomer postage and program depositeviously we had disclosed these postage adh
amounts in our Notes to Consolidated Financialestants.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith U.S. generally accepted accounting priresplU.S. GAAP) requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect thetegpamounts of assets and liabilities at the dhtke financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the negqréiriods. Actual results and outcomes coulaediffom those estimates and
assumptions. On an ongoing basis, managementvgitie estimates based on currently available mé&ion. Changes in facts and
circumstances could result in revised estimatesaasdmptions.

Operating Expense Presentation in Consolidated Staments of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The “Labor” line in the Consolidated Statement€ofmprehensive Income (Loss) includes all employseqgil and benefits, including stock-
based compensation, along with temporary laboiscoBhe “Production and distribution” and “Adveitig, selling, general and administrative”
lines do not include labor, depreciation or amaettan.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when all of the followingemia are satisfied: (i) persuasive evidence diraangement exists; (ii) the price is fixed or
determinable; (iii) collectability is reasonablysased; and (iv) the service has been performetdeoptoduct has been delivered.

Payments received in advance of the performansereices or delivery of the product are recordededsrred revenue until such time as the
services are performed or the product is delivered.

Our accounting policy for revenue recognition hasmapact on our reported results and relies oragedstimates that require judgments on th
part of management. The portion of our revenueith@ost subject to estimates and judgments isme® recognized using the proportional
performance method, as discussed below.
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Direct Marketing revenue is derived from a variefyservices and products, and may be billed atligates, monthly rates or a fixed price.
For all sales, we require either a purchase oedstatement of work signed by the client, a writtentract, or some other form of written
authorization from the client.

Revenue from agency and creative services, analyérvices and market research is typically bileded on time and materials or at a fixed
price. If billed at a fixed price, revenue is rgned on a proportional performance basis aséhdces specified in the arrangement are
performed. In most cases, proportional performast@ased on the ratio of direct costs incurretbtal estimated costs where the costs
incurred, primarily labor hours and outsourced is&s; represent a reasonable surrogate for outpasumes or contract performance. For fi
fee market research revenue streams, revenueogriged in proportion to the value of service pdad based on output criteria.

Revenue from email marketing, social media marketind other digital solutions is recognized asnbek is performed. Revenue from these
services is typically based on a fixed price oe git/en to the client.

Revenue associated with new marketing databasashigideferred until complete or until client adesge. Upon completion or acceptance,
revenue and direct build costs are then recogrozedthe term of the related arrangement as theécesrare provided. Revenue from databas
and website hosting services is recognized rataidy the contractual hosting period. Pricing fatathase builds are typically based on a fixec
price and hosting fees are typically based onedfgrice per month or per contract.

Revenue from technology database subscriptionasedon a fixed price and is recognized ratably theeterm of the subscription. Revenue
from stand-alone technology data sales is recodraz¢he time of delivery.

Revenue from services such as data processingingripersonalization of communication pieces usasgr and inkjet printing, targeted mail,
and transportation logistics is recognized as thekus performed. Revenue from these servicegiisally based on a fixed price or rate given
to the client. Postage costs of mailings in oveatimail business are borne by our clients andharelirectly reflected in our revenues or
expenses.

Revenue related to fulfillment and contact centiiduding inbound and outbound calling and emaihagement, is also typically based on a
fixed price per transaction or service provided&v@&ue from these services is recognized as thiesean activity is performed.

Revenue from software arrangements involving migtgdements is allocated to each element baseldeovmeindor-specific objective evidence
of fair values of the respective elements. Fotvgafe sales with multiple elements (for exampldtvgare licenses with undelivered post-
contract customer support or “PCS”), we allocateeneie to each component of the arrangement usingetidual value method based on the
fair value of the undelivered elements. This mea@siefer revenue from the software sale equdldddir value of the undelivered elements.
The fair value of PCS is based upon separate salesewals to other clients. The fair value af/gmes, such as training and consulting, is
based upon separate sales of these services tochémgs.

The revenue allocated to PCS is recognized ratal®y the term of the support period. Revenue atkxtto professional services is recogn
as the services are performed. The revenue afld¢atsoftware products, including time-based safénicenses, is recognized, if collection is
probable, upon execution of a licensing agreemeditshipment of the software or ratably over thetef the license, depending on the
structure and terms of the arrangement. If trenbing agreement is for a term of a year or leddrariudes PCS, we recognize the software
and the PCS revenue ratably over the term of temdie.

For certain non-software arrangements, we enterdohtracts that include delivery of a combinatidour service offerings. Such
arrangements are divided into separate units afiading, provided that the delivered element(s)diasd-alone value and objective and
reliable evidence of the fair value of the undeaiaceelement(s) exist(s).
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When we are able to unbundle the arrangement @garate units of accounting, revenue from eacliceeiy recognized separately, and in
accordance with our revenue recognition policygfach element. If we are unable to unbundle ttengament into separate units of
accounting, we apply one of the revenue recognijtmities to the entire arrangement. This mightastghe timing of revenue recognition, but
would not change the total revenue recognized fifeerarrangement.

Shopper services are considered rendered, andvbaue recognized, when all printing, sorting, limigeand ancillary services have been
provided and the mailing material has been recelyethe USPS.

Taxes collected from customers and remitted to gowental authorities are not reflected in our rexenor expenses.
Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments with an original matty of 90 days or less at the time of purchasecaresidered to be cash equivalents. Cash
equivalents are carried at cost, which approximitievalue.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We maintain our allowance for doubtful accounta ailance adequate to reduce accounts receivathle sonount of cash expected to be
realized upon collection. The methodology usedei@rmine the minimum allowance balance is basealioprior collection experience and is
generally related to the accounts receivable balamgarious aging categories. The balance isiafhtenced by specific clients’ financial
strength and circumstance. Accounts that are mi@ted to be uncollectible are written off in theipd in which they are determined to be
uncollectible. Periodic changes to the allowaralatce are recorded as increases or decreases tebiaexpense, which is included in the
“Advertising, selling, general and administrativigie of our Consolidated Statements of Comprehensizcome (Loss). The changes in the
allowance for doubtful accounts consisted of tHe¥ang:

Year Ended December 31

In thousands 2012 2011 2010
Balance at beginning of ye $ 3,23( $ 3,09¢ $ 2,78¢
Additions charged to expen 1,09¢ 1,39¢ 1,60z
Amounts recovered against the allowance, net of

charges (927) (1,262) (1,290
Balance at end of year $ 3,40z $ 3,23 $ 3,09¢
Inventory

Inventory, consisting primarily of newsprint, jobger and operating supplies, is stated at the lofveost (first-in, first-out method) or market.
Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated on this basost. Depreciation is computed using thaight-line method at rates calculated to
amortize the cost of the assets over their usefes| The general ranges of estimated useful bves

Buildings and improvemen 10 to 40 yeal
Software 3to 10 yeat
Equipment and furnitur 3 to 20 yeat

Long-lived assets such as property, plant and egerip are reviewed for impairment whenever eventhanges in circumstances indicate tha
the carrying amount of an asset may not be recblerdn the second quarter of 2012 we wrote of6$qillion of software related to various
unprofitable digital initiatives in our Shopperssiness, including SaverTime and mobile apps. Téeodtinuance of these initiatives was part
of our continued efforts to
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reduce expenses in our Shoppers business as taakesut financial performance and the poor ecomoroinditions in the areas in which our
Shoppers operate. We did not record an impairmiloing-lived assets in 2011 or 2010.

In December 2011 we sold a vacant piece of lanalcadjt to our Shoppers’ Brea, California facility £8.4 million. We recognized a gain of
$2.3 million on this transaction.

Property, plant and equipment includes capitaldessets. Capital lease assets at December Zaf@12011 consisted of:

December 31

In thousands 2012 2011

Equipment and furnitur $ 2,774 3 2,74¢
Less accumulated amortization (1,604 (1,606
Net book value $ 1,17C $ 1,14:

Amortization expense related to capital lease asgas $0.5 million, $0.4 million and $0.6 millicarfthe years ended December 31, 2012,
2011 and 2010, respectively.

Depreciation and amortization on the remaining prgpplant and equipment was $19.6 million, $19iltion and $20.8 million for the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respsactivel

Goodwill and Other Intangibles

Goodwill is recorded to the extent that the purehaisce of an acquisition exceeds the fair valuthefidentifiable net assets acquired. Other
intangibles with definite and indefinite usefuldivare recorded at fair value at the date of thaisition. The Company tests its goodwill and
other intangible assets with indefinite useful §fer impairment as of November 30 of each yearamndf an interim date should factors or
indicators become apparent that would require triim test. The company assesses the impairmetst gbodwill by determining the fair
value of each of its reporting units and compathegfair value to the carrying value for each réipgrunit. Fair values of our reporting units
and other intangibles with indefinite useful livesve been determined using discounted cash flovcasid flow multiple methodologies. Our
overall market capitalization also was consideréénvevaluating the fair values of our reportingsinintangible assets with definite useful
lives are amortized over their respective estimatful lives and reviewed for impairment if weibeé that changes or triggering events have
occurred that could have caused the carrying wvaltiee intangible assets to exceed its fair valie.a result of continuing revenue declines in
Shoppers, and in conjunction with managensataluation of the business, the Company detedhheg a triggering event had occurred in
second quarter of 2012. The subsequent goodwilhirment testing resulted in impairment chargebénsecond quarter of 2012 of $156.9
million. We also recorded $8.4 million in impairmecharges related to trade names and clientoektiips associated with the Tampa Flyer,
which are part of the Florida Shoppers operatiomsiacluded in discontinued operations. We havwaeoorded any other impairments of
goodwill or other intangible assets in our contirqudperations in any of the years during the tlyess-period ended December 31, 2012.

Income Taxes

Income taxes are calculated using the asset aititlianethod. Deferred income taxes are recoghine the tax consequences resulting from
temporary differences by applying enacted statutaxyrates applicable to future years. These teanpalifferences are associated with
differences between the financial and the tax bafséxisting assets and liabilities. Any statutohange in tax rates will be recognized
immediately in deferred taxes and income.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per common share are based upaveibbted-average number of common shares outstgudiring the period. Diluted
earnings per common share are based upon the wdightrage number of common shares and dilutivereomstock equivalents outstanding
during the period. Dilutive common stock equivateare calculated based on the assumed exercisecsfoptions and vesting of non-vested
shares using the treasury stock method.
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Stock-Based Compensation

All share-based awards are recognized as operatipgnse in the “Labor” line of the Consolidatedi@&teents of Comprehensive Income
(Loss). Calculated expense is based on the fhiesaf the awards on the date of grant and isgreized over the requisite service period.

Reserve for Healthcare, Workers’ Compensation, Autmobile and General Liability

We are self-insured for our workers’ compensatartpmobile, general liability and a portion of tv@althcare insurance. We make various
subjective judgments about a number of factorsibeminining our reserve for healthcare, workers’ pensation, automobile and general
liability insurance, and the related expense. @aguctible for individual healthcare claims is $thilion. Our deductible for workers’
compensation is $0.5 million. We have a $0.3 milldeductible for automobile and general liabidtgims. Our insurance administrator
provides us with estimated loss reserves, basex itgpexperience dealing with similar types of glaj as well as amounts paid to date agains
these claims. We apply actuarial factors to boluiance estimated loss reserves and to paid ctaichthen determine reserve levels, taking
into account these calculations. At December 8122and 2011, our reserve for healthcare, worlensipensation, automobile and general
liability was $11.4 million and $12.1 million, resgtively. Periodic changes to the reserve for wmykcompensation, automobile and general
liability are recorded as increases or decreasestwance expense, which is included in the “Atserg, selling, general and administrative”
line of our Consolidated Statements of Comprehenisicome (Loss). Periodic changes to the resenvidalthcare are recorded as increases
or decreases to employee benefits expense, whichligled in the “Labor” line of our Consolidateth®ments of Comprehensive Income
(Loss).

Foreign Currencies

In most instances the functional currencies offotgign operations are the local currencies. Asant liabilities recorded in foreign currenc
are translated in U.S. dollars at the exchangeoratibe balance sheet date. Revenue and expaesearslated at average rates of exchange
prevailing during a given month. Adjustments réaglfrom this translation are charged or creditedther comprehensive loss.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In the first quarter of 2012, we adopted AccountBtgndards Updates (ASU) 2011-@amprehensive Income (Topic 220): Presentation of
Comprehensive IncomeASU 2011-05 eliminates the option to preseneotomprehensive income in the statement of chaingsguity and
provides the option to present the components biheeme and comprehensive income in either onebamad financial statement or two
consecutive financial statements. We previoushsented the components of comprehensive incomari@ansolidated Statements of
Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income (tided Consolidated Statements of Changes in Ejjuity connection with this adoption
we have presented the components of net income@angrehensive income in one combined financiaéstant, the Consolidated Statements
of Comprehensive Income (Loss). The adoption oJ&2811-05 did not affect our operating resultshdd@ws or financial position.

In the third quarter of 2012, the Financial AccangtStandards Board (FASB) issued ASU No. 20124@fangibles — Goodwill and Other
(Topic 350): Testing Indefinite-Lived Intangibles&ts for ImpairmerfASU 2012-12). ASU 201P2 allows an entity to first assess qualita
factors to determine whether it is necessary téoparthe quantitative impairment test for indefialived intangible assets. An organization
that elects to perform a qualitative assessmaetjsired to perform the quantitative impairment fes an indefinite-lived intangible asset if it
is more likely than not that the asset is impairéde plan to adopt ASU 2012-02 in the first quaae2013. The adoption of ASU 2012 will
not affect our operating results, cash flows oafficial position.

Note B— Acquisitions

On August 31, 2010, we acquired Information Art&JWimited (Information Arts). Based in the Unit&dngdom, Information Arts is a
provider of data-driven marketing insight to busisio-business marketers across Europe — and
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increasingly across the globe. Information Artbvees data to improve multichannel marketing efifeeness. This insight is derived from
profiling, segmentation, modeling and other anabjtand drives engagements that include marketiteymdanagement, data hygiene, data
acquisition and data planning. Information Artsl &dtarte-Hanks’ other marketing offerings in Eur@pe being combined to deliver
multichannel Demand Center solutions - integratedi lgeneration and lead management programs. @Ebofti$12.8 million and intangible
assets subject to amortization of $0.5 million hbgen recognized in this transaction and assignétktDirect Marketing segment.

The total cost of the acquisition in 2010 was $Ifiion, all paid in cash. The operating resuifghis acquisition have been included in the
accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements fledate of the acquisition. We did not make aryuisitions in 2012 or 2011.

We have not disclosed proforma amounts includiregajerating results of this acquisition as theatff® our operating results is not
considered material.

Note C— Fair Value of Financial Instruments

FASB ASC 820Fair Value Measurements and DisclosuréASC 820) defines fair value as the price thatilide received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly trandantbetween market participants at the measuredaat ASC 820 also establishes a fair value
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs used in vatramethodologies into three levels:

Level 1 Quoted prices in active markets for identical assetiabilities.

Level 2 Observable inputs other than Level 1 prices, sgajuated prices for similar assets or liabilitiggoted prices in markets that are
not active; or other inputs that are observableaorbe corroborated by observable market dataufistantially the full term of the
assets or liabilities.

Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are supported by littla@market activity and that are significant to thie value of the assets or
liabilities.

Because of their maturities and/or variable intera®s, certain financial instruments have faluga approximating their carrying values.
These instruments include cash and cash equivabsdsunts receivable and trade payables. Thedhie of our outstanding debt is disclosec
in Note D,Long-Term Debt. The fair value of the assets in our funded pemplan is disclosed in Note Gmployee Benefit Plan#As
discussed in Note F5oodwill and Other Intangible Assets,the second quarter of 2012, the fair value af®woppers unit was calculated in
relation to a step-one impairment analysis, anddhesalue of Shoppers?P&E, goodwill and other intangible assets werewated in relatio

to a step-two impairment analysis.

Note D— Long-Term Debt

Our long-term debt obligations at year-end wertolsws:

December 31

In thousands 2012 2011
2008 Term Loan Facility, various interest rateseblasn LIBOR, due March 7, 20: 0 60,00(
2010 Revolving Credit Facility, various interestesabased on LIBOR, due August 12,

2013 ($60.5 million capacity at December 31, 2( 0 0
2011 Term Loan Facility, various interest rateselasn LIBOR (effective rate of

2.21% at December 31, 2012), due August 16, : 110,25( 119,43t
Total debt 110,25( 179,43t
Less current maturities 12,25( 69,18¢
Total long-term debt $ 98,000 $ 110,25(
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The carrying values and estimated fair values ofoatistanding debt at year-end were as follows:

December 31

2012 2011
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
In thousands Value Value Value Value
Total debt $ 110,25( $ 110,25( $ 179,43t % 179,28t

The estimated fair values were calculated usingectirates provided to us by our bankers for débi@same remaining maturity and
characteristics. These current rates are considereel 2 inputs under the fair value hierarchyabbshed by FASB ASC 82@air Value
Measurements and Disclosui, (ASC 820).

Credit Facilities

On March 7, 2008, we entered into a four-year $h@ilon term loan facility (2008 Term Loan Faciljtyith Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., as
Administrative Agent. The 2008 Term Loan Facilitured on March 7, 2012, at which time we paidrémeaining outstanding principal of
$60.0 million using cash on hand.

On August 12, 2010, we entered into a three-ye@nfiflion revolving credit facility, which includes $25 million accordion feature, a $25
million letter of credit sub-facility and a $5 nidh swing line loan sulfacility (2010 Revolving Credit Facility), with B&of America, N.A., a
Administrative Agent. The 2010 Revolving CreditcHigy permits us to request up to a $25 milliogri@ase in the total amount of the facility.
The 2010 Revolving Credit Facility matures on Augl®, 2013. For each borrowing under the 2010 Rawyp Credit Facility, we can
generally choose to have the interest rate fortibaetowing calculated on either (i) the LIBOR ré&as defined in the 2010 Revolving Credit
Facility) for the applicable interest period, pauspread which is determined based on our totalet®ttoEBITDA ratio (as defined in the 20
Revolving Credit Facility) then in effect, whichnges from 2.25% to 3.00% per annum; or (i) thénbij of (a) the Federal Funds Rate plus
0.50%, (b) the Agent’s prime rate, and (c) the LB€ate plus 1.00%, plus a spread which is detemir@sed on our total net debtE®ITDA
ratio then in effect, which ranges from 1.25% @026 per annum. There is a facility fee that weadse required to pay under the 2010
Revolving Credit Facility. The facility fee ratarrges from 0.40% to 0.45% per annum, dependingiptotal net debt-to-EBITDA ratio then
in effect. In addition, there is a letter of citeftie with respect to outstanding letters of credihat fee is calculated by applying a rate etual
the spread applicable to LIBOR based loans plusraihg fee of 0.125% per annum to the average daitirawn amount of the outstanding
letters of credit. We may elect to prepay the 2B&0olving Credit Facility at any time without incing any prepayment penalties. At
December 31, 2012 we had letters of credit totaiei million issued under the 2010 Revolving Cré&dicility, decreasing the amount
available for borrowing to $60.5 million. Our 20R@volving Credit Facility matures in August 201\8/e believe that we will be able to obt
a replacement revolver facility in a similar amoantl with similar terms.

On August 16, 2011, we entered into a five-year2@ illion term loan facility (2011 Term Loan Figi) with Bank of America, N.A., as
Administrative Agent. The 2011 Term Loan Facilittures on August 16, 2016. For each borrowingeutite 2011 Term Loan Facility, we
can generally choose to have the interest ratth&drborrowing calculated based on either (i) tH@QR rate (as defined in the 2011 Term L«
Facility) for the applicable interest period, pluspread (ranging from 2.00% to 2.75% per annursg@dan our total net funded debt-to-
EBITDA ratio (as defined in the 2011 Term Loan Hiijithen in effect; or (ii) the highest of (a)g¢Agent’s prime rate, (b) the BBA daily
floating rate LIBOR, as determined by Agent forlsaate, plus 1.00%, and (c) the Federal Funds ftase0.50%, plus a spread (ranging from
1.00% to 1.75% per annum) based on our total metefd debt-to-EBITDA ratio then in effect. We madgae to prepay the 2011 Term Loan
Facility at any time without incurring any prepaymh@enalties.

Under all of our credit facilities, we are requitedmaintain an interest coverage ratio of not thas 2.75 to 1 and a total debtE&ITDA ratio
of not more than 3.0 to 1. The credit facilitiésoacontain customary covenants restricting our@mdsubsidiaries’ ability to:
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» authorize distributions, dividends, stock redemiand repurchases if a payment event of defaslbbeurred and is continuing;

*  enter into certain merger or liquidation transatsio

e grantliens;

*  enter into certain sale and leaseback transactions;

* have foreign subsidiaries account for more than 20%e consolidated revenue, assets or EBITDA aftétHanks and its
subsidiaries, in the aggregate;

* enter into certain transactions with affiliatesgan

» allow the total indebtedness of Harte-Hanks’ subsigls to exceed $20.0 million.

The credit facilities each also include customaryenants regarding reporting obligations, delivefrpotices regarding certain events,
maintaining our corporate existence, payment agakbns, maintenance of our properties and insedhereon at customary levels with
financially sound and reputable insurance companieéntaining books and records and compliance agiplicable laws. The credit facilities
each also provide for customary events of defagluding nonpayment of principal or interest, breatrepresentations and warranties,
violations of covenants, failure to pay certainestimdebtedness, bankruptcy and material judgnerddiabilities, certain violations of
environmental laws or ERISA or the occurrence ohange of control. Our material domestic subsig$aihave guaranteed the performance o
Harte-Hanks under our credit facilities.

The future minimum principal payments related to debt at December 31, 2012 are as follows:

In thousands

2013 $ 12,25(
2014 15,31
2015 18,37:
2016 64,31:
2017 0

$ 110,25(

Cash payments for interest were $3.2 million, $8itlion, and $2.8 million for the years ended Detem31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

Note E — Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense (benefithsifellows:

Year Ended December 31

In thousands 2012 2011 2010
Current

Federa $ 14,50¢ $ 12,507 $ 20,29¢
State and loce 3,95( 5,84: 4,00¢
Foreign 1,87¢ 2,054 1,61¢
Total current $ 20,33 % 20,40¢ % 25,92:¢
Deferred

Federa $ (34,91¢ $ 10,267 $ 7,83(
State and loce (7,727 237 (14€)
Foreign (87¢) (117) (315)
Total deferred $ (4351H $ 10,387 $ 7,36¢

©“
©“

Total income tax expense (benefit) (23,187 $ 30,79: 33,29:
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The United States and foreign components of incass) from continuing operations before incomestawere as follows:

Year Ended December 31

In thousands 2012 2011 2010
United State: $ (100,19) $ 69,94. $ 83,38¢
Foreign 3,90¢ 6,721 5,09¢
Total income (loss) from continuing

operations before income tax $ (96,286 $ 76,66¢ $ 88,48¢

The differences between total income tax expensed(it) and the amount computed by applying thiutiey federal income tax rate to inca
before income taxes were as follows:

Year Ended December 31

In thousands 2012 Rate 2011 Rate 2010 Rate
Computed expected income tax expense

(benefit) $ (33,700 -35%$  26,83¢ 35%$ 30,97( 35%
Net effect of state income tax 2,907 3% 3,952 5% 2,29( 3%
Production activities deductic 0 0% 0 0% (469) -1%
Goodwill impairment 8,76¢ 9% 0 0% 0 0%
Change in beginning of year valuation

allowance (1,225 -1% (117 0% 40 0%
Other, net 71 0% 122 0% 461 1%
Income tax expense (benefit) for the peri $ (23,187 -24%$ 30,79 4C%$  33,29: 38%

Total income tax expense (benefit) was allocatefléswvs:

Year Ended December 31

In thousands 2012 2011 2010

Continuing operation $ (23,187 $ 30,79: $ 33,29:
Discontinued operatior (4,98)) (1,01¢ (569
Loss on sali (2,149 0 0
Stockholders’ equity (73€) (5,910 (463%)
Total $ (31,040 $ 23,86 $ 32,26(

The tax effects of temporary differences that géseto significant portions of the deferred tagets and deferred tax liabilities were as

follows:
December 31

In thousands 2012 2011
Deferred tax asset:

Deferred compensation and retirement | $ 31,51 % 27,03¢
Accrued expenses not deductible until g 5,45¢ 6,57(
Employee stoc-based compensatic 4,00( 6,42¢
Accrued payroll not deductible until pe 2,36: 3,57:
Accounts receivable, n 1,96: 1,221
Other, ne 15¢ 18t
State income ta 69 494
Federal net operating loss carryforwa 151 151
Foreign net operating loss carryforwa 2,43¢ 2,59(
State net operating loss carryforwards 2,21¢ 1,20¢
Total gross deferred tax assets 50,33: 49,45¢
Less valuation allowance (2,439 (3,639
Net deferred tax asse $ 4789. $ 45,81"
Deferred tax liabilities

Property, plant and equipme $ (11,787 $ (16,299
Goodwill and other intangibles (81,859 (112,377)
Total gross deferred tax liabilities (93,64¢) (128,679
Net deferred tax liabilitie $ (45,759 $ (82,859
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In assessing the realizability of deferred tax tsssee consider whether it is more likely than tinatt some portion or all of the deferred tax
assets will not be realized. Based on the expentaf future taxable income and that the deduettbmporary differences will offset existing
taxable temporary differences, we believe it is enikely than not that we will realize the benefifsthese deductible differences, net of the
existing valuation allowances, at December 31, 204®2011.

Net deferred taxes are recorded both as a curedetrdd income tax asset and as other-term liabilities based upon the classificatiorttod
related assets and liabilities that give rise témporary difference. There are approximateB. Banillion and $36.2 million of deferred tax
assets related to non-current items that are nefitbdong-term deferred tax liabilities at DecemB&, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Harte-Hanks or one of our subsidiaries files incdaereturns in the U.S. federal, U.S. state améidm jurisdictions. For U.S. federal, U.S.
state and foreign returns, we are no longer subjetetx examinations for years prior to 2008.

A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoeaininrecognized tax benefit is as follows:

Balance at January 1, 20 $ 371
Additions for current year tax positio $ 0
Additions for prior year tax positior 27
Reductions for prior year tax positio 0
Lapse of statut (230)
Settlements (77
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 91
Additions for current year tax positio $ 0
Additions for prior year tax positior 0
Reductions for prior year tax positio 0
Lapse of statut (40)
Settlements 0
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 51

Included in the balance as of December 31, 201%@rkemillion of federally effected unrecognized teenefits that, if recognized, would
impact the effective tax rate. We anticipate thest reasonably possible that we will have a reiducin the liability of up to $0.1 million durir
2013 as a result of lapsing statutes.

We have elected to classify any interest and pesaklated to income taxes within income tax espen our Consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Income (Loss). We recognized $0lliomin tax benefits for the reduction of accruatkrest and penalties associated witk
reduction of the liability for unrecognized tax lefits during each of the years ended December@Il2 2nd 2011. We did not have any
interest and penalties accrued at December 31, @02Q11.

As of December 31, 2012, we had net operatingdasyforwards that are available to reduce futas@ble income and that will begin to
expire in 2026.

The valuation allowance for deferred tax assetsf danuary 1, 2011, was $3.7 million. The valuatdiowance at December 31, 2012 and
2011 relates to foreign and state net operatingdasryforwards, which are not expected to bezedli As part of our assessment of the
realizability of our deferred tax assets, and basethe expectations of future taxable income &atithe deductible temporary differences will
offset existing taxable temporary differences, eguced our January 1, 2012 valuation allowancecaged with the Florida Shoppers net
operating loss by $1.0 million.
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Deferred income taxes have not been provided onnlestributed earnings of our foreign subsidiaseghese earnings have been, and undetr
current plans will continue to be, permanently vested in these subsidiaries. As of December @12 2he cumulative undistributed earnings
of these subsidiaries were approximately $4.4 amilli If those earnings were not considered pernthneginvested, U.S. federal deferred
income taxes would have been recorded, after ceratidn of U.S. foreign tax credits. Howeversihiot practicable to estimate the amount of
additional taxes which may be payable upon distiGins.

Cash payments for income taxes were $13.6 milkd’,5 million and $28.2 million in 2012, 2011 ar@llP, respectively.

Note F— Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Gooduwill represents the excess of the purchase pfian acquisition over the fair values of thentifeable net assets acquired. Other
intangible assets with definite and indefinite uséf/es are recorded at fair value at the dataagfuisition. The Company tests its goodwill
other intangible assets with indefinite useful §ifer impairment as of November 30 of each yearamdf an interim date should factors or
indicators become apparent that would require tariin test. The company assesses the impairmetst gbodwill by determining the fair
value of each of its reporting units and compathegfair value to the carrying value for each répgrunit. We have identified our reporting
units as Direct Marketing and Shoppers.

Prior to the sale of our Florida Shoppers in 2@i&,Shoppers business operated in regional marketsth California and Florida and was
greatly affected by the strength of the state andlleconomies. Revenues from our Shoppers busime® largely dependent on local
advertising expenditures in the areas of Califoamd Florida in which we operated. During 2012, poor economic conditions that we have
experienced since the second half of 2007 in Qalidoand Florida continued. These conditions virsiteally created by weakness in the real
estate and associated financing markets and hagadspnd persist across virtually all categoridsinagement sees little, if any, improvement
in the California and Florida economies and the Gany expects to have further challenges beforepagnce improves. In response, during
the first half of 2012, the Company continued fterts to reduce expenses in the Shoppers busipgesarily through organizational
restructuring and the discontinuation of a numbieamprofitable digital initiatives, including Savieme and mobile apps.

As a result of continuing revenue declines in Sleogpand in conjunction with management’s evalumadibthe business, the Company
determined that a triggering event had occurredtatan interim step-one impairment test of Shogmmodwill was warranted in connection
with the preparation of its second quarter 201arfirial statements. The fair value of the Shoppeitswas estimated using a discounted cash
flow model and a cash flow multiple model, whichreseonsistent with those used in our most recemb@rnmpairment testing as of
November 30, 2011. The fair value of our Shoppaiswas estimated to be less than its related/icayvalue. Management determined 1

the goodwill balance with respect to this reportimit was impaired and step-two testing was deeneedssary.

Step-two of the goodwill test consists of perforgnnhypothetical purchase price allocation, und@ckvthe estimated fair value of the
reporting unit is allocated to its tangible andaimgible assets based on their estimated fair vahigsany residual amount being assigned to
goodwill. During the stepwo analysis, book value was estimated to approtarfar value for all working capital items, as et a number ¢
insignificant assets and liabilities. Owned resthée and buildings were valued using the marketagzh and comparable property values.
Other significant property, plant and equipmennigenere valued using the cost approach and tremdodgls to estimate the cost of
reproduction and then adjusting for the diminutidrvalue from physical deterioration and obsoleseen

The models used to value the total Shoppers usitep-one relied heavily on management’s assungtidhese assumptions, which are
significant to the calculated fair values, are cdeed Level 3 inputs under the fair value hiergrebtablished by FASB ASC 820 as they are
unobservable. The assumptions in step-one indist®unt rate, revenue growth rates, tax ratesopedating margins. The discount rate
represents the expected return on capital of tlg®rs unit. The discount rate was determinedyusitarget structure of 30% debt and 70%

equity.
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We used the interest rate of a 30-year governnegnirgty to determine the risk-free rate in our virbégl average cost of capital calculation.
Projected growth rates and terminal growth ratespamarily driven by management’s best estimatiitfre performance, giving
consideration to historical performance and existind anticipated economic and competitive conmutioAssumed tax rates represent
management’s best estimates of blended federadtatelincome tax rates. Operating margin assumgptee primarily driven by
management’s best estimate of future performarnemggconsideration to historical performance aridng and anticipated economic and
competitive conditions.

The impairment analysis indicated that $156.9 onillof goodwill and $8.4 million of other intangibleelating to trade names and client
relationships associated with the Tampa Flyer (idetl in the Florida Shoppers operations) acquisiticApril 2005, were impaired. As a
result, a total impairment charge of $165.3 milliwas recorded in the Consolidated Statements ofg@aimensive Income (Loss) in the second
quarter of 2012. The Company had not previoustpmed impairments of either goodwill or other irgible assets. Therefore the amount of
impairments recorded in the second quarter of 28fp&esents the cumulative amount of goodwill amgointangible asset impairment charge:
through June 30, 2012.

We performed our annual goodwill impairment tesfimgboth the Direct Marketing and Shoppers segmaatof November 30, 2012.
Consistent with prior periods, fair value was detieied using a discounted cash flow model, a cash fhultiple model, and with considerati
of our overall market capitalization. Based onrisults of our November 30, 2012 impairment tegésdid not record any additional
impairment losses in 2012 related to goodwill. #hknot record an impairment loss related to gotidw2011 or 2010.

The Company continues to monitor potential trigggmevents, including changes in the business dhinmaivhich it operates, attrition of key
personnel, the current volatility in the capitalrieds, the Company’s market capitalization compaodits book value, the Company’s recent
operating performance, and the Company'’s finarpmajections. The occurrence of one or more triggeevents could require additional
impairment testing, which could result in additibimpairment charges in the future.

Excluding the Florida Shoppers operations, whichevemld in 2012 and are included in discontinueerafions in our Consolidated Financial
Statements, the total impairment charge relatenitdShoppers business was $156.9 million, all attvihelated to goodwill.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwillasdollows:

Direct

In thousands Marketing Shoppers Total

Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 398,16: $ 167,48 $ 565,65
Purchase considerati 0 0 0
Impairment 0 0 0
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 398,16: $ 167,48 $ 565,65
Purchase consideratit 0 0 0
Impairment 0 (156,93f) (156,936
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 398,16: $ 10,55 $ 408,71!

Other intangibles with indefinite useful lives reldo trade names associated with the Aberdeerisiiguo in September 2006. Excluding the
Florida Shoppers operations, we did not recordrgrairment loss related to other intangibles witteiiinite lives in any of the years in the
three year period ended December 31, 2012. Adrdtitangible asset balances and activity relaidtie Florida Shoppers operations have
been excluded from the following rollforward table.
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The changes in the carrying amount of other intalegiwith indefinite lives are as follows:

Direct

In thousands Marketing Shoppers Total

Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 5000 $ 0 $ 5,00(
Purchase consideratit 0 0 0
Impairment 0 0 0
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 5000 $ 0 $ 5,00(
Purchase considerati 0 0 0
Impairment 0 0 0
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 5,000 $ 0 $ 5,00(

Other intangibles with definite useful lives allate to contact databases, client relationshipsnamdcompete agreements. Other intangible
assets with definite useful lives are amortizedatraight-line basis over their respective esiahaiseful lives, typically a period of 3 to 10
years, and reviewed for impairment whenever eventhanges in circumstances indicate that the iceygmount of an asset may not
recoverable. Excluding the Florida Shoppers opmat we did not record an impairment loss relatedther intangibles with definite useful
lives in any of the years in the three year peended December 31, 2012. All other intangible tasakances and activity related to the Floride
Shoppers operations have been excluded from tleiog rollforward table.

The changes in the carrying amount of other intalegiwith definite lives are as follows:

Direct

In thousands Marketing Shoppers Total

Balance at December 31, 2010 $ 733 % 0 $ 7332
Purchase considerati 0 0 0
Amortization (229 0 (229
Impairment 0 0 0
Balance at December 31, 2011 $ 504 $ 0 $ 504
Purchase considerati 0 0 0
Amortization (24%) 0 (24%)
Impairment 0 0 0
Balance at December 31, 2012 $ 25¢ $ 0 $ 25¢€

Amortization expense related to other intangiblés wefinite useful lives was $0.2 million, $0.2lhwein and $0.3 million for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectivelype&ird amortization expense for the next five yeasas follows:

In thousands

2013 $ 207
2014 $ 52
2015 $ 0
2016 $ 0
2017 $ 0
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Note G— Employee Benefit Plans

Prior to January 1, 1999, we maintained a defirmtkeht pension plan for which most of our employaese eligible. In conjunction with
significant enhancements to the 401(k) plan, wetetkto freeze benefits under this defined bepetfitsion plan (frozen pension plan) as of
December 31, 1998.

In 1994, we adopted a non-qualified, unfunded, Bmpntal pension plan (supplemental pension plangring certain employees, which
provides for incremental pension payments so thtat pension payments equal those amounts thatdWaue been payable from the principal
pension plan were it not for limitations imposedibgome tax regulation. The benefits under thjgoéemental pension plan will continue to
accrue as if the principal pension plan had nohbezzen.

The overfunded or underfunded status of our defbertkfit postretirement plans is recorded as agt asdiability on our balance sheet. The
funded status is measured as the difference betthedhair value of plan assets and the projecteefiteobligation. Periodic changes in the
funded status are recognized through other comps&feincome. We currently measure the fundedistatt our defined benefit plans as of
December 31, the date of our year-end consolidadéahce sheets.

The status of the defined benefit pension plangat-end was as follows:

Year Ended December 31

In thousands 2012 2011
Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of ye $ 160,22! $ 147,72:
Service cos 467 457
Interest cos 7,841 8,11¢
Actuarial loss 18,74* 11,53
Benefits paid (8,207 (7,609
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 179,07 $ 160,22!
Change in plan asset

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of y $ 93,00: $ 97,49°
Actual return on plan asse 9,952 (3,185
Contributions 7,421 6,294
Benefits paid (8,207 (7,609
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 102,17 $ 93,00:
Funded status at end of year $ (76,90) $ (67,229

The following amounts have been recognized in tbestlidated Balance Sheets at December 31.:

In thousands 2012 2011

Other current liabilitie $ 1,437 $ 1,06¢

Other long-term liabilities 75,46¢ 66,15t
$ 76,90 $ 67,22:

The following amounts have been recognized in actat®ed other comprehensive loss at December 31.:

In thousands 2012 2011

Net loss $ 54,43: $ 48,70:

Prior service cost 0 3
$ 5443. $ 48,70"

We plan to make total contributions of $4.6 millimnour frozen pension plan in 2013 in order taagbthe Pension Protection Act of 2006 full
funding limit exemption.
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We are not required to make and do not intend tikenaay contributions to our unfunded, supplemepgalsion plan in 2013 other than to the
extent needed to cover benefit payments. We exymwfit payments under this supplemental pendemtp total $1.4 million in 2013. In the
event of a change of control, as defined in the pglacument, this supplemental pension plan is redub be fully funded.

The following information is presented for penspans with an accumulated benefit obligation inesecof plan assets:

December 31

In thousands 2012 2011

Projected benefit obligatic $ 179,07 $ 160,25
Accumulated benefit obligatic $ 177,44: $ 158,09
Fair value of plan asse $ 102,17 $ 93,00:

The unfunded, supplemental pension plan had amadeted benefit obligation of $26.6 million and $&illion at December 31, 2012 and
2011, respectively.

The following table presents the components ofeeiodic benefit cost and other amounts recognizedher comprehensive loss:

Year Ended December 31

In thousands 2012 2011 2010
Net Periodic Benefit Cost (Pr+-tax)
Service cos $ 467 $ 457 $ 341
Interest cos 7,841 8,11¢ 7,98¢
Expected return on plan ass (6,739 (7,029 (6,167)
Amortization of prior service co: 4 49 54
Recognized actuarial loss 5,99¢ 4,51¢ 4,081
Net periodic benefit cot $ 7,57¢ $ 6,121 $ 6,297
Amounts Recognized in Other Comprehensive Loss (F-

tax)
Net loss $ 9,54¢ $ 17,22: $ 2,681
Prior service cost (4) (49) (54)
Total cost recognized in other comprehensive loss $ 9,54/ $ 17,17 $ 2,621

Net cost recognized in net periodic benefit cost atmer
comprehensive los $ 17,12. $ 23,29¢ $ 8,92¢

The estimated net loss for the defined benefit jpanglans that will be amortized from accumulatéfieo comprehensive loss into net periodic
benefit cost in 2013 is $6.6 million.

The weighted-average assumptions used for measnterithe defined pension plans were as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine net
periodic benefit cost
Discount rate 5.02% 5.62% 6.2(%
Expected return on plan ass 7.25% 7.25% 7.2%
Rate of compensation incree 3.0(% 4.0(% 4.0(%
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December 31

2012 2011
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine bene
obligations
Discount rate 4.15% 5.02%
Rate of compensation incree 3.0(% 4.0(%

The discount rate assumptions are based on cyirdds of investment-grade corporate long-term Isonthe expected long-term return on
plan assets is based on the expected future avaregl return for each major asset class witherpthn’s portfolio (which is principally
comprised of equity investments) over a long-teorizon. In determining the expected long-term dteeturn on plan assets, we evaluated
input from our investment consultants, actuariaes, iavestment management firms, including theifeevof asset class return expectations, a:
well as long-term historical asset class retufPmjected returns by such consultants and econemauistbased on broad equity and bond
indices. Additionally, we considered our histotit&-year compounded returns, which have beendesxof the forward-looking return
expectations.

The funded pension plan assets as of Decembe22,énhd 2011, by asset category, are as follows:

In thousands 2012 % 2011 %

Equity securitie: $ 64,56 63% $ 59,65¢ 64%
Debt securitie! 30,88 30% 28,23¢ 30%
Other 6,72¢ 7% 5,10¢ 6%
Total plan assets $ 102,17 10(% $ 93,00: 100%

The current economic environment presents emplbgeefit plans with unprecedented circumstanceschatienges, which, in some cases
over the last several years, have resulted in ldegénes in the fair value of investments. Thevalues presented have been prepared using
values and information available as of Decembe2812.

The following tables present the fair value measwmets of the assets in our funded pension plan:

Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
December 31 Assets Inputs Inputs
In thousands 2012 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Equity securitie: $ 64,56 $ 64,56 $ 0 $ 0
Debt securitie: 30,88: 30,88: 0 0
Other 6,72¢ 6,58( 14¢ 0
Total $ 102,17  $ 102,02¢ $ 148§ 0
Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
December 31 Assets Inputs Inputs
In thousands 2011 (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Equity securitie: $ 59,65¢ $ 59,65¢ $ 0 $ 0
Debt securitie! 28,23¢ 28,23¢ 0] 0
Other 5,10¢ 5,10¢ 0 0
Total $ 93,00: $ 93,00 $ 0 $ 0

Assets with estimated fair values measured usingll2inputs represent unlisted depository receiptse fair value of these depository
receipts were calculated by our trustee using biskgiotes.
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The investment policy for the Harte-Hanks, Inc. $ten Plan focuses on the preservation and enhamtexhthe corpus of the plan’s assets
through prudent asset allocation, quarterly moimtpand evaluation of investment results, and pcimeetings with investment managers.

The investment policy’s goals and objectives ammé®t or exceed the representative indices ovalt mérket cycle (3-5 years). The policy
establishes the following investment mix, whiclnignded to subject the principal to an accepthevel of volatility while still meeting the
desired return objectives:

Target Acceptable Range Benchmark Index

Domestic Equities 50.(%  35%- 75% S&P 500

Large Cap Growtl 22.5%  15%- 30% Russell 1000 Growt

Large Cap Valui 22.5%  15%- 30% Russell 1000 Valu

Mid Cap Value 5% 5%-15% Russell Mid Cap Valu

Mid Cap Growth 0.% 0%-10% Russell Mid Cap Growt
Domestic Fixed Incom 35.(% 15%- 50% LB Aggregate
International Equitie 15.(% 10%- 25% MSC1 EAFE

The funded pension plan provides for investmemairious investment types. Investments, in genaralgxposed to various risks, such as
interest rate, credit, and overall market volatitisk. Due to the level of risk associated witheéstments, it is reasonably possible that change
in the value of investments will occur in the neam and may impact the funded status of the plemaddress the issue of risk, the investmer
policy places high priority on the preservatiorttod value of capital (in real terms) over a maketie. Investments are made in companies
with a minimum fiveyear operating history and sufficient trading vokuto facilitate, under most market conditions, pppsale without seve
market effect. Investments are diversified; reabbsm concentration in any one issue, issuer, industgeographic area is allowed if the
potential reward is worth the risk.

The following table presents the investments teptesented 5% or more of the funded pension pkassts as of December 31, 2012 and
2011:

In thousands 2012 % 2011 %
LM Institutional Fund Advisors I, Inc.

Western Asset Core Pli $ 16,79: 15%$ 15,47( 17%
State Street Government STIF $ 14,41¢ 13%$ 5,10¢ 6%
PIMCO Total Return Fund Institutiona

Class $ 14,08¢ 13%$ 12,76¢ 14%

Investment managers are evaluated by the perfomnaitte representative indices over a full madyete for each class of assets. The
Pension Plan Committee reviews, on a quarterlysb#s® investment portfolio of each manager, witichudes rates of return, performance
comparisons with the most appropriate indices,cmparisons of each manageperformance with a universe of other portfolionagers the
employ the same investment style.

The expected future pension benefit payments n#xt ten years as of December 31, 2012 are las/fol

In thousands

2013 $ 8,44(
2014 8,69t
2015 8,94
2016 9,15¢
2017 9,371
2018 - 2022 50,57¢

$ 95,18!¢
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We also sponsor a 401(k) retirement plan in whiehmatch a portion of employees’ voluntary beforedantributions. Under this plan, both
employee and matching contributions vest immedjatélotal 401(k) expense recognized in 2012, 20id. 2010 was $5.0 million, $5.2 milli
and $5.3 million, respectively.

Note H — Stockholders Equity

We paid a quarterly dividend of 8.5 cents per sirmemach of the first three quarters of 2012 anadl dividends of 8.5 cents per share in the
fourth quarter of 2012. The second dividend paithe fourth quarter of 2012 was a one-time aca#tar of the regular quarterly dividend we
would have ordinarily paid in the first quarter2if13. As a result, we do not anticipate payingvaldnd in the first quarter of 2013. We
currently plan to pay a quarterly dividend of 8ehits per share in each of the second, third amthfouarters of 2013, although any actual
dividend declaration can be made only upon approfvalr Board of Directors, based on its businadgient. We paid a quarterly dividend
of 8.0 cents per share in each of the quarter®11 2nd 7.5 cents per share in each of the quant@10.

During 2012, we repurchased 0.7 million sharesunfammmon stock for $4.4 million under our stocgurhase program that was publicly
announced in August 2012. Under this program aar8 of Directors has authorized us to spend §1@0 million to repurchase shares of
our outstanding common stock. As of December 8122we had authorization to spend $5.6 millionejourchase additional shares under thi
program. From January 1997 through December 28&2ave spent more than $1.2 billion to repurclé®sé million shares under this
program and previously announced programs.

During 2012, we received 22,168 shares of our comstack, with an estimated market value of $0.2iom) in connection with stock option
exercises and the vesting of non-vested shareme Sanuary 1997, we have received 1.9 millioneshizw connection with stock option
exercises and the vesting of non-vested shares.

Note | — Stock-Based Compensation

Compensation expense for stock-based awards igl loaste fair values of the awards on the datearfitgand is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period of the entire awarthé “Labor” line of the Consolidated Statemerft€omprehensive Income (Loss). For the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,coede total stoc-based compensation expense of $3.4 million, $5lllbomand $3.9
million, respectively. $0.5 million of the 201losk-based compensation related to the retiremethisoPresident of Harte-Hanks Shoppers. |
connection with his retirement on August 31, 2(llof his unvested stock-based awards vested.

In May 2005, we adopted the 2005 Omnibus Inceri®ha@ (2005 Plan), a stockholder approved plan,yaunisto which we may issue equity
securities to directors, officers and key employddader the 2005 Plan we have awarded stock aptimon-vested shares and performance
stock units. The 2005 Plan replaced the 1991 Simtion Plan (1991 Plan), a stockholder approved,gbursuant to which we issued stock
options to directors, officers and key employels. additional options will be granted under the 1®9an. As of December 31, 2012, there
were 3.6 million shares available for grant undher2005 Plan.

Stock Options

Under the 2005 Plan, all options have been gragitedercise prices equal to the market value o€tlmemon stock on the grant date (2005
options). All 2005 Plan options granted prior @12 become exercisable in 25% increments on thensgethird, fourth and fifth anniversaries
of their date of grant and expire on the tenth eensiary of their date of grant. All options grahte 2011 and 2012 become exercisable in 25¢
increments on the first, second, third and fourthigersaries of their date of grant, and expirgtententh anniversary of their date of grant. A
of December 31, 2012, 2005 Plan options to purchdsenillion shares were outstanding with exergisees ranging from $6.04 to $28.85 per
share.

Under the 1991 Plan, options were granted at eseeqmiices equal to the market value of the comntmrk©n the grant date (1991 Plan marke
price options) and at exercise prices below theketaralue of the common stock (1991 Plan perforraaqtions). 1991 Plan market price
options become exercisable in 25% increments osdhend, third, fourth and fifth anniversarieshdit date of grant and expire on the tenth
anniversary of their date of grant. As
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of December 31, 2012, 1991 Plan market price optiorpurchase 1.0 million shares were outstanditiy exercise prices ranging from $17
to $25.63 per share. No 1991 Plan performancengptiave been granted since January 1999, arehadiming 1991 Plan performance opti
were exercised in January 2009.

All options granted under the 1991 Plan and 20@% Rést in full upon a change of control (as defimeeach plan).

The following summarizes all stock option activityring the years ended December 31, 2012, 201 2@hat

Weighted-
Average Aggregate
Weighted- Remaining Intrinsic
Number Average Contractual Value
of Shares Option Price Term (Years) (Thousands)
Options outstanding at December 31, 2009 6,995,64' $ 16.6:
Grantec 1,514,50! 11.8¢
Exercisec (5,550 13.64 $ 7
Unvested options forfeite (282,194 12.6(C
Vested options expired (649,39) 16.5C
Options outstanding at December 31, 2010 7,573,011 $ 15.8¢
Grantec 420,50( 11.6¢
Exercisec (118,25() 6.04 $ 717
Unvested options forfeite (363,19) 11.15
Vested options expired (758,440 18.1¢
Options outstanding at December 31, 2011 6,753,621 $ 15.7¢
Grantec 970,50( 8.9¢
Exercisec (106,374 6.04 $ 297
Unvested options forfeite (798,31) 10.2¢
Vested options expired (1,712,81) 19.3¢
Options outstanding at December 31, 2012 5,106,62! $ 14.37 551 $ 0
Exercisable at December 31, 2012 2,850,33! $ 18.0¢ 36 $ 0

The aggregate intrinsic value at year end in théetabove represents the total pre-tax intrinsiagevéhat would have been received by the
option holders if all of the in-the-money optionen& exercised on December 31, 2012. The pre-tarsit value is the difference between the
closing price of our common stock on December B122and the exercise price for each in-the-monédipp This value fluctuates with the
changes in the price of our common stock. Thénisit value is zero at December 31, 2012 as theceseeprices of all outstanding options are
above the closing price of our common stock.
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The following table summarizes information abowaicktoptions outstanding at December 31, 2012:

Outstanding Exercisable

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average Average

Range of Number Exercise Remaining Number Exercise

Exercise Prices Outstanding Price Life (Years) Exercisable Price

$ 0.00-6.99 1,008,751 $ 6.04 5.9C 535,25( $ 6.04
$ 7.00-10.99 933,00 $ 8.81 9.3C 15,000 $ 7.8¢€
$11.00-11.99 860,62! $ 11.9( 6.9C 201,12 $ 11.9(
$12.00-15.99 684,62t $ 14.3¢ 6.0: 389,33. $ 15.1¢
$16.00-24.49 657,21t $ 21.1( 1.3 657,21¢ $ 21.1(C
$24.50-28.85 962,41. $ 25.8i 2.64 962,41. $ 25.8i
5,106,62' $ 14.3: 5.51 2,850,333 $ 18.0¢

The fair value of each option grant is estimatedhendate of grant using the Black-Scholes optidoipy model based on the following
weighted-average assumptions used for grants dafgag, 2011 and 2010:

Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Expected term (in years) 6.25 6.2F 6.7

Expected stock price volatilit 44.25% 39.76% 36.09%
Risk-free interest rat 1.05% 2.4% 2.7(%
Expected dividend yiel 3.41% 2.42% 2.42%

Expected term is estimated using the simplifiedhoeét which takes into account vesting and conteddrm. The simplified method is being
used to calculate expected term instead of higtbeixperience due to a lack of relevant historitzdh resulting from changes in option vesting
schedules and changes in the pool of employeewmgg®ption grants. Expected stock price volgtils based on the historical volatility from
traded shares of our stock over the expected t&ime. risk-free interest rate is based on the rigezero-coupon U.S. Treasury instrument witt
a remaining term approximately equal to the expktdem. Expected dividend yield is based on histbistock price movement and
anticipated future annual dividends over the exgaterm. Future annual dividends over the expdeted are estimated to range between
$0.34 and $0.44 per share, with a weighted-avesagaal dividend of $0.39 per share.

The weighted-average fair value of options gramheding 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $2.74, $3.85 aritD$8Bespectively. As of December 31,
2012, there was $4.3 million of total unrecognizethpensation cost related to unvested stock optidhss cost is expected to be recognized
over a weighted average period of approximatel§ ¥éars.

Non-vested Shares

All non-vested shares have been granted under0®® Rlan. In general, all non-vested shares gigmier to 2011 vest 100% on the third
anniversary of their date of grant. The majoritymon-vested shares granted in 2011 and 2012 vest ia #treal increments on the first, sec
and third anniversaries of their date of grante Témaining non-vested shares granted in 2011 @h2 Zest 100% on the third anniversary of
their date of grant. Non-vested shares granteerthg 2005 Plan also vest upon a change of control
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The following summarizes all non-vested share agtoluring 2012, 2011 and 2010:

Weighteo-
Average
Number Grant-Date
of Shares Fair Value
Non-vested shares outstanding at December 31, 2009 153,741 % 15.7¢
Grantec 85,74, 11.9¢
Vested (48,209 24.7¢
Forfeited (10,000 24.8¢
Non-vested shares outstanding at December 31, 2010 181,28t $ 11.0¢
Grantec 300,22 12.31
Vested (53,677 15.0¢4
Forfeited (8,499 11.9¢
Non-vested shares outstanding at December 31, 2011 419,34( % 11.4:
Grantec 332,11: 9.91
Vested (143,629 9.82
Forfeited (107,379 11.0¢
Non-vested shares outstanding at December 31, 2012 500,457 g 10.9¢

The fair value of each non-vested share is estinatethe date of grant as the closing market pricgir common stock on the date of grant.
As of December 31, 2012, there was $3.0 milliototd! unrecognized compensation cost related tevested shares. This cost is expected tt
be recognized over a weighted average period abappately 1.71 years.

Performance Stock Units

All performance stock units have been granted utite005 Plan. Performance stock units are a dremare-based awards similar to non-
vested shares, except that the number of shaismtéty issued is based on our performance agsjestific performance goals over a three-
year period. At the end of the performance pettioe number of shares of stock issued will be detezd by adjusting upward or downwe
from the maximum in a range between 0% and 100%onla change of control, outstanding performanmekatinits will be paid out at the
100% level.

F-28




Table of Contents

The following summarizes all performance stock awtivity during 2012, 2011 and 2010:

Weighted-
Average

Number Grant-Date

of Shares Fair Value
Performance stock units outstanding at Decembe2®19 57,45(C $ 20.5Z
Grantec 0 0
Issued 0 0
Forfeited (33,200 24.5¢
Performance stock units outstanding at Decembe2 10 24,25( % 14.9¢
Grantec 188,80( 11.3¢
Issued (29,200 11.3¢
Forfeited (24,250 14.9¢
Performance stock units outstanding at Decembe2 @11 169,60( $ 11.3¢
Grantec 136,00( 8.84
Issued 0 0
Forfeited (65,900 10.1¢
Performance stock units outstanding at Decembe2RI12 239,700 ¢ 10.2¢

The fair value of each performance stock unit tsvested on the date of grant as the closing markiee of our common stock on the date of
grant, minus the present value of anticipated éindlpayments. Periodic compensation expense ésllmsthe current estimate of future
performance against specific performance goals atkree-year period and is adjusted up or dowadas those estimates.

Note J— Commitments and Contingencies

At December 31, 2012, we had letters of credihmamount of $9.9 million, $9.5 of which were issumder the 2010 Revolving Credit
Facility. No amounts were drawn against thesergtf credit at December 31, 2012. These lettiecsedit exist to support insurance
programs relating to workers’ compensation, autalaa@nd general liability, as well as a real estdikgation.

On January 25, 2010, Harte-Hanks Shoppers, Inopjsrs), a California corporation and a subsididiarte-Hanks, Inc. (Harte-Hanks),
reached an agreement in principle with Shopperd@map Frank Gattuso and former employee Ernest&igalividually and on behalf of a
certified class, to settle and resolve a previod#glosed class action lawsuit filed in 200Arénk Gattuso et al. v. Harte-Hanks Inc. et ak,
further described below). During the fourth quade2009 we accrued the full $7.0 million assoeibtvith this agreement. This agreement in
principle was reduced to a class settlement agneeexecuted by the parties, and received final@aadrfrom the court on May 26, 2011.
Pursuant to the settlement agreement, Shoppelidisktal a class settlement fund of $7.0 million.rdturn, each member of the class,
including Gattuso and Sigala, released all claigarest Shoppers and its affiliates that in any wayse from or related to the matters which
were the subject of, or could have been the subjethe claims alleged in the class action lawsBiayments under the class settlement
agreement from the class settlement fund conclidé@digust 2011, and at that time $1.3 million otlaimed funds reverted back to Shopp

In the normal course of our business, we are ofelijander some agreements to indemnify our clieas result of claims that we infringe on
the proprietary rights of third parties. The teramsl duration of these commitments vary and, inesoases, may be indefinite, and certain of
these commitments do not limit the maximum amodifititure
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payments we could become obligated to make thateruaccordingly, our actual aggregate maximum suporelated to these types of
commitments cannot be reasonably estimated. Hiisityr, we have not been obligated to make sigaifiqppayments for obligations of this
nature, and no liabilities have been recordedHesé¢ obligations in our financial statements.

We are also currently subject to various otherllpgaceedings in the course of conducting our essrs and, from time to time, we may
become involved in additional claims and lawsuitsdental to our businesses. In the opinion of ag@ment, after consultation with counsel,
none of these matters is currently considered tieesonably possible of resulting in a materialeask effect on our consolidated financial
position or results of operations. Neverthelessgcannot predict the impact of future developmaeffescting our pending or future claims and
lawsuits and any resolution of a claim or lawsuthvn a particular fiscal quarter may adversely aopour results of operations for that quai
We expense legal costs as incurred, and all reddedgl liabilities are adjusted as required asebéformation becomes available to us. The
factors we consider when recording an accrual dotingencies include, among others: (i) the opisiand views of our legal counsel; (ii) our
previous experience; and (iii) the decision of management as to how we intend to respond to timplaints.

Note K — Leases

We lease certain real estate and equipment undeenaws lease agreements, most of which contain sengsval options. The total rent
expense applicable to operating leases was $1Hi6rm$21.0 million and $23.0 million for the yeaended December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010, respectively.

Step rent provisions and escalation clauses, ¢apiggovement funding, rent holidays and other éeasncessions are taken into account in
computing minimum lease payments. We recognizeninédmum lease payments on a straight-line basés the minimum lease term.

The future minimum rental commitments for all ncemcelable operating leases with terms in excesa®f/ear as of December 31, 2012 a
follows:

In thousands

2013 $ 15,68¢
2014 12,76:
2015 7,88¢
2016 5,51(
2017 3,93
After 2017 3,491

$ 49,27

We also lease certain equipment and software wajstal leases. Our capital lease obligationsatynd were as follows:

December 31

In thousands 2012 2011

Current portion of capital leas $ 36 $ 40z
Long-term portion of capital leases 30z 30&
Total capital lease obligations $ 671 $ 707

F-30




Table of Contents

The future minimum lease payments for all cap#abkks operating as of December 31, 2012 are awfoll

In thousands

2013 $ 36¢
2014 212
2015 73
2016 16
2017 1
After 2017 0

$ 61

Note L — Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed on the bi#ig eveighted average number of shares of comnumk ®utstanding during the period.
Diluted earnings per share is computed on the lodsie weighted average number of shares of constamk plus the effect of dilutive
potential common shares outstanding during theodarsing the treasury stock method. Dilutive ptiééicommon shares include outstanding

stock options and non-vested shares.

Reconciliations of basic and diluted earnings pars (EPS) are as follows:

Year Ended December 31

In thousands, except per share amount 2012 2011 2010
Net Income
Income (loss) from continuing operatic (73,109 $ 45877 $ 55,19
Loss from discontinued operations (10,249 (1,679 (1,590
Net income (loss (83,359 44,19¢ 53,60/
Basic EPS
Weightedaverage common shares outstanding used in eal
per share computatiol 62,88 63,17 63,61¢
Basic earnings (loss) per shi
Continuing operation (1.1¢) $ 0.7: % 0.87
Discontinued operations (0.17) (0.03) (0.03)
Net Income (1.39) $ 0.7C $ 0.84
Diluted EPS
Shares used in diluted earnings per share compusati 62,88’ 63,55: 64,13¢
Diluted earnings (loss) per she
Continuing operation (1.1¢) $ 0.7z $ 0.8¢€
Discontinued operations (0.19) (0.02) (0.02)
Net Income (1.3%9) $ 0.7C $ 0.84
Computation of Shares Used in Earnings Per Shat
Computations
Weightec-average common shares outstanc 62,88 63,17 63,61¢
Weighted-average common equivalent shares — dduwffect
of stock options and awar: 0 37¢ 523
Shares used in diluted earnings per share compusati 62,88 63,55: 64,13¢

There are no dilutive shares for the year endecdéer 31, 2012 as the Company has a net lossdgrathiod. All 6.1 million weighted-
average outstanding market price options and Ql&miveighted-average outstanding non-vested shiaage been excluded from the
calculation of shares used in the diluted EPS ¢aticun as they are considered anti-dilutive.

5.4 million and 6.0 million weighted-average anitiitive options have been excluded from the EP8utations for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. There me anti-dilutive non-vested shares for the yeaded December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively.
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Note M — Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income for a period encompassescatie and all other changes in equity other tham firansactions with our stockholders.
Our comprehensive income was as follows:

Year Ended December 31

In thousands 2012 2011 2010
Net income (loss $ (83,359 $ 44,19¢ $ 53,60«
Other comprehensive income (los
Adjustment to pension liabilit (9,544 (17,179 (2,627
Tax benefit 3,81¢ 6,86¢ 1,051
Adjustment to pension liability, net of tax (5,726 (10,309 (1,57¢)
Foreign currency translation adjustment 1,31¢ (1,337) (13€)
Total other comprehensive loss (4,417 (11,649 (1,712
Total comprehensive income (loss) $ (87,764 $ 32,557 § 51,89:

Note N— Selected Quarterly Data (Unaudited)

In thousands, 2012 Quarter Ended 2011 Quarter Ended
except per share amount: December 31 September 3C June 30 March 31 December 31 September 3C June 30 March 31
Revenue! $ 204,83¢ % 187,20 $ 189,62¢ $ 186,04 $ 215,110 $ 202,96° $ 202,83¢ % 190,71¢
Operating income (los: 22,14: 17,34t (143,407 13,97¢ 24,62: 21,17¢ 17,23¢ 15,06«
Income (loss) from continuing operatic 14,34: 9,75¢ (104,63) 7,43¢ 15,31( 12,26 9,95¢ 8,35(
Loss from discontinued operatio (3,647 (899 (5,067 (642) (582) (135) (529) (43%)
Net income (loss 10,69¢ 8,86: (109,709 6,79: 14,72¢ 12,12¢ 9,42t 7,915
Basic earnings (loss) per shs
Continuing operation $ 0.2 $ 0.1f $ (1.66) $ 01z $ 024 $ 02 $ 0.1€ $ 0.1z
Discontinued operatior (0.0€) (0.0 (0.0¢) (0.07) (0.07) (0.07) (0.03) (0.0
Net income (loss 0.17 0.1¢ (1.79) 0.11 0.2t 0.1¢ 0.1t 0.1z
Diluted earnings (loss) per sh¢
Continuing operation $ 02 $ 0.1t  $ (1.66) $ 01z $ 024 $ 0.1¢ $ 0.1€ $ 0.1z
Discontinued operatior (0.0€) (0.02) (0.0¢) (0.07) (0.03) (0.00 (0.07) (0.02)
Net income (loss 0.17 0.14 2.79 0.11 0.22 0.1¢ 0.1% 0.12

Earnings per common share amounts are computedendently for each of the quarters presented. eftwar, the sum of the quarterly
earnings per share amounts may not equal the glyantt income earnings per share amounts or thaalrearnings per share amounts.

Note O — Business Segments

Harte-Hanks is a worldwide direct and targeted retink company with operations in two segments —e&iMarketing and Shoppers.

Harte-Hanks Direct Marketing uses various capabdiand technologies to enable our clients to capanalyze and disseminate customer an
prospect data across all points of customer canfaicect Marketing services are targeted to speagitlustries or markets with services and
software products tailored to each industry or reairlCurrently, our Direct Marketing business seggivarious vertical markets including
retail, high-tech/telecom, financial services,
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pharmaceutical/healthcare, and a wide range ofteglanarkets. We believe that we are generally ttbprovide services to new industries
markets by modifying our services and applicatias®pportunities are presented. Depending oneabdsof our clients, our Direct Marketing
capabilities are provided in an integrated apprdhotugh more than 30 facilities worldwide, morantL0 of which are located outside of the
United States. Each of these centers possessesspmtialization and is linked with others to supfite needs of our clients.

Harte-Hanks Shoppers is North America’s largestewaperator and distributor of shopper publicatjdrased on weekly circulation and
revenues. Shoppers are weekly advertising pulditaidelivered free by Standard Mail to househalus businesses in a particular geographi
area. Shoppers offer advertisers a targeted effesitive local advertising system, with virtuallp0% penetration in their area of distribution.
Shoppers are particularly effective in large maskeith high media fragmentation in which major metlitan newspapers generally have low
penetration. Our Shoppers segment also providié@secsdvertising and other services online throaghwebsitePennySaverUSA.comOur
Shoppers clients range from large national companid¢ocal neighborhood businesses to individudtls asingle item for sale. The segment’s
core clients are local service businesses and satallers. Shoppers’ client base is entirely dstice

On December 31, 2012 we sold the assets of ouidBl&hoppers operations, The Flyer®, for grossgeds of $2.0 million in the form of a
secured promissory note, subject to working capitigistments. This transaction resulted in arr-tdbeloss of $2.7 million, including
reserving the full amount of the promissory nofdter this sale, Harte-Hanks Shoppers no longeramgsoperations or circulation in the state
of Florida. At December 31, 2012, our Shopperdipations were zoned into approximately 780 segagaitions with total circulation of
approximately 9.1 million shopper packages in ©@afifa each week.

Included in Corporate Activities are general cogterexpenses. Assets of Corporate Activities milynaclude unallocated cash, investments
and deferred income taxes.

Information about our operations in different besis segments is set forth below based on the nafttine products and services offered. We
evaluate performance based on several factorshichvthe primary financial measures are segmemme®s and operating income. The
accounting policies of the business segments arsdme as those described in Not&kynificant Accounting Policies
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Year Ended December 31

In thousands 2012 2011 2010

Revenues

Direct Marketing $ 581,09 $ 614,27( $ 601,28

Shoppers 186,61¢ 197,36t 219,43

Total revenues $ 767,70¢ $ 811,63t $ 820,72(

Operating income (loss

Direct Marketing $ 75,39¢ $ 83,49( $ 86,74¢

Shopper: (152,61() 5,83¢ 17,79¢

Corporate Activities (12,72%) (11,23) (11,297

Total operating income (loss) $ (89,940) $ 78,09¢ $ 93,24¢

Income (loss) from continuing operations before ineme taxes

Operating income (los: $ (89,940) $ 78,09¢ $ 93,24¢

Interest expens (3,574) (3,189 (2,829

Interest incom 91 24¢ 20C

Other, net (2,86%) 1,50¢ (2,136)

Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxes $ (96,286) $ 76,66¢( $ 88,48¢

Depreciation

Direct Marketing $ 15,65¢ $ 15,19 $ 16,79:

Shopper: 4,49¢ 4,40¢ 4,63¢

Corporate Activities 19 18 13

Total depreciation $ 20,17¢ $ 19,62: $ 21,44:

Other intangible amortization

Direct Marketing $ 245 $ 22¢ % 29C

Shoppers 0 0 0

Total intangible amortization $ 245  $ 22¢ 3% 29C

Capital expenditures

Direct Marketing $ 13,461 $ 19,37¢ $ 15,99:

Shopper: 395 1,58( 1,14C

Corporate Activities 0 12 69

Total capital expenditures $ 13,85¢ $ 20,97( $ 17,20:
December 31

In thousands 2012 2011

Total assets

Direct Marketing $ 609,67. $ 674,77t

Shopper: 49,00: 153,67¢

Corporate Activities 47,53¢ 87,87(

Total assets $ 706,21. $ 916,32!
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Information about the operations in different geqric areas:

Year Ended December 31

In thousands 2012 2011 2010

Revenues(a)

United State: $ 678,73t $ 720,74 $ 728,20!

Other countries 88,97 90,88¢ 92,51t

Total revenues $ 767,70¢ $ 811,63t $ 820,72(
December 31

In thousands 2012 2011

Property, plant and equipment(b)

United State: $ 55,467 $ 62,53¢

Other countries 6,50¢ 6,354

Total property, plant and equipment $ 61,97, $ 68,89:

€) Geographic revenues are based on the locatioredfdtvice being performed.

(b) Property, plant and equipment are based on physication.

Note P— Discontinued Operations

We sold the assets of our Florida Shoppers opasatm Coda Media Corp. on December 31, 2012 fasggpooceeds of approximately $2.0
million in the form of a secured promissory notghject to working capital adjustments. This tramise resulted in a loss on the sale of $2.7
million, net of $2.1 million of income tax benefit.he promissory note, which is secured by thetasgeich were sold, includes an interest rat:
of 2.5% per annum and is structured to make paysrafrinterest only in each of the first three qgeestof 2013, and a payment of total princ
and unpaid interest on December 31, 2013. Duentaraber of factors that put the collectability béthote in doubt, we have fully reserved the
amount of this note receivable. These factoraithelthe lack of cash paid at the date of the #adestructure and length of the note, and
historical and projected cash flows from the sqidrations. This reserve was included in the catmn of the loss on the sale.

Because the Florida Shoppers represent a distirsihdss unit with operations and cash flows thatabearly be distinguished, both
operationally and for financial purposes, from st of Harte-Hanks, Inc., the results of the ElarShoppers operations are reported as
discontinue operations for all periods presentedsults of the remaining Harte-Hanks, Inc. busiseggnents are reported as continuing
operations.

Summarized operating results for the Florida Shopdiescontinued operations are as follows:

Year Ended December 31

In thousands 2012 2011 2010
Revenues $ 36,11¢ $ 39,12¢ $ 39,80¢
Loss from discontinued operations before impairnudatrges and

income taxe: (4,119 (2,69€) (2,159
Impairment of other intangible assets before inctemes (8,400 0 0
Loss on sale before income ta: (4,867) 0 0
Income tax benefit 7,12¢ 1,015 56¢
Loss from discontinued operations $ (10,249 $ (1,679 $ (1,590
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Summarized balance sheet data for the Florida Sitemliscontinued operations are as follows:

December 31

In thousands 2012 2011

Current assel $ 0 % 3,87¢
Property, plant and equipme 0 2,691
Other intangible asse 0 9,48¢
Other assets 0 134
Total assets 0 16,18¢
Current liabilities 0 (1,420
Other liabilities 0 (27)
Total liabilities 0 (1,44)
Net assets of discontinued operati $ 0 $ 14,74

The major components of cash flows for the FloBt#h@ppers discontinued operations are as follows:

Year Ended December 31

In thousands 2012 2011 2010

Loss from discontinued operatio $ (10,249) $ 1,679 $ (1,590
Impairment of goodwill and other intangible ass 8,40C 0 0
Loss on sali 4,86% 0 0
Depreciation and software amortizati 563 78¢ 994
Intangible asset amortizatic 386 572 70C
Other, net 513 (724) 85E
Net cash provided by (used in) discontinued opena $ 447¢ $ (1,049 $ 95¢
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

We are incorporating certain exhibits listed beloyweference to other Harte-Hanks filings with 8ecurities and Exchange Commission,
which we have identified in parentheses after eguglicable exhibit.

Exhibit
No.

Description of Exhibit

Charter Documents

3(@)

3(b)

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporat®araended through May 5, 1998 (filed as Exhibi} 8&e¢he Company’s
Form 1(-Q for the six months ended June 30, 19

Third Amended and Restated Bylaws (filed as Ext8titto the Compar's Form K dated December 6, 201(

Credit Agreements

10.1(a)

10.1(b)

10.1(c)

10.1(d)

10.1(e)

10.1(f)

Term Loan Agreement by and between Harte-Hanks aind Wells Fargo Bank, N.A, as administrative ageated
March 7, 2008 (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Com[’s Form K dated March 7, 2008

Revolving Credit Agreement dated as of August T,@between Harte-Hanks, Inc., each lender frore tortime party
hereto, and Bank of America, N. A., as AdministratAgent (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’si®-K, dated
August 12, 2010)

First Amendment to Term Loan Agreement dated asugfust 12, 2010 between Harte-Hanks, Inc., and 8\Fedrgo Bank,
N. A., as Administrative Agent (filed as Exhibit.2Qo the Compar’'s Form K, dated August 12, 201C

Term Loan Agreement dated as of August 16, 201Wdmmt Harte-Hanks, Inc., each lender from timerteetparty thereto,
and Bank of America, N. A., as administrative agéitéd as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 8elated August 16,
2011).

First Amendment to Revolving Credit Agreement daisaf August 16, 2011 Between Harte-Hanks, lrachdender from
time to time party thereto, and Bank of AmericaA\.as administrative agent (filed as Exhibit 1&2he Company’s
Form ¢-K, dated August 16, 2011

Second Amendment to Term Loan Agreement dated Asigifist 16, 2011 Between Hattanks, Inc., each lender from tii
to time party thereto and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.administrative agent (filed as Exhibit 10.3 te @ompany’s Form 8-K,
dated August 16, 2011

Management and Director Compensatory Plans and Forsiof Award Agreements

10.2(a)

Harte-Hanks, Inc. Restoration Pension Plan (As Adedrand Restated Effective January 1, 2008) (&k&xhibit 10.1 to
the Compan’s Form K dated June 27, 200¢
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10.2(b)

10.2(c)

10.2(d)

10.2(e)

10.2(f)

10.2(g)

10.2(h)

10.2(i)

10.2())

10.2(K)

10.2(l)

10.2(m)

Harte-Hanks, Inc. Deferred Compensation Plan (A®Aded and Restated Effective January 1, 2008) (@iteExhibit 10.3
to the Compar’s Form 1+-K dated June 27, 200¢

Harte-Hanks Communications, Inc. 1996 Incentive @ensation Plan (filed as Exhibit 10(p) to the CompsiForm 10-Q
for the six months ended June 30, 19

Harte-Hanks, Inc. Amended and Restated 1991 Statio®Plan (filed as Exhibit 10(g) to the Compankytarm 10Q) for the
six months ended June 30, 19¢

Form of Non Qualified Stock Option Agreement form@ayees granted under the Amended and RestatedSt@ek Option
Plan (filed as Exhibit 10(i) to the Compé's Form 1+K for the year ended December 31, 20!

Form of Non Qualified Stock Option Agreement foreditors granted Under the Amended and Restated 3@@k Option
Plan (filed as Exhibit 10(j) to the Compé s Form 1+K for the year ended December 31, 20!

Harte-Hanks, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan (Asedded and Restated Effective February 13, 2008) (s
Exhibit 10.1 to the Compa’s Form -K dated February 13, 200¢

Amendment to Harte-Hanks, Inc. 2005 Omnibus Ineerfilan, dated as of May 12, 2009 (incorporatecefsrence to
Exhibit 4.4 to Hart-Hanks Registration Statement on For-8, filed on May 12, 2009

Form of 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan Non-Qualifiedc® Option Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.2(i)ttee Company’s
Form 1(-K dated March 7, 2012

Form of 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan Bonus Stocke&grent (filed as Exhibit 10.2(j) to the Companysri 10-K dated
March 7, 2012)

Form of 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan Restricted Stoward Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.2(k) to tBempany’s
Form 1(-K dated March 7, 2012

Form of 2005 Omnibus Incentive Plan Performancd Bwiard Agreement (filed as Exhibit 10.2(I) to tBempany’s
Form 1(-K dated March 7, 2012

Summary of Non-Employee Directors’ Compensatioledfias Exhibit 10.1(q) to the Company’s Form 10eKthe fiscal
year ended December 31, 20(

Executive Officer Employment and Separation Agreemets

10.3(a)

Transition and Consulting Agreement, dated as ajusti29, 2007, by and between the Company and Ridhachhauser
(filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Compe’s Form -K dated August 29, 2007
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10.3(b)

10.3(c)

10.3(d)

10.3 (e)

Other Exhibits
*21

*23

*31.1

*31.2

*32.1

*32.2

*101

Form of Change of Control Severance Agreement kerivtlee Company and its Corporate Officers (filedaisibit 10.1 to
the Compan’s Form K, dated March 15, 2011

Form of Employment Restrictions Agreement signedhgyCorporate Officers of the Company (filed asiBit 10.3 to the
Compan’s Form K dated March 15, 2011

Transition Agreement, dated as of December 15, 2008nd between the Company and Dean Blythe (fikExhibit 10.1
to the Compar’s Form -K dated December 15, 200!

Transition and Consulting Agreement, dated as lyf 35, 2011, Between the Company and Peter E. Goifilad as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Compa’s Form -K dated July 26, 2011

Subsidiaries of the Compar

Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Pukticounting Firm.

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuamnt $ection 302 of the Sarba-Oxley Act of 2002

Furnished Certification of Chief Executive Offigemrsuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350, as adopted aursa Section 906 of
the Sarban«-Oxley Act of 2002

Furnished Certification of Chief Financial Offigeursuant to 18 U.S.C Section 1350, as adopted aot$o Section 906 of
the Sarban«Oxley Act of 2002

XBRL Instance Documet

*Filed or furnished herewith, as applicable




SUBSIDIARIES OF HARTEHANKS, INC.

As of December 31, 2012

Jurisdiction of

Exhibit 21

Name of Entity Organization % Owned
Aberdeen Group, In Massachuseti 10C%
Global Address Lt United Kingdom 10C%(1)
Harte-Hanks CRM Services Belgium N Belgium 10C%(2)
Harte-Hanks Data Services LL Maryland 10C%
Harte-Hanks Data Technologies, Ir Delaware 10C%
Harte-Hanks Direct, Inc New York 10C%(10)
Harte-Hanks Direct Marketing/Baltimore, In Maryland 10C%
Harte-Hanks Direct Marketing/Cincinnati, In Ohio 10C%
Harte-Hanks Direct Marketing/Dallas, In Delaware 10C%(12)
Harte-Hanks Direct Marketing/Fullerton, In California 10C%
Harte-Hanks Direct Marketing/Jacksonville, LL Delaware 10C%(8)
Harte-Hanks Direct Marketing/Kansas City, LL Delaware 10C%(7)
Harte-Hanks do Brazil Consultoria e Servicos Lt Brazil 10C%(5)
Harte-Hanks Flyer, Inc Delaware 10C%
Harte-Hanks Global Address Limite United Kingdom 10C%(9)
Harte-Hanks Market Intelligence, In California 10C%
Harte-Hanks Market Intelligence Espana LI Colorada 10C%
Harte-Hanks Market Intelligence Europe B. Netherland: 10C%
Harte-Hanks Market Intelligence Gmb Germany 10C%(4)
Harte-Hanks Market Intelligence SA France 10C%(4)
Harte-Hanks NDC, LLC Delaware 10C%
Harte-Hanks Philippines, Inc Philippines 10C%
Harte-Hanks Print, Inc New Jerse! 10C%
Harte-Hanks Pty. Limitec Australia 10C%(3)
Harte-Hanks Response Management/Austin, Delaware 10C%(12)
Harte-Hanks Response Management/Boston, Massachuseti 10C%
Harte-Hanks Shoppers, In California 10C%
Harte-Hanks SRL Romania 10C%(9)
Harte-Hanks Stock Plan, In Delaware 10C%
Harte-Hanks STS, Inc Delaware 10C%
Harte-Hanks Teleservices, LL Delaware 10C%(6)
Harte-Hanks Trillium Software Germany Gmk Germany 10C%(11)
Harte-Hanks Trillium UK Limited United Kingdom 10C%(9)
Harte-Hanks UK Limited United Kingdom 10C%(3)
HTS, Inc. Connecticu 10C%
Information Arts (UK) Limited England and Wale 10C%(9)
Mason Zimbler Limitec England and Wale 10C%(9)
NSO, Inc. Ohio 10C%
Sales Support Services, I New Jerse! 10C%
Southern Comprint Cc California 10C%
S&D Marketing Limited England and Wale 10C%(13)

(1) Owned by Harte-Hanks Global Address Limited

(2) 99.84% Owned by Harte-Hanks, Inc.
0.16% Owned by Harte-Hanks Direct, Inc.

3) Owned by Harte-Hanks Data Technologies, Inc.

4 Owned by Harte-Hanks Market Intelligence Europe .B.V

(5) 99.999% Owned by Harte-Hanks Data Technologies, Inc
.001% Owned by Harte-Hanks Stock Plan, Inc.

(6) Owned by Harte-Hanks Direct, Inc.

(7 Owned by Sales Support Services, Inc.

(8) Owned by Harte-Hanks Flyer, Inc.

(9) Owned by Harte-Hanks UK Limited

(10) Owned by Harte-Hanks Print, Inc.

(11) Owned by Harte-Hanks Market Intelligence GmbH

(12) Owned by Harte-Hanks Stock Plan, Inc.

(13) Owned by Mason Zimbler Limited




Exhibit 23
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking

The Board of Directors
Harte-Hanks, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference irrégstration statements (No. 333-63105, No. 33231 No. 33-54303, No. 333-03045,
No. 33:-30995, No. 333-41370, No. 333-159151, No. 333-20@2d No. 333-127993) on Form S-8 of Harte-Halcs, of our report dated
March 13, 2013, with respect to the consolidatddriuz sheets of Harte-Hanks, Inc. and subsidiases December 31, 2012 and 2011, and
the related consolidated statements of comprehemsdtome (loss), changes in equity, and cash ffowsach of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2012, and the effectdgeokinternal control over financial reportingad$ecember 31, 2012, which report
appears in the December 31, 2012 annual reporbom EO-K of Harte-Hanks, Inc.

/sl KPMG LLP

San Antonio, Texas
March 13, 2013




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBA$-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Larry Franklin, President and Chief Executivdi€dr of Harte-Hanks, Inc. (the “Company”), certifyat:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-khef Company;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and ¢ aesponsible for establishing and maintainingld&ae controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrard have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to u
others within those entities, particularly duriig teriod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finaheaorting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldsire controls and procedures and presentedsimgport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affectedis reasonable likely to materially affect, tegistrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and Mealisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafiorieznal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

March 13, 201! /sl Larry Franklin

Date Larry Franklin
President and Chief Executive Offic




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBA$-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Douglas Shepard, Executive Vice President anéfGtinancial Officer of Harte-Hanks, Inc. (the “@pany”), certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-khef Company;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or ométate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officers and ¢ aesponsible for establishing and maintainingld&ae controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) for the registrard have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedutes tiesigned under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhsubsidiaries, is made known to u
others within those entities, particularly duriig teriod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finaheaorting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadang the reliability of financial reporting atfte preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’sldgire controls and procedures and presentedsimgport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registsanternal control over financial reporting thatcurred during the registrant’s
fourth fiscal quarter that has materially affectedis reasonable likely to materially affect, tegistrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officers and Mealisclosed, based on our most recent evaluafiorieznal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contra¢iofinancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéain the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

March 13, 201! /s/ Douglas Shepal

Date Douglas Shepar
Executive Vice President ai
Chief Financial Office




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350, ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACTF2002

I, Larry Franklin, President and Chief Executivdi€dr of Harte-Hanks, Inc. (the “Company”), heratgytify that the accompanying report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 201 Xiaiwith the Securities and Exchange Commissiotthe date hereof pursuant to
Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Securities ErgleaAct of 1934 (the “Report”) by the Company futlymplies with the requirements of
those sections.

| further certify that, based on my knowledge, itifermation contained in the Report fairly preseimsall material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

March 13, 201: /sl Larry Franklin
Date Larry Franklin
President and Chief Executive Offic

Note: This certification accompanies the Reporspant to Section 906 of the Sarbe-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to thesext
required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be @ekfited by the Company for purposes of Sectionflie Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350, ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACTF2002

I, Douglas Shepard, Executive Vice President anéfGtinancial Officer of Harte-Hanks, Inc. (the “@pany”), hereby certify that the
accompanying report on Form 10-K for the year erldedember 31, 2012 and filed with the Securitie Brchange Commission on the date
hereof pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(dhefSecurities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Repory’tie Company fully complies with the
requirements of those sections.

| further certify that, based on my knowledge, itifermation contained in the Report fairly preseimsall material respects, the financial
condition and results of operations of the Company.

March 13, 201: /s/ Douglas Shepal
Date Douglas Shepar
Executive Vice Presidel
and Chief Financial Office

Note: This certification accompanies the Reporspant to Section 906 of the Sarbe-Oxley Act of 2002 and shall not, except to thesext
required by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, be @ekfited by the Company for purposes of Sectionflie Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended.




